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Financial Key Figures

in EUR thousand

2017

2016

Change

353,023

304,379

16.0%

Gross profit

63,043

56,735

11.1%

17.9%

18.6%

EBIT

36,753

39,717

10.4%

13.0%

83,103

81,474

23.5%

26.8%

31,015

25,499

0.63

0.52

Balance sheet total*

437,944

420,775

4.1%

Equity*

241,956

233,333

3.7%

55.2%

55.5%

77,736

78,378

(104,781)

(15,411)

579.9%

-

(664)

-100.0%

68,887

102,964

-33.1%

EUR exchange rate at the end of the reporting period

68.8668

63.8111

7.9%

EUR average exchange rate for the reporting period

65.9014

74.2310

-11.2%

3,535

3,313

6.7%

Sales revenues

EBIT margin
EBITDA
EBITDA margin
Group result
Earnings per share (EUR)

Equity ratio*
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows (used in) / from investing activities
Cash flow used in financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents

Employees (average)
* As at 31 December

Stock Key Figures

German securities ID no. (WKN)

A00Y7

ISIN

AT0000A00Y78

Ticker symbol

O2C

Share class

No par value bearer shares

Authorized capital

EUR 48,850,000

Share capital

EUR 48,850,000

Free float

12.94%

Number of shares

48,850,000

Year's high (27 February 2017)

EUR 8.97

Year's low (27 September 2017)

EUR 6.00

Closing price (29 December 2017)

EUR 6.70

Stock exchange listings

SDAX, Prime Standard

-7.5%

2.0%

21.6%

-0.8%
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Highlights 2017

April 2017

September 2017

Results 2016: Petro Welt Technologies AG
significantly improved its level of profitability
Petro Welt Technologies AG significantly improved all
kinds of margins. Revenues in Russian rubles increased
by 3.4% in 2016 compared to the same period of the
previous year. Revenues in EUR for the year 2016
totaled EUR 304.4 million.

Petro Welt Technologies AG and CARBO Ceramics Inc.
close proppant plant sale transaction—antitrust
approval of the purchase granted
The transaction was completed on 21 September 2017
through the acquisition of all shares of CARBO Ceramics
Cyprus Ltd. at a purchase price of already paid USD 22
million (the provisional purchase price is USD 24 million).
The company was consolidated in the third quarter of
2017 and was financially effective for PeWeTe from the
fourth quarter of 2017 onwards.

May 2017

November 2017

Moody’s again confirmed Petro Welt Technologies
AG’s Ba3 rating with stable outlook
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) confirmed its Ba3
corporate family rating (CFR) with stable outlook for
Petro Welt Technologies AG in its annual update.

Q1–Q3 2017 Results: Petro Welt Technologies AG
posted strong increase in sales revenues and EBITDA
In the first nine months of 2017, consolidated revenues
increased by 15.3% compared with the previous year
to EUR 263.1 million. The number of jobs executed by
Pewete Kazakhstan increased more than 3.5 times
during the first nine months of 2017 compared to the
same period of 2016.

Results Q1/2017: Petro Welt Technologies AG with
strong increase in sales revenues und EBITDA
In the first quarter of 2017, consolidated revenues
in euros showed a 30.7% increase compared to the
prior-year period.
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C O M PAN Y / F O RE WOR D BY T H E M A N A G E M E N T BOA R D

Dear Stakeholders,
strengthened by the favorable economic environment in
2017, Petro Welt Technologies AG continued to pursue
the sound development and growth of its business operations and the significant improvement in its profitability. This positive development was achieved thanks to
the company’s management maintaining its strategy of
optimizing the cost of sales, limiting administrative and
financial expenditures, boosting synergies among the
Petro Welt Technologies Group companies, increasing
operational efficiency in drilling and enhancing the share
of multistage fracturing.
Having accomplished our goals of transforming the company and reaching a satisfactory level of profitability the
previous year, we have set our sights on our next goal:
sustainability. This is the first time we are publishing a
sustainability report as an integral part of our annual
report. As a team of likeminded people, we have worked
to develop an optimized approach towards ensuring the
sustainability of Petro Welt Technologies’ businesses.
The acquisition of CARBO Ceramics in the Russian
Federation, a global technology company that provides
products and services to the oil and gas market, by Petro
Welt Technologies on 21 September 2017 was definitely
one of the highlights of 2017. CARBO Ceramics’
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proppant manufacturing facility is in Kopeysk, Russia.
The products it manufactures have a very strong reputation among international service companies and are very
much in demand by oil and gas operators. Petro Welt
Technologies is evaluating its options to increase the
volume of proppant manufacturing for both internal and
external purposes and to diversify the plant through
associated products.
In 2017, revenues in Russian rubles climbed by 3.0%
compared with the same period of the previous year.
In euros, revenues rose by 16.0%. The EBITDA margin
was 23.5% and the equity ratio was stable at 55.2%
compared to 55.5% in 2016.
The positive development of the company’s key performance indicators (KPIs) in 2017 creates a solid basis for
reliably generating profit. The Management Board anti
cipates that revenues will reach approximately
EUR 335–345 million in 2018.

Yury Semenov

Chief Executive Officer

Valeriy Inyushin

Chief Financial Officer
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C O M PAN Y / F O REWOR D BY T H E S U P E R V IS OR Y BOA R D

Dear Stakeholders,
as a company specializing in the provision of services
to oil and gas companies, Petro Welt Technologies AG
deals with precious and increasingly scarce resources –
resources which the world economy in general and dayto-day life in particular, especially in the industrialized
world, depend on.

Sustainability, first and foremost, describes the
pairing of responsibility with accountability. Petro
Welt Technologies AG views itself as a company that
is responsible for the well-being of its employees, the
people who live in the areas where its operations are
located, its partners and last but not least the environment it is working in.

Taking these facts into account, Petro Welt Technologies
acknowledges its obligation towards the general public,
its stakeholders as well as the environment. This obligation translates into acting responsibly in each and every
aspect of the company’s business operations as well as
into thinking and acting sustainably.

This report highlights the various segments and relevant
topics related to sustainability. It serves to lay the foundation for and define the benchmarks against which we
will be measured in the years to come.

The present integrated annual report contains the group
management report 2017, the report on non-financial
information as well as the consolidated financial statements. Our principles concerning fair management are
set out in the corporate governance report. In addition
to economic and legal information, this integrated business report addresses the proper conduct of business
as well as aspects of sustainability.

Maurice Dijols

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Remi Paul

Member of the Supervisory Board
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Ralf Wojtek

Member of the Supervisory Board
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C O M PA N Y / G R OU P S T R U CT U R E

Company Group Structure
The Petro Welt Technologies Group consists of Petro
Welt Technologies AG, the Austrian holding and parent
company of the three wholly-owned operating subsidiaries, KATKoneft, KATOBNEFT and KAToil-Drilling, as well
as of the three other wholly-owned subsidiaries, KAT.oil
Leasing, Trading House KAT.oil and Petro Welt GEODATA.
With the exception of Petro Welt GEODATA which is registered in Vienna, Austria, all subsidiaries are registered
in Russia as limited liability companies (LLCs). Petro Welt
Technologies also holds 100% of Cyprus-based Pewete
Evolution (formerly known as Sonamax LIMITED) and
99.9% of WELLPROP CYPRUS LIMITED which, in turn,
holds 100% of LLC WELLPROP in Russia (the former
CARBO Ceramics (Eurasia)).
Pewete Evolution Limited serves as the central management company and sole owner of PeWeTe Kazakhstan
LLP. Petro Welt Technologies LLC was founded in 2015
to serve as a central management company for the three
Russian LLCs, KATKoneft, KATOBNEFT and KAToil-Drilling.
Petro Welt Technologies LLC is responsible for allocating
functions and responsibilities to the various operating
companies. It is also tasked with ensuring that the management board as well as the operating companies have a
clear and efficient structure. Petro Welt Technologies LLC
is also responsible for strategic planning and accounting
(i.e. budgeting and forecasting as well as reporting and
consulting on financial and commercial activities). From
an operational perspective moreover, the company is
responsible for technological standards, commercial
and marketing tasks, human resources, procurement
and trading.
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The management holding headquartered in Vienna,
Petro Welt Technologies AG, carries out general and
administrative services for the Group, including monitoring and supervision, management accounting, strategic
planning, corporate financing, central sales and marketing, risk management and strategy.
Acquisition of CARBO Ceramics (Eurasia) LLC
This deal, which was closed in September 2017, will
make a significant beneficial contribution to Petro Welt
Technologies’ growth strategy. CARBO Ceramics (Eurasia)
LLC, which has been rebranded “LLC WELLPROP (Russia),”
operates a proppant manufacturing facility in Kopeysk,
Russia. The manufactured products have a very good
reputation among hydrofracking companies and are well
received by oil and gas producers.
The company is evaluating its options to increase the
volume of proppant production for both internal and
external purposes.
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The Petro Welt Technologies AG Share
The Petro Welt Technologies AG share is traded on the
Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
On 2 January 2017, the Petro Welt Technologies AG
share started and closed the stock trading year at
EUR 7.07 per share and EUR 7.09 per share, respectively.
The highest share price for 2017 (EUR 8.97) was recorded on 27 February 2017. The lowest share price for 2017
(EUR 6.00) was recorded on 27 September 2017. For
the most part, the value of the Petro Welt Technologies
AG share developed parallel to the crude oil price and
the EUR/RUB exchange rate based on good quarterly
financials. The share price declined briefly by 5.2% in the
course of the year and ended at EUR 6.70 on the year’s
last trading day. A total of 479,863 shares of Petro Welt
Technologies AG stock were traded in 2017. The total
daily trading volume on average in 2017 was
1,904 shares.

the proven resilience of demand for oilfield services in
Russia despite the extended period of extreme stress in
the global oil sector in 2015 and 2016. Petro Welt Technologies’ strong market position in its niche segments—
with a well-invested modern asset base, a track record
of solid financial performance and a sound liquidity
profile—provides the company with sufficient flexibility
to weather risks related to adverse market conditions
and its high exposure to the volatility of the ruble.
Overall, Moody’s expects Petro Welt Technologies AG
to maintain its adjusted debt/EBITDA ratio below 2.0x
on a sustainable basis. The rating also factors in the
company’s continual adherence to its historically conservative financial policies and its prudent approach
to strategic development.

Chart 1: Shareholder Structure (in percent)

Shareholder structure
Joma and Petro Welt Holding Ltd. control 87.06% of the
shares of Petro Welt Technologies AG. The remaining
12.94% are in free float. The ultimate beneficial owner
of the Group is Maurice Dijols.
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Stable rating outlook
In May 2017, the rating agency Moody’s confirmed its
Ba3 rating of Petro Welt Technologies AG with a stable
rating outlook. According to the summary rating rationale, Petro Welt Technologies AG’s Ba3 rating reflects

1
2

1.
Petro Welt
Holding Ltd.
47.70%
2.
Joma Industrial
Source Corp.
39.36%
3.
Free float
12.94%

Chart 2: Development of the Petro Welt Technologies AG share 2017 compared to the oil price
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C OM P A N Y / M IS S ION

The Company Mission
More than 20 years on, the Petro Welt Technologies
Group maintains its leading position as an independent
service provider for oil field services in Russia and
Kazakhstan. Benefiting from its market advantages,
both industrial players and reputed financial institutions
welcome the company’s performance. Listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange and headquartered in Vienna,
in 2017 Petro Welt Technologies AG had more than
3,500 employees, most of them living and working in
Russia and Kazakhstan.
Petro Welt Technologies AG, one of the first oilfield
services (OFS) firms to be founded in Russia and the CIS,
is an industry leader. The company’s hydraulic fracturing
and sidetracking activities and services provide low-cost
possibilities for enhancing the productivity of existing
wells or for reactivating idle and/or abandoned wells.
High-quality drilling services were added to our service
portfolio in 2011. Over many years, we have developed
strong customer relationships with key oil and gas
producers in the region which gives us a unique
competitive edge.
The business model of Petro Welt Technologies AG is
based on state-of-the-art technologies and first-class
equipment, most of which is sourced from the European
Union (EU) and the United States (US). After the collapse
of the Soviet Union, we were one of the first western
companies to support and service the oil and gas
industry in Russia and the CIS.

10

Since its founding in 1991, Petro Welt Technologies AG
has built up a leading position in hydraulic fracturing
in both Russia and Kazakhstan and has emerged as a
reliable and recognized business partner. Following its
initial public offering in 2006, the company established
sidetrack drilling as a second mainstay of its range of
services in just two years. Between 2014 and 2016, the
Group substantially expanded its capacities in conventional drilling. As a result, Petro Welt Technologies AG
offers services which provide low-cost alternatives for
enhancing the productivity of existing wells or reactivating idle and/or abandoned wells.
Petro Welt Technologies AG strives to generate robust
growth in shareholder value by profitably expanding
fracturing, sidetracking and drilling along with a series
of additional services.
Mission Statement
Our aim is to satisfy the world’s ever-growing hunger
for energy by increasing the production of hydrocarbons and making the best possible use of oil and gas
wells. Ongoing uncertainties and rising tensions in
oil-producing countries, mostly in the emerging regions
of the world, have contributed to the shift of oil and
gas production to safer regions like Russia and the CIS.
Our objective is to make a sustainable contribution
to the satisfaction of global energy needs by boosting
the production volume of hydrocarbons and optimally
exploiting oil and gas wells. We strive to assist in achieving robust growth in shareholder value on the basis
of the farsighted, profitable expansion of our fracking,
sidetracking and drilling activities as well as our comple
mentary services.
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Group Strategy for the upcoming 3 years
The sustainable development of its international
presence as well as the substantial growth of its market
share are the main goals of Petro Welt Technologies AG
for the next three to four years. The company will
concentrate on expanding its international footprint and
boosting its market share. Special attention will be paid
to its business in the Republic of Kazakhstan and other
overseas countries. The company wants to become the
leading provider of oil field services in Kazakhstan,
mostly in proppant and acid fracturing.
The company’s success in Kazakhstan is critical to its
further expansion in both Central Asia and the Middle
East.
Petro Welt Technologies AG plans to update its service
assets and to innovate both front and back-end support
functions such as engineering and logistics as well as
the procurement infrastructure for maintenance and
repairs. Establishing a management holding company
has allowed our operating companies to focus solely
on the continuous improvement of both quality and
performance. We plan to leverage existing and resulting
synergies by intensifying the cooperation of different
business units within each drilling segment.

Ongoing improvements in quality, the reduction of
non-productive time (NPT), operational safety for
people, equipment, and the environment alike as well
as cost controls remain strategic priorities.
The Management Board of Petro Welt Technologies AG
understands that international diversification and a
multi-segment portfolio offer the best protections
against the vicissitudes of today’s market. Every step
must be verified and should offer some benefit to the
company. To some extent, the Management Board will
consider M&A deals as the shortest and most economically effective way to achieve its objectives, but each case
will be subjected to a comprehensive due diligence.
We hope that the recovery of crude oil prices will help
the oilfield service industry in the medium term, because
oil and gas majors should pay greater attention to its
reliable partners which offer quality service.

We place a lot of trust in our personnel. Petro Welt
Technologies AG has developed a range of staff training
programs in order to ensure that we will achieve our
new targets in the most effective way possible. The
KPI system, which was implemented a while ago, will
continue to be the main tool for leveraging our staff’s
motivation and guidance. This system will be applied not
only to all of the company’s core Russian entities but
also to our new assets, WELLPROP Russia and PeWeTe
Kazakhstan.
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Description of the Business Model
Well Services segment
Petro Welt Technologies AG’s Well Services segment
comprises hydraulic fracturing, multi-stage fracturing,
cementing, and coiled tubing. The segment’s core business is hydraulic fracturing, a highly effective method of
well stimulation. It significantly boosts oil and gas recovery by fracturing the formation with fluids and proppant
that are pumped into the fracture at high pressure.
In Russia, Petro Welt Technologies AG is an industry
leader and uses multi-stage fracturing technologies.
A longer, horizontal well design allows for greater reservoir contact. Both exploration and field development
are possible at a much lower cost when employing this
technique.
Offered as an added service during hydraulic fracturing,
remedial or squeeze cementing is a sealing practice
that serves to prevent migration of water inside a
bond and other undesirable fluids to contact with a
well casing directly and avoid fast corrosion effect and
extend exploration life period of a well. from mixing with
hydrocarbons by insulating the oil zone from the water
zone. Sealing the borehole prepares the well for efficient
production at a later point in time.
The Company has carried out over ten thousand wellcementing jobs since 1996 and is the largest independent fracking services provider in Russia by number of jobs.

Drilling, Sidetracking and IPM segment
The Drilling, Sidetracking, and IPM segment encompasses
conventional drilling, sidetrack drilling, and integrated
project management (IPM). In conventional drilling, an
oil or gas well is created by drilling a vertical, horizontal hole using a drilling rig that contains all necessary
equipment and generates the required onsite power
for all operations.
In conventional drilling, after the hole is drilled, sections
of steel tubing (“casing”), which are slightly smaller in
diameter than the borehole, is placed into the hole and
barriered with cement that is inserted between the
casing’s exterior and the borehole. The casing provides
stability to the newly drilled wellbore and isolates
potentially hazardous high-pressure zones both
fromeach other and from the surface. Thus, the well
can be drilled deeper with a smaller bit and also encased
with a smaller casing.
Special procedures are applied during the drilling
operations to reduce the number as well as the potential
environmental impact of liquid spills that occur during
drilling operations. Only environmentally friendly drilling
fluids are used. Upon completion of the drilling operations the drilling site is cleaned up and recultivated
In order to avoid environmental harm as well as work
accidents, Petro Welt Technologies AG uses modern
blow-out prevention equipment (Shaffer Oil Tools,
California). No blow out was reported in 2017.
Sidetracking describes the drilling of a new wellbore
from the upper section of an existing well, which has
stopped producing hydrocarbon because of either
reservoir problems or the irreparable failure of downhole equipment. Sidetracking makes it possible to
bypass a problematic well section or to reach a not yet
exhausted area of the reservoir and thus is a costeffective way for producers to reactivate idle wells
and rebuild production capacity.
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Our Russian customers’ demand for sidetracking is
enormous. The Russian government has encouraged
oil producers to cut the percentage of idle wells from
the current level of approximately 20% to around 10%
of total production well stock. According to the Russian
Energy Ministry, currently there are around 30,000 idle
wells. After starting this service in 2005 with only two
sidetracking rigs, by now Petro Welt Technologies AG has
increased its market share to 15% and become one of
the leading sidetracking companies in Russia.
Sidetracking is done without mud pits but with metal
tanks, so there is no contact of spills with the ground
and/or artificial ponds and no negative environmental
impact at all.
Ensuring both safety and environmental protection at
the operation’s sites is very important to Petro Welt
Technologies AG. All relevant operations have been
issued quality, environmental, and work safety (BSI
NEBOSH) certificates. All employees are trained regularly on work safety and environmental protection.
Clients’ experts are on site continuously to collaborate
on maintaining safety standards and to guarantee swift
communication.
Each well pad or rig facility is equipped with band walls
around the rig. Special tankers for collecting oil spills are
in place.

Integrated Project Management (IPM) enables Petro
Welt Technologies AG to provide single-source solutions
rather than individual services, primarily using its own
drilling capacities and personnel that are complemented
by third-party services as needed, i.e. high-class drilling
or sidetracking services on a turnkey basis. This involves
procurement, contracting, and management of all
third-party drilling-related services, e.g. programs for
mud drilling; drill bits, casings and liners; down-hole
motors and turbines; measurement while drilling (MWD)
and logging while drilling (LWD); as well as liner cementing.
“Green” Company: The Company stays “green” in every
aspect of the life cycle of its operations. “Green” in operations stands for maximizing operational efficiency with
“zero harm” to the environment.1) When decommissioning an area, any surface areas containing spilled oil are
cleaned with sand, which is then disposed of. “Green”
also means no harm to the employees, no harm to the
environment, and ensuring that all equipment is in good
working order.
Proppant production
In 2017, Petro Welt Technologies AG acquired the production facility of CARBO Ceramics, which offers products and services for the oil and gas industry. CARBO
Ceramics produce different kinds of proppant in
Kopeysk, Russia. The product portfolio of proppant,
which is engineered to maximize and sustain hydro
carbon flow rates, includes microproppant and ceramic
proppant as well as resin-coated proppant.

1) Zero harm refers to the prevention of leakages outside of the well pods/contaminated areas.
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The pinnacle of proppant technology
Highest Production, EUR, ROI
Mono-sized
Spherical
Smooth surface
Low bets
Low steel erosivity

Highest Conductivity
Ultra-high strength

High strength

High density
PROPPANT
Low density
ROSPROP HS*

Quality Ceramic

Ultra-conductivity
More uniform flow path
More durability
Precision-engineered
KRYPTOSPHERE
TECHNOLOGY
High conductivity
ROSPROP*
ROSPROP LITE*

Standard Ceramic
Chinese, Russian, Brazilian

Variable conductivity
Poor quality

Medium strength
Irregular size & shape

Medium conductivity
Resin-coated Sand
Low conductivity
Sand

Low strength
Irregular size
& shape
Conductivity = Permeability of the frac x width of the frac = Kfrac x Wfrac

* New trade marks in Russia registered in 2018 / Source: CARBO Ceramics Inc.

Petro Welt Technologies AG utilizes this proppant for
its own activities. Our new business entity WELLPROP
(renamed from CARBO Ceramics Eurasia) holds around
5% of the Russia proppant market.

CSR Strategy
Petro Welt Technologies AG is well aware of the fact
that it is a part of the society in which it operates and
thus must also take responsibility for its operations. The
company aims to have a positive impact and to avoid
adverse effects to the greatest possible extent. It strives
to create value on a continuous basis while also considering environmental, social, and economic aspects – the
three dimensions of corporate social responsibility (CSR).
The CSR agenda of Petro Welt Technologies AG focuses
on the four areas that are key to both the company’s
operations and the stakeholders’ interests: Green
Money, Zero Harm to people, Zero Harm to the
environment, Clean Money.

Green Money
“Green Money” describes the company’s financial success,
which is built on sustainable operations. It is the com
pany’s goal to stay green in every aspect of value creation.
Consequently, the company seeks to implement green
operations. This means optimizing operational efficiency
and providing competitive solutions while causing zero
harm to the environment and zero harm2) to its employees as well as respecting business ethics. Petro
Welt Technologies AG uses state-of-the-art and efficient
management methods to maximize the benefits of each
business action and management decision it takes. Its
aim is to guarantee financial gains for its shareholders
and investors in order to stay financially attractive.

2) "Zero" refers to the absence of leakages outside of the well pods/contaminated areas
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Zero Harm to people
Both the health and the safety of people are a top priority for Petro Welt Technologies AG. As a result, the company strives to sustain a high level of safety and security
measures to avoid any negative impact on people’s
health. The equipment and new technological methods that are an integral part of its operational activities
require highly qualified staff. The company continuously
promotes professional training and self-improvement
programs. Petro Welt Technologies AG provides equal
career opportunities to all of its employees. This includes
options for professional growth based on training and
development. For existing and future personnel, the
company wants to stay a preferable employer that offers
fair and competitive pay.
Zero Harm to the environment
As regards sustainability, Petro Welt Technologies AG
believes that ecological responsibility is of great importance to the company’s ability to secure its financial
success through sustainable entrepreneurial practices.
The continuous improvement of the environmental
situation at the sites and throughout the value chain is
a main concern. Petro Welt Technologies AG strives to
ensure that its operating companies are always in compliance with the national laws and regulations concerning the environment that apply in those countries where
we operate. Above and beyond that, the company also
fulfils all additional, more stringent environmental standards applicable to the oil fields as required by its clients.
Clean Money
Legal compliance is something that Petro Welt Technologies AG takes for granted in its operations. The company fosters transparency with its clients, contractors,
and shareholders alike. The fair treatment of all parties
and a professional attitude are an essential part of its
daily business. In order to strengthen business ethics
throughout its operations, Petro Welt Technologies AG
periodically updates its Code of Conduct, which embodies the most important principles that apply to the
company. In particular, this Code of Conduct is designed
to provide guidance for employees in critical situations.
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Main CSR Issues
Materiality
The main CSR issues, which the company is reporting on,
were determined based on the concept of materiality. In
a first step, the company’s relevant sustainability issues
were identified. They have several dimensions including
social, environmental, and legal aspects. Subsequently,
the identified sustainability issues were assessed with
respect to their impact on the environment and on humans. The impact assessment was carried out internally
with the support of external experts. Involving diverse
representatives of the company ensured a balanced
outcome of the assessment.
The following are the Company’s material issues in
terms of sustainability:
Market
— Technology
— Procurement
— Quality Management
— Customer Relationship Management
Compliance
— Anti-Corruption & Anti-Bribery
— Legal Compliance
Human Resources
— Training and Education
— Diversity and Equal Opportunity
— Occupational Health & Safety
Environment
— Energy & Emissions
— Effluents & Waste
— Soil Protection
In keeping with legal requirements, Petro Welt Techno
logies AG is also going to report on human rights. Given
the company’s business activities, no social issues were
classified as material during the impact assessment. The
main impacts on society are related to environmental
issues. As a result, there will be no separate information
on social topics.
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Petro Welt Technologies has just started to formally
integrate issues of sustainability more widely into its corporate activities. The company is committed to developing a solid sustainability reporting system, including due
and proper data management, in the coming years. In
so doing, it aims not only to further improve the quality
of its sustainability management and reporting, but also
to provide our stakeholders with more detailed information on sustainability.
Market
Technology
We endeavor continuously to optimize our production
processes and improve their efficiency. Using innovative
well-stimulation methods, we have been able to multiply
the productivity of existing wells and/or access the untapped portion of reservoirs.
We are committed to the growth and diversification
of our business. In addition to the ongoing expansion
of our hydraulic fracturing operations, we also pursue
lucrative opportunities in other segments to provide
our clients with diversified integrated services. Thanks
to its technological edge, Petro Welt Technologies AG is
a recognized leader in some areas. As a result, clients
now consider the company a “provider of technological
solutions” rather than a “low cost contractor.”
Our core business in well services is hydraulic fracturing,
a highly effective method of well stimulation. It significantly boosts oil and gas recovery by fracturing the
formation with fluids and proppant that are pumped
into the fracture at high pressure.
Petro Welt Technologies AG is at the forefront of Russian
multi-stage fracturing technology. This modern form
of fracturing utilizes longer, horizontal well designs to
maximize reservoir contact. The added reservoir contact reduces both the amount of wells required for field
development and associated development costs.
Both the cementing of wells and remedial cementing are
important parts of our well services. The company has
completed more than ten thousand well-cementing jobs
since 1996 and operates six mobile cementing fleets. Remedial/squeeze cementing includes the sealing of casing
to prevent cross-flows by insulating the oil zone from
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the water zone to restore production. A total of 1,244
remedial operations and 4,425 frac jobs were completed
in 2017.
Drilling refers to the classical technology of drilling vertical, inclined, and horizontal wells for extracting oil and
gas at depths of up to 5,000 meters. An oil or gas well is
created by drilling a hole into the earth. While no new
rigs were put into operation in 2017, 135-well drilling
program was carried out. Besides the aforementioned
production drilling, Petro Welt Technologies AG is also
active in the field of oil and gas exploration drilling for
purposes of regional research and exploration associated with the development of oil and gas fields.
Sidetracking (inclined drilling). This refers to the drilling
of a new wellbore from the upper section of an existing
well, which has stopped producing hydrocarbon either
because of reservoir problems or because of an irreparable failure of down-hole equipment. For producers, it
is a cost-effective way of reactivating idle wells and rebuilding production capacity, either by bypassing a problematic well section or by reaching a not yet exhausted
area of the reservoir. Having launched this service with
only two sidetracking rigs in 2005, Petro Welt Technologies AG succeeded in boosting its market share to 15%
in 2017, thus becoming one of the leading sidetracking
companies in Russia.
In order to ensure that only high-quality technology
is used in the field, all new technical or technological
processes are tested ahead of time. The given processes are applied in the company’s operations only if the
testing was successful. While this is a client requirement,
it helps Petro Welt Technologies AG to identify and minimize the risks associated with new technologies.
Procurement
Customer relations are a key factor in all sustainable
development. The company embraces a policy of longterm relations with suppliers and customers alike, values
its business partners, and respects its competitors. As
a stock corporation, the company follows the rule that
the procurement of goods and the provision of services
must be carried out in accordance with both the principles of open and fair competition and the use of competitive procurement procedures.
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Petro Welt Technologies AG proactively endeavors to
avoid conflicts of interest as well as to eliminate any
potential for corruption and bribery to the best of its
ability, giving clear guidelines in its Code of Conduct
for such issues. A Compliance Officer is available to
the company’s employees to clarify provide support in
ambiguous situations. The Compliance Officer, in cooperation with the Management Board, sees to it that the
Code is complied with and is authorized to monitor such
compliance. Furthermore, the company requires all of its
team members to comply strictly and in good faith with
antitrust and competition laws.
The Company continuously tries to improve its procurement activities and to reduce normative and real delivery time. A reduction of delivery was achieved e.g. by
localizing spare parts and components. The supply chain
is a significant part of our cost optimization process. The
mechanism of the initial maximal price is implemented
in our tender procedures.
Moreover, Petro Welt Technologies AG has developed
rules and regulations that apply to all operating com
panies and are in the process of being implemented in
the recently acquired entity.
Under these rules, all main processes start with an initial
internal request (“demand”) for a specific service or a
specific piece of equipment and end with the closing of
the respective contract. The requirements for participating in tenders are determined as part of this process.
This means that any bidding process requires a minimum number of participants, which must be qualified
as legally valid and reliable with a transparent history.
Several factors are used, moreover, to determine the
final bidder. Every tender must be registered with complete documentation, including the price, the names
of the respective employees as well as information on
all discussed and resolved issues. Requests for specific
goods or equipment must be submitted to external
technical experts or consultants for an expert opinion.

In keeping with this goal, it is implementing and updating
measures under the Quality Management System Regulation and Training Program that applies to all operating
segments and serves to optimize non-production time
(NPT). This system entails data analysis preparation and
monthly controls by operating companies and quarterly
controls by management team leaders.
Our subsidiary KAToil-Drilling holds the management system certificates for quality management (ISO 9001:2008),
environmental management (ISO 14001:2004), as well as
occupational health and safety (OHSAS 18001:2007) applicable to all drilling activities in connection with oil and
gas wells. The subsidiary KATOBNEFT LLC, in turn, holds
the management system certificates ISO 9001:2008,
ISO 14001:2004, and OHSAS 18001: 2007 for all well
reconstruction activities by means of sidetracking.
Additional information on quality management can
be found in the chapter “Internal Control System.”
Customer Relationship Management
Customer relations are a key factor in sustainable development. The company embraces a policy of long-term
relations with suppliers and customers alike, values its
business partners, and respects its competitors.
The Company works under service contracts with
clients. Every contractor is required to establish a group
of sub-contractors, and all requirements applicable to us
(including mandatory compliance) are cascaded down
to each of our contractors. All contracts not only cover
the topics of compliance and anti-corruption, they also
contain complaint mechanisms for the contractors.
By implementing the rules and regulations of the aforementioned Code of Conduct, the company takes on
additional obligations to the community as well as to its
clients and contractors.

Quality Management
Petro Welt Technologies AG works with brand new
equipment of the highest quality and thus has a significant edge over its competitors. The company aims to
improve the quality of its services on a continuous basis.
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Compliance
Compliance strategy
As an expression of its business ethics, Petro Welt
Technologies AG has set itself the goal of engaging in
fair, transparent, and sustainable business practices.
A group-wide Compliance management system was
set up several years ago for this purpose, especially in
order to comply with legal regulations. The Compliance
guidelines apply to the entire Petro Welt Technologies
Group. The Compliance unit is headed by a full-time
Chief Compliance Officer. Written Compliance reports
are submitted to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board on a regular basis. Work on the continued
development of the Compliance management system
was actively pursued in fiscal year 2017. In particular,
this process was supported by ongoing internal exchanges of experience as well as external consultations
and assessments.
Preventive measures are at the forefront of Petro Welt
Technologies’ Compliance management system. In 2017,
training and presentations, numerous individual consultations as well as information on specific issues were important focal points of the Compliance work. To address
Group concerns, the Chief Compliance Officer provided
information in person and/or by telephone and e-mail
about what is and what is not appropriate conduct. The
most frequent topics included invitations, attending
events, gifts, and other benefits as well as questions
about conflicts of interest.
In order to further strengthen security in dealing with
Compliance issues, the Compliance regulations were
addressed in a targeted training program throughout the Group. The Chief Compliance Officer held ten
workshops in the course of the year. In addition to the
general Compliance training (especially for new managers and new employees as well as employees of subsidiaries), special workshops were conducted on issues
such as induction to Compliance, market behavior,
conflicts of interest, and directors’ dealings. Thomson
Reuters’s web-based e-learning program was a key pillar
of the training. This program includes three Compliance
courses on anti-corruption and market behavior Compliance induction. All Group executives and administrative
employees from particularly affected areas (e.g. people
who are in charge of procurement or order placement as
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well as those who have signing authority) are required to
complete the corresponding online courses and to pass
a final test each year.
With the group-wide implementation of standardized
business partner integrity checks, Petro Welt Techno
logies AG actively controls integrity risks. In addition to
fulfilling legal requirements, protecting the company’s
reputation is at the forefront of its concerns. Integrity
audits collect the relevant information systematically
and effectively. The audit findings enable a broader
assessment of business partners. The process of business partner integrity checks is constantly evolving. In
the fiscal year ended, top priority was given to adjustments to the working processes through further optimization and efficiency improvements in the workflow.
Petro Welt Technologies AG makes no financial contributions to political parties, political organizations, or
political officials.
The Company intends to increase its presence and to
enter markets beyond Russia and Kazakhstan. In order
to achieve this goal, it aims for a good reputation; compliance with high ethical standards in all business activities; the creation and maintenance of an atmosphere of
trust and mutual respect; sticking to the principle of fair
competition; and compliance with legal rules and regulations as well as contractual obligations.
Anti-Corruption & Anti-Bribery
Management fully supports the anti-corruption way of
doing business. The Management Board has committed
to a culture of transparency, fair treatment, and professionalism in all dealings with our clients, contractors,
and shareholders. It is the company’s aim to prevent all
instances of corruption and bribery. This is supported
by measures such as the four-eyes principle, the internal
control system, and procurement/tender committees.
Petro Welt Technologies AG aims to avoid Compliance
incidents. The prevention of corruption thus plays an
essential role in the company’s Compliance management. Extensive internal communications and a whole
range of training courses on corruption prevention took
place in 2017. All Group administrative and managerial
employees are trained at regular intervals on the issue
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of anti-corruption. In implementing the anti-corruption
requirements, the Chief Compliance Officer pays close
attention particularly to the rules governing the acceptance and granting of gifts and invitations. Internal control system checks are carried out to verify whether the
prescribed value limits and approval requirements have
been met.
Anti-bribery and corruption are addressed specifically
in a document entitled “Management and the Code of
Conduct.” This document, which is binding on all employees, contractors, freelancers, and other collaborators, details the rules and regulations that have been put
in place to avoid bribery and corruption. The Compliance
Officer supports the team and monitors implementation.
Petro Welt Technologies AG offers online training to
newcomers. This guidance shows employees how they
are expected to behave in different situations (whether
standard or non-standard), serves to protect them from
unintentional misconduct, and helps them to learn and
better understand Group values.
Legal Compliance
Current status
Petro Welt Technologies AG is compliant with all relevant
rules and regulations in its countries of operation. As
the company is headquartered in Vienna, Austria, and
its shares are listed in Frankfurt, Germany, the company
must also comply with both Austrian and German laws.
The applicable laws impose certain obligations on Petro
Welt Technologies AG, in particular, capital market requirements. These requirements are also relevant to the
Group’s companies outside of Austria.
In recent years, Compliance and Compliance management systems have become increasingly significant.
The Code of Conduct was revised in 2017. The company
plans to update it in the second quarter of 2018, also
to reflect the acquisitions that were made in 2016 and
2017.
Petro Welt Technologies AG filed a civil claim on 17 March
2015 against the former members of its Management
Board, Mr. Manfred Kastner, Mr. Ronald Harder, and
Mr. Leonid Mirzoyan, with the Commercial Court of
Vienna. The unlawful and premature payment of compensation in the amount of EUR 1,539,603.50 to the
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defendants is the cause of action. These proceedings
are currently on hold due to a change in the competent
judge. The next court hearing is scheduled for 13 June
2018.
The lawsuit that Mr. Kastner had filed against Petro
Welt Technologies AG was settled at a hearing on
19 October 2017. These proceedings concerned
Mr. Kastner’s request that several paintings in the
Vienna office of Petro Welt Technologies AG, to which
he claimed ownership, be returned to him. As part of
the settlement, the paintings were handed over to
Mr. Kastner. Monetary claims were not at issue in
these proceedings.
Data protection
Several standards have been implemented to ensure
data protection and privacy in the Company. First, all
employees are required to take the necessary steps to
protect their computing assets. The guidelines cover
topics such as protection against theft and damage
as well as the usage of encryption for storage devices.
Moreover, there are strict regulations on file sharing.
Owing to these measures, the protection of both customer and corporate data is at a very high level at Petro
Welt Technologies. In addition, the company makes sure
that employees’ personal data are stored only in defined
cases, e.g. when legally required or to protect the given
person’s vital interests.
The defined data protection strategy is a part of the
Company's IT strategy. Both the centralization and the
protection of business-critical applications and clients
as well as the protection of corporate and personal data
are key principles. Consequently, Petro Welt Techno
logies outsourced a few critical applications (including
corporate e-mail and messaging) to an industrial-level
TIER III datacenter. The other applications will be migrated in 2018. Additionally, the company has also invested
in leading corporate-level data protection and anti-virus
solutions (Veritas Backup Exec and Kaspersky). Alerts are
issued in case of virus attack threats along with appropriate ad hoc directions and rules of conduct. The company also developed an Information Security Policy and
implemented the requisite rules and regulations. The IT
team also organizes appropriate training for computer
users.
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Complaints
The employees of Petro Welt Technologies AG are given
different options for filing complaints about workplace
issues: by email, by secure telephone line, or by placing
anonymous cards in so-called “green boxes.”

number of points of contact with individual staff members. In order to foster employee loyalty and retention,
the PeWeTe Group offers performance-oriented compensation, corresponding benefits, and an open corporate culture with a range of social and support services.

In 2017, there were seven phone calls. One was related
to Compliance and three others were routed to the
relevant departments. In addition, we received five email
complaints, two of which were found to be substantiated
and have been followed up on; the three others were
routed to the relevant departments.

The culture of Petro Welt Technologies AG is one of top
priorities. Our compensation policy—setting and targeting ambitious KPIs’ goals to progress in accordance
with the strategy, plus variable incentives linked to their
attainment—once again proved effective in reaching the
goals we had set for ourselves in fiscal year 2017. The
terms and conditions of employment including all incentives and benefits are defined in the collective remuneration agreements between the operating subsidiaries
and their employees. We strive to be an employer of the
choice for our employees in the long-term perspective.

Human Resources
At the end of 2017, a total average number of 3,535
people were employed with the entire PeWeTe Group.
This corresponds to an increase of 6.7% from the prior
year (2016: 3,313). The breakdown by female and male
employees is very stable due to the specific industrial
environment. Female employees accounted for 10.2% of
the workforce at the start of 2017 and for 10.9% by the
end of the year. The total number of women increased
by 25 individuals.
Our employees are the key to our success. Qualified
personnel enable us to be a reliable provider for our
customers. As a result, attracting and retaining employees is crucial to our company’s continued success. We
provide our services in a dynamic business environment
in which we aim to further expand and diversify our
business operations.
Maintaining our position in a competitive marketplace
requires that we operate in accordance with an established set of guiding principles. These principles are
focused on the professional development and performance of our employees as well as on such basic values
as individual responsibility and respect.
Our Human Resources (HR) unit is designed to be
consistent throughout the PeWeTe Group, allowing
proactive involvement in personnel development
through a range of relevant tools and processes. The
goal of the HR department is to develop an increasing
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Petro Welt Technologies AG maintains stringent safety
and quality standards in the workplace. These serve not
only to create the best work environment possible by
eliminating hazards and minimizing risks to our employees, our assets, and the environment, but also to protect
the company’s reputation as a partner to its suppliers
and customers in the long term. Our employees undergo
a rigorous training program to educate them about the
hazards in connection with their work. The operating
companies and processes of the PeWeTe Group are
certified in accordance with ISO 9001.
Almost all our employees live in Russia and Kazakhstan.
They are combining extensive technical expertise with
the local knowledge they have acquired at numerous
oil fields in almost all oil production areas of these two
countries. The majority of the employees of Petro Welt
Technologies AG work for the three subsidiaries (KATKoneft, KATOBNEFT, and KAToil-Drilling) as well as the
management company, for a total of 3,240 employees.
Petro Welt Technologies AG always aims to optimize
its operational efficiency, including with respect to
human resources. A mere 11.7% of its employees work
in administrative capacities.
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Training & Education
Our employees are the key to our success. As a result,
Petro Welt Technologies AG works with highly qualified
and committed employees who are familiar with the
equipment and new technological methods. Qualified
personnel enable us to be a preferred service executer to our customers to provide modern solutions and
best industry approaches. Maintaining our position
in a competitive marketplace requires that we ensure
the continuous development of our employees. Petro
Welt Technologies AG fosters professional training and
self-improvement programs on an ongoing basis to
address challenges in the industry.
Given the importance of employee training and education to the operations of Petro Welt Technologies AG,
the company places great emphasis on this issue. The
training budget for 2017 alone exceeded EUR 120,000.
Based on their responsibilities and functions, employees
must pass defined mandatory training programs. Operational personnel undergoes special training on stuck
prevention; well control and well integrity; drilling fluids;
hydraulic fracturing technologies; as well as the repair
and maintenance of the utilized equipment. Electronic
training software has been introduced at Petro Welt
Technologies AG to ensure a smooth training process.
Special training programs are offered to our internal
auditors. This ensures the organization’s continuous
improvement. Overall, in 2017 about 435 employees
participated in technical training programs such as
JOIFF “stuck pipe” and IWCF “Well Control,” whose
purpose is to train employees on safe and efficient
working methods.
In addition to technical training, Petro Welt Technologies
AG also trains its employees on issues relevant to
Compliance. In 2017, the company bought web-based
compliance training programs from Thomson Reuters.
Compliance training supports the process of embedding tolerance and proper professional behavior in the
organization. The training also includes tests for the
employees.
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It is our goal to provide our employees with ongoing
training opportunities in order to boost their skills and
expertise. Most of our employees are of Russian nationality and work in teams of 18 on fracturing fleets, 26 on
mobile side-tracking rigs, or 15 on drilling rigs, which are
operated by the subsidiaries for clients in Russia and in
Kazakhstan.
The company only works with the most highly qualified
and committed employees. The company is continuously
promoting professional training and self-improvement
programs to address challenges in the industry.
The equipment and new technological methods require
top qualification of Petro Welt Technologies AG’s personnel. Petro Welt Technologies AG is very strong in the
provision of continuous training of employees on quality, environmental and safety issues, new technologies,
business ethics, etc. There are equal career opportunities to all employees and a high ability for professional
growth via trainings and professional development.
Mandatory trainings are assigned and need to be passed
based on function. Tolerance and proper professional
behavior are part of compliance training, especially for
the top management: plus, possibility of filing complaints through a hot line.
Operation personnel undergoes special trainings on
stuck prevention, well control and well integrity, drilling
fluids, hydraulic fracturing technologies, as well as on
the repair and maintenance of the utilized equipment.
Diversity and Equal Opportunity
Petro Welt Technologies AG considers diversity one of
its strengths. Employing a diverse range of people brings
new perspectives to the company which, in turn, supports its ongoing development. We are always open to
new people, regardless of their origin, religion, and age.
Knowledge and skills are the factors that determine the
staffing of vacancies. The fact that it embraces diversity
and equal opportunity allows Petro Welt Technologies
AG to attract the best human resources on the market.
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It goes without saying that equal career opportunities
are offered to both male and female employees. In order to promote diversity, the recruitment of employees
is based solely on their qualification for a given job. We
abide by Russian labor laws and do not place women
in positions where working conditions are harmful and
difficult. Employees are developed based on their competency and performance. No attention is paid to criteria
such as gender, age, religion, or other categories. The
Company also has full tolerance to religion views.
The Company promotes a multicultural workforce and
can see only advantages in doing so. Special attention is
paid to the integration of different regional and cultural
backgrounds in order to ensure team spirit amongst the
employees.
Tolerance and proper professional behavior are part of
the corporate Compliance training. In addition, there is
a dedicated hotline that allows employees to file complaints. Petro Welt Technologies AG does not condone
offensive behavior or harassment of any kind.
It is also important to Petro Welt Technologies AG to
provide equal opportunities for differently-abled people.
Currently, a total of 16 employees fall into this category.
Employee Health & Safety
Service quality and safety measures are core values for
Petro Welt Technologies AG, and the company seeks to
create the best possible working environment for its employees and assets. The company follows a “zero harm“
policy with respect to both personal safety and environmental issues and has developed a detailed program to
prevent workplace accidents. We have developed strategic corporate regulations and instructions to minimize
risks and improve the quality of operating processes in
the field at all times. Our ultimate goal is to achieve “zero
accidents.” This issue will be one of our main priorities in
the coming years.

The Company has developed stringent corporate safety
regulations and instructions to guarantee safety and
quality in the field operations. These serve to minimize
risks in the workplace and to improve the quality of operating processes. As already mentioned in the “Quality
Management” section, subsidiaries of Petro Welt Technologies AG also hold certificates for occupational health
and safety (OHSAS 18001:2007).
Safety training is conducted on a monthly basis for the
employees and sub-contractors of Petro Welt Techno
logies AG. The cost of workplace safety measures in
2017 was EUR 1.2 million. To increase workplace safety,
the company also builds on employee awareness. All
employees of Petro Welt Technologies AG undergo a
rigorous training program to learn about the hazards in
connection with their work.
The majority of field personnel deals with heavy physical
workloads. These activities are carried out in accordance
with state labor regulations that define the maximum
weight and operating time for employees, based on
gender and age. Moreover, these regulations also spell
out additional benefits for employees involved in such
activities.
The improvement of our quality, health, safety, and
environmental (QHSE) competence and culture consists
of a number of steps that include the implementation
of observation and intervention practices in the field
as well as the Online Training Program Implementation
(OLIMP) for all operating segments.
Our Hazard and Effects Management Process (HEMP)
contains the regulations and training program for all
operating segments as well as the worksite hazard
management process implementation for all rigs and
frack fleets.

Our Company strategic program aims to minimize risks
and improve the quality of operating processes. We
want to achieve zero accidents in the field.
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To prevent any kind of blow-outs, Petro Welt Techno
logies AG utilizes modern blow-out prevention equipment,
including NL Shaffer and Integrated 13 ram-type preventers as well as control units and prevention packages.
These blow-out prevention systems are in place in all of
our operations and are always in proper working order.
No blow-out occurred during the reporting period.
As stated above, Petro Welt Technologies AG follows a
Zero Harm Policy with respect to safety and the environment and thus has also developed a detailed program
to prevent workplace injuries. In order to monitor the
number of accidents and incidents in the field, the lost
time frequency, which compares the number of injuries
to the number of working hours, is determined on a regular basis. The lost time injury frequency rate (LTIFR) for
the different companies is as follows: KATKoneft: 1.8%;
KATOBNEFT: 2.5%; KAToil-Drilling: 5.8%—for a TOTAL
LTIFR in PeWeTe of 2.9% in 2017. This means that the
LTIFR improved throughout the Group compared with
the previous year.
Human Rights
It is the company’s aim to support respect for human
rights, not only in its own operations, but also in the
supply chain.
Petro Welt Technologies AG fully complies with the
labor laws of the countries it is operating in. To our
knowledge, there have been no labor law violations in
the company. To ensure respect for human rights in
the supply chain as well, Petro Welt Technologies AG
has expanded its contracts by a human rights clause.
The company insists on the implementation of defined
standards in order to provide a humane and safe working environment. For example, these standards include
regular breaks, especially for drivers or employees who
work in cold conditions.
Petro Welt Technologies AG is aware that field operations are the most sensitive area in this respect. The
relevant employees must deal with a wide range of
contractors and clients. Challenging tasks might entail
the risk of human rights violations. The company takes
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this risk seriously and takes preventive measures for
risk mitigation. Examples of such preventive measures
include the teaching of tolerance, observation and
analyses of behavior as well as feedback and compliance
with the Code of Conduct. Well-established HR policies
are also in place.
Moreover, a Spark system has been implemented to
check subcontractors and suppliers. Spark provides access to information on legal disputes involving potential
suppliers and contractors. Petro Welt Technologies AG
takes appropriate action if there are any findings. Severe
violations of human rights may also lead to the termination of contracts
Environment
Environmental Responsibility
Petro Welt Technologies AG is well aware of the fact that
its operations might have an impact on the environment.
As we consider ourselves to be an integral part of society
and thus assume responsibility for our activities, we aim
to create positive impacts and to avoid adverse effects
to the greatest extent possible. The company strives for
continuous value creation while also considering environ
mental, social, and economic issues.
When it comes to sustainability, we believe that our
responsibility toward the environment is of great importance in securing the Group’s financial success through
sustainable entrepreneurial practices. Hence we follow
a “Zero Harm to People” policy. As a result, the Company considers its ecological responsibility toward to
be of great importance in securing its financial success
through sustainable entrepreneurial practices. The continuous improvement of the environmental situation on
the sites and throughout the value chain is
a main concern.
Our values and business principles as set forth in the
Group’s Code of Conduct form the basis of our global responsibility. Above and beyond our own environmental
goals, we want to ensure that our operating companies
always comply with applicable national laws and regulations on the environment in those countries where we

25

SU S T A IN A BIL IT Y R E P OR T

operate. Furthermore, the Group also fulfills all additional, possibly more stringent environmental standards that
our clients require with respect to oil field operations.
Internal ecological audits and inspections are carried
out in the field to ensure compliance with all rules and
regulations—whether internal or external.
Energy & Emissions
Petro Welt Technologies AG is well aware of the fact that
its operations might have an impact on the environment.
Our core business activities—well services, drilling, sidetracking, and IPM as well as proppant production—all
entail energy-intensive processes.
As we consider ourselves to be an integral part of society
and thus assume responsibility for our activities, we aim
to create positive impacts and to avoid adverse effects to
the greatest extent. We constantly endeavor to improve
the energy efficiency of our activities and to reduce the
energy they consume. The company thus is dedicated to
lowering its direct emissions.

Effluents & Waste
Oil spills represent a major potential negative impact
that is linked to the company’s activities. Petro Welt
Technologies AG has defined a range of precautionary
measures to prevent oil spills.
Among other things, the company has committed to
using only environmentally friendly drilling fluids. It
has also implemented the legally required, mandatory
training programs for its employees in order to equip
them with the necessary know-how on how to prevent
oil spills. In addition, blow-out preventers (BoPs), special
adjustable plugs, and tanks are deployed in the field.
We also cooperate closely with our clients on this issue.
Client representatives are regularly on site to review the
processes used.
Once field operations have been completed, Petro Welt
Technologies AG has contractual obligations to clean
and re-cultivate the area of activity. The amount expended in 2017 was EUR 1.1 million.

In 2017, our total energy consumption reached
33,098,926 megawatt (MW) hours. This means that we
succeeded in decreasing our energy consumption by
1.5% compared with 2016. Petro Welt Technologies
AG uses state-of-the-art equipment in all its operations
to reduce the consumption of energy. Moreover, each
facility has an energy certificate, which evidences that
energy-saving processes are in place and that it is fully
compliant with government requirements.

Petro Welt Technologies AG has implemented waste
management policies to limit its negative impact on
the environment. All waste is separated based on five
different grades. Annual programs that regulate the
transportation and utilization of waste are also in place.
To ensure legal compliance, these programs also include
quarterly reports to government authorities. The total
amount of waste produced in 2017 was 1,977.4 tons,
2% of which was hazardous waste.

Petro Welt Technologies AG closely tracks its air emissions. In 2017, the company’s total air emissions were
3,497 tons, which covers solids (3.4%); sulfur dioxide
(8.6%); carbon dioxide (69.4%); nitrogen oxides (12.6%);
and hydrocarbons (6%). All air emissions caused by the
company’s activities are within the required quotes.

Soil Protection
Soil protection is usually defined as the responsibility
of the clients of Petro Welt Technologies AG. The clients
provide band walls around the well pad. This ensures
that there are no adverse effects on the soil surrounding the operations. All measures the Company takes to
prevent oil spills thus can also be classified as activities
aimed at soil protection.
As there were no oil spills in 2017, there were no major
effects on the soil that stem directly from the Company’s
activities.
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Material Non-Financial Risks
Petro Welt Technologies AG systematically and regularly
assesses and evaluates the risks related to its business
activities. This assessment tackles the risks that the company’s business activities pose for its environment and
society at large as well as the risk to the company of the
changing business climate and society’s requirements.
Both the potential impact and the likelihood of the risks
are defined.
The Company’s current risk management covers a broad
range of risks, including finance, sales & marketing risks;
legal & supply chain risks; operational risks; health, safety and environmental (HSE) risks; as well as management
efficiency risks. The latest risk assessment shows, in particular, that risks associated with finance, supply chain,
and operations are the most important risks we face.
Key risks related to environmental impacts include the
potential danger associated with onshore oil production,
including blow-outs at oil wells, oil spills during exploration and production activities as well as spills involving
production liquids and hazardous waste during exploration and production. Such events might also impact
workers on site in the form of accidents and chronic
diseases (exposure to substances).

The company is actively combating both corruption and
potential human rights violations not just in the countries in which it operates but also in its procure and supply. It has developed a set of procedures and safeguards
to comply with all relevant requirements.
One rather new risk potential arises from data security.
Petro Welt Technologies AG has developed appropriate
measures to counter this risk. The company has reacted
to the threats and challenges posed by computer viruses
at the global level by enhancing its antivirus protections
and ensuring a more sophisticated and regular approach
to backups.
In order to maintain its competitive advantages, the
Company continues to further develop its risk management system. It aims to optimize non-financial aspects
of its business activity. We are identifying five crucial
areas on this matter, which are sales and marketing,
legal and supply chain, operational performance, health
safety environment, management and efficiency. For
mitigation of each type of risk, we apply the most appropriate set of measures. Generally, the approach is
described in the table below.

In order to minimize and abate all of these potential HSE
impacts potentially associated with onshore oil exploration and production, Petro Welt Technologies AG works
closely with its clients on issues such as avoidance, training, and ongoing improvement. Moreover, the company
has also taken preventive measures.
In 2017, there were no blow-outs on the sites of Petro
Welt Technologies AG.
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Non-Financial Risks
Business Process

Sales &
Marketing

Legal &
Supply Chain

Operational

Health, Safety &
Environment

Management &
Efficiency

Events leading to higher risk

Risk owner

Measures to Stable & LL Mode

Tenders

Unsuccessful
tenders

CEO

Contracting

Lack of clear definitions
and protections

Market Share

Loss competitiveness
and markets

• Strengthen sales
and BD team
• Create positive
differentiation relative
to the competition

Clients

Unfavourable
contracts

CEO

State authorities

Non-compliance
with regulations

• Implement procedures to
manage contractors and
suppliers

Suppliers &
contractors

Unqualified delivery
of services or products

Subsurface

Non-compliance with
operational processes and
approved job design

General Directors

Surface and
manufacturing

Failure to follow manufacturing instructions
and manuals
Failure to carry out
prevention maintenance

• Review the format
and content of regular
reports (incl. KPIs)
• Review operational
business process and
improve barriers

Operational

Non-compliant actions
regarding job design

People

Lack of trained and
committed personnel
No interventional culture

General Directors

Asset & equipment

No compliance with technical
equipment specs

• Update and implement the
observation and intervention
process (“Green Card”)
• Identify key positions that
have a critical influence on
the process

Reputation

Failure to deliver
proper quality
Personnel mismanagement

Tone

Lack of established moral
and ethical values

CEO &
General Directors

Business
environment

Business pressure that
threatens employment

Employee turnover

High turnover
of personnel

• Legalize communication
protocol The RULES
• Create TOP management
appraisal system for assessment in addition to the KPIs

KPI and goals

Not effectively established
and communicated

Please see the Risk Management Report for additional information on risks.

Vienna, 23 April 2018
Yury Semenov
Chief Executive Officer
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Valeriy Inyushin
Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate Governance Report
Corporate governance is of high importance to Petro
Welt Technologies AG beyond its obligations to fulfil the
requirements of the applicable legal regulations. It is the
duty of the Company’s Management Board, supervised
by the Supervisory Board to manage the Company in
accordance with applicable national and international
standards.
In order to ensure a high degree of transparency and
clarity for all persons participating in the capital markets,
the Company’s bodies decided in 2006 to apply the
German Corporate Governance Code.
The basis for this report is the German Corporate
Governance Code in the version of 5 May 2015 and
7 February 2017, since the entry of force of the version
of 7 February 2017. The German Corporate Governance
Code in the version of 5 May 2015 and 7 February 2017
can be downloaded at www.dcgk.de.
The executive bodies of Petro Welt Technologies AG
Upon submission of proof of shareholding (sec. 10a of
Stock Corporation Act [AktG] and sec. 16 of the Articles
of Association), the shareholders are entitled to exercise
their rights, in particular their voting rights, at the Annual
General Meeting. Each share in the Company entitles
the holder to one vote. There are no multiple or preferential voting rights, and there is no cap on the number
of voting rights. All information on the convening of the
Annual General Meeting and all reports and information
required for the resolutions to be voted upon are published pursuant to the applicable regulations of the law
on stock companies and made available on the website
of Petro Welt Technologies AG (www.pewete.com).

Members of the Supervisory Board
Re-appointed on 16 June 2017:
— Maurice Gregoire Dijols, Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, born 01 August 1951
— Remi Paul, Member of the Supervisory Board,
born 16 February 1966
— Ralf Wojtek, Member of the Supervisory Board,
born 29 May 1945
The current members of the Supervisory Board
reappointed on 16 June 2017 were elected to the
Supervisory Board until the end of the Annual General
Meeting resolving on the discharge of their liability
for the financial year 2021.
Other Supervisory Board functions in domestic or
foreign companies are held by:
Ralf Wojtek
— GO! Holding AG, Berlin/Germany – member of the
Supervisory Board
Remi Paul
— LLP “Granit Thales Electronics”, Kazakhstan –
member of the Supervisory Board
In its current composition, the Supervisory Board
fulfils all requirements for impartiality. The following
Supervisory Board members are deemed independent:
—R
 emi Paul
—R
 alf Wojtek
Mr. Maurice Gregoire Dijols is the sole owner of Joma
Industrial Source Corp.; in total he controls 87.06% of
the shares of Petro Welt Technologies AG indirectly
through his company.

Functions of the Supervisory Board
and the Management Board
Pursuant to the applicable legal provisions, the Company
is managed on the basis of a dual board system
characterized by a strict separation of management
and supervisory bodies. It is not permissible to simul
taneously be a member of both bodies.
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The Supervisory Board supervises and advises the
Management Board during the course of the management of the Company. The Bylaws of the Company
regulate the individual tasks and responsibilities and
the convening, scheduling and chairing of the meetings
of the Supervisory Board. The tasks of the Supervisory
Board include the appointment and dismissal of members of the Management Board and the awarding of the
salaries of the Management Board.

Remuneration of Supervisory Board
and Management Board
Petro Welt Technologies AG follows the recommendations
of the German Corporate Governance Code, stating
that the remuneration of the Supervisory Board and the
Management Board should be disclosed individually for
each member. The amounts of remuneration awarded
are disclosed in the remuneration report, which is part
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Supervisory Board has formed an Audit Committee,
which is responsible on behalf of the Supervisory Board
for fulfilling the auditing duties assigned to it, insofar as
this is legally permissible. The formation of this committee is obligatory under Austrian law.

The remuneration of Management Board members
consists of fixed and variable elements. The base salary
and benefits form the fixed remuneration and are based
on prevalent market practice. The variable remuneration
drives and rewards best-in-class performance by way of
continuously setting ambitious and stretched targets.
The variable remuneration consists of short-term and
long-term elements, such as: contract portfolio expressed in revenue, benchmarks versus peers, profit.

Members of the Management Board
Current members of Management Board were
re-appointed with effect as of on 24 February 2018.
— Yury Semenov, Chairman of the Management Board,
born 01 October 1977, responsible for key company
functions such as business strategy, business development, and business policy
— Valeriy Inyushin, Deputy Chairman of the Management Board, born 11 September 1972, responsible for
central planning, corporate finance and accounting,
internal control system, investor relations
None of the current Management Board members
listed above holds other board mandates outside the
Company.
All matters of fundamental or significant importance
require the approval of all members of the Management
Board. The Management Board follows all Company
bylaws and guidelines issued by the Supervisory Board,
regulating the tasks and responsibilities of the Board
members, in particular procedures of the decisionmaking process, as well as provisions on the avoidance
of conflicts of interest.

Risk management
The responsible treatment of risk is one of the fundamental principles of good corporate governance. The
Management Board of Petro Welt Technologies AG and
the managerial employees within the entire PeWeTe
Group have at their disposal comprehensive group and
company-specific reporting and control systems for
the monitoring, assessment and control of risks. These
systems are being constantly developed and adapted
to changing framework conditions. Furthermore, these
systems are regularly checked for efficiency and functionality by the annual audit. The Management Board
updates the Supervisory Board on a regular basis with
information on all existing risks and their development.
The risk report as a part of the annual report of Petro
Welt Technologies AG contains further details on risk
management within the Group. The risk report also
includes the obligatory report on the internal control
and risk management systems for the accounting
procedures.

Petro Welt Technologies AG has taken out a D&O insurance policy for all members of the Supervisory Board
and Management Board. The insurance policy has no
deductibles in the event of claims.
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Transparency
Petro Welt Technologies AG informs the participants in
the capital markets, interested parties and the general
public immediately, regularly and simultaneously of the
current economic situation of the Group. The management report, half-year financial report and interim quarterly reports are all published within the time periods
specified by the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. In addition,
Petro Welt Technologies AG also informs interested
parties of all events and new developments via press
releases and, if necessary, ad hoc notifications. Information is made available in the German, Russian and English languages. The Company website www.pewete.com
also offers in-depth information on the PeWeTe Group
and Petro Welt Technologies AG share prices. Petro Welt
Technologies AG regularly runs training on compliance
for the PeWeTe Group.
Financial calendar
Our financial calendar offers a transparent overview
of all scheduled dates of the important events and publications. The calendar is published and made available
on the Petro Welt Technologies AG website.

Directors’ Dealings
Current directors
None of the directors listed below hold any shares of the
Company:
— Yury Semenov – Chairman of
Petro Welt Technologies AG
— Valery Inyushin – Deputy Chairman of
Petro Welt Technologies AG
— Vladimir Kalinin – GM of LLC Petro Welt
Technologies; LLC “Petro Welt Technologies” is a
management company. The Company executes
function of sole executive body for “KAToil-Drilling”
LLC; for “KATOBNEFT” LLC; for “KATKoneft” LLC
— Olga Matsukevich – GM of Limited Liability
Company “Trading House KAToil “
— Irina Belyaeva– GM Limited Liability Company
“KAT.oil Leasing”
—B
 ernd Albrecht – GM Limited Liability
Company “Wellprop”
—A
 ndroulla Papadopoulou and Eliana Giannakou
Hadjisavva – Directors of PEWETE EVOLUTION Limited
— Eliana Giannakou Hadjisavva – GM of WELLPROP
CYPRUS
— Stanislav Zagranichnyy – GM of “PeWeTe
Kazakhstan” LLP
Supervisory Board of Petro Welt Technologies AG
— Maurice Gregoire Dijols – Chairman of
the Supervisory Board
— Remi Paul – 0 shares
— Ralf Wojtek – 0 shares

Table 1: Shareholders
Number of Shares

Share

Petro Welt Holding Limited

23,300,000

47.70%

Joma Industrial Source Corp.

19,228,711

39.36%

6,321,289

12.94%

48,850,000

100%

Free float
Total
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Diversity Management
Petro Welt Technologies AG is committed to the equal
treatment of all people – regardless of gender, age,
disability, religion, culture, skin color, education, social
background, sexual orientation, or nationality. The
company resolutely opposes all forms of discrimination, bullying, and sexual harassment. In management
development, special attention is paid to communicating
these leadership values. The fact that it is active in an
industry with a strong technical focus makes it particularly challenging for the company to achieve a satisfactory gender balance in all areas of its activities. Given the
sometimes adverse working conditions, PeWeTe Group
has adopted a policy of granting special leave above and
beyond annual leave where applicable. Work is underway to develop and implement gender equality goals
and measures. In 2017, no cases of discrimination were
reported to management.

The members of the Supervisory Board are (re)-elected
by the Annual General Meeting. Female managers are
evaluated on an equal footing with male managers, and
female candidates for the Supervisory Board having the
same professional qualifications as male candidates are
recommended for election. Petro Welt Technologies AG
does not need to have a mandatory quota for women as
per the Austrian Equal Treatment Act (GFMA-G). The law
prescribes a minimum share of women of 30% only for
companies with six or more Supervisory Board members.

The strategic objective is to achieve a better diversity
mix amongst employees. We aim to increase the share
of women in management processes, to provide greater access to educational and training programs in all
regions in which we operate, and to promote young
specialist and prospective students.

At present, the company’s Supervisory Board and Management Board do not have any female members. The
promotion of women to management positions is not
restricted. As at 31 December 2017, the percentage of
women in management positions was 15% at the Group
level, four women hold General Management positions
within the group as disclosed in the Director’s dealings
above. The percentage of women among employees
throughout the Group was 10%. The members of the
Supervisory Board are between 52 and 72 years old, with
an average age of 63 years, whereas the members of the
Management Board are between 40 and 45 years old.

Petro Welt Technologies AG continually monitors
gender, age, employee background, seniority, relevant
knowledge and experience as well as salary equality
to ensure fair treatment and equal opportunities at
all career stages.
Diversity strategy for the Supervisory Board
and for the Management Board
The main criteria for selecting the members of the
Management and Supervisory Boards are relevant
knowledge on a broad range of issues as well as personal integrity and experience in executive positions.
Aspects related to the diversity of the Supervisory Board,
specifically, the representation of both genders and the
age structure, are taken into account as well.
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The Supervisory Board must take diversity into account
when considering the best candidates for the Management Board. In particular, diversity is understood to
mean different yet complementary specialist profiles as
well as professional and general experience, also in the
international domain, with both genders being appro
priately represented.

Both the Management Board and the Supervisory Board,
respectively, were recently re-appointed and re-elected.
The current members of the Management Board were
re-appointed effective as at 24 February 2018, and
the current members of the Supervisory Board were
re-elected in June 2017. Upon completion of the current
Supervisory Board members’ term of office and approval
of their actions by the Annual General Meeting, all relevant aspects of diversity will be considered with respect
to the composition of the next Supervisory Board as well
as, subsequently, that of the Management Board.
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Declaration of compliance
Petro Welt Technologies AG is committed to the recognized principles of corporate governance. As a foreign
issuer on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange with headquarters in Austria, Petro Welt Technologies AG resolved, in
accordance with the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code, to apply the German Corporate Governance Code.
The Annual Declaration of Compliance pursuant to the
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) is an essential part
of the German Corporate Governance Code.
Petro Welt Technologies AG (hereinafter the “Company”)
is a company organized under Austrian law and subject
to laws, rules and regulations in Austria. As such, the
Company’s compliance with the recommendations of
the German Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) is
dependent on the Code’s compatibility with the Austrian
laws, rules and regulations, which the Company is subjected to. The Management Board and the Supervisory
Board of the Company hereby declare, without being
legally obliged to do so, that the recommendations of
the German Corporate Governance Code Government
Commission (Regierungskommission Deutscher Corporate Governance Kodex) published by the German
Federal Ministry of Justice in the official section of the
electronic Federal Gazette in the versions of 5 May 2015
and 7 February 2017 have been and are being met, save
for the recommendations listed below. For the period as
of 20 May 2017, the following Declaration refers to the
recommendations of the Code as amended on 7 February 2017, which was published in the Federal Gazette on
24 April 2017 and 19 May 2017 (corrected version).
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1. Recommendation 3.8
The Company does not follow the Code’s recommendation on the introduction of a deductible in a reasonable
amount in its D&O-insurance policy, as the Company
does not expect any positive impact on the Management Board’s and the Supervisory Board’s performance
of their duty of care and loyalty by introducing such
deductible. In addition, the Company notes that deductibles in D&O-insurance policies are not widely used
outside Germany and might hinder the recruiting of key
personnel by the Company.
The corresponding German laws are not applicable in
Austria and thus the Company does not abide by this
recommendation.
2. Recommendations 4.2.3, 4.2.4 and 7.1.3
Currently the Company does not follow the Code’s
recommendation to include a compensation cap in the
employment contracts of Management Board members
in case they prematurely terminate their Management
Board function without good reason.
The corresponding German laws are not applicable in
Austria and thus the Company does not abide by this
recommendation.
The monetary compensation elements granted to the
Company’s Management Board members do not include
stock options or comparable instruments nor the participation in any corporate pension schemes. Therefore,
recommendations as to stock options or comparable
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instruments (e.g. demanding or relevant comparison
parameters, no retroactive changing of performance
targets or comparison parameters, agreement on a cap
for extraordinary, unforeseen developments) were not
implemented. Consequently, the Company’s Compensation Report does not contain details about the value
of stock option plans or similar long-term incentive and
high-risk components of remuneration and details about
payments into pension schemes. In addition the Company’s Corporate Governance Report does not disclose
any stock option programmes and similar security based
incentive systems. In the event that stock option plans
or programmes for the Management Board should be
implemented, the strict standards of the Corporate
Governance Code shall be applied.
3. Recommendation 5.3.1 and 5.3.3
Due to the limited number of members, the Supervisory
Board and the Company are in the opinion, that – beside
the mandatory Audit Committee – the constitution of
further committees would not be appropriate and would
not increase the efficiency of the Supervisory Board’s
work. For the same reason a Nomination Committee
was not founded.
Recommendation 5.3.2, last paragraph
The Company does not comply to the recommendation
due to the limited number of members of the Supervisory
Board. Therefore the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
also chairs the audit committee.
4. Recommendations 4.1.5, 5.1.2 section 1 and 5.4.1
The German Corporate Governance Code contains
recommendations in respect of diversity and age limits
for board members as well as executive employees.
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Nomination proposals of the Supervisory Board to the
relevant nomination boards, as well as nominations for
the Management Board shall consider these objectives.
The Company’s Corporate Governance Report shall reflect the aforementioned objectives, especially regarding
a women’s quota and the state of their realization.
The Company does follow the recommendation to draw
up, consider and publish specific objectives pursuant
to the applicable Austrian law. The constitution of the
Supervisory Board ensures effective consulting and
monitoring of the Management Board corresponding to
the Company’s interests. In order to ensure the dutiful
performance of the tasks required by law, the Supervisory Board will also in future nomination proposals primarily focus on the knowledge, skills and experience of the
nominees. In addition, the Supervisory Board will take
into account in an appropriate manner the Company’s
international operations, potential conflicts of interest,
age and diversity.
5. Recommendation 7.1.2
The Company’s consolidated financial statements are
not publicly accessible within 90 days after the end of
the financial year, nor are Interim Reports publicly accessible within 45 days after the end of the reporting period. This is due to the complex reporting requirements in
Russia, Kazakhstan and other jurisdictions.

Vienna, 20 April 2018
Management Board		

Supervisory Board
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Report of the Supervisory Board for 2017
Throughout 2017, the Supervisory Board thoroughly
monitored the conduct of Petro Welt Technologies AG's
business by the Management Board and advised the
Management Board in the decision-making process
on the basis of detailed oral and written reports and
constructive discussions between the Supervisory Board
and the Management Board.
The Management Board regularly provided the Super
visory Board with timely and comprehensive information
on business operations, the overall economic situation
in the Company's core markets and the operative
environment as well as business opportunities and
risks for Petro Welt Technologies AG and its Group.
The Supervisory Board held seven meetings during 2017
together with all members of the Management Board
being present, i.e. on 17 March 2017 (Supervisory
Board), 24 April 2017 (Supervisory Board and Audit
Committee), on 22 May 2017 (Supervisory Board), on
17 June 2017 (Supervisory Board), on 8 September 2017
(Supervisory Board), on 22 September 2017 (Supervisory
Board) and on 15 December 2017 (Supervisory Board
and Audit Committee).
Numerous open discussions in an atmosphere of trust
form the foundation for our deliberations and our communication with the Management Board at all times.
The Supervisory Board reviewed the financial statements
before publication and was kept informed by the auditors of all audit activities and their results. The members
of the Supervisory Board received from the Management
Board comprehensive information about the current
business situation and material business events.

On 20 April 2018 and after comprehensive review and
discussions with the auditors at the Audit Committee
and the Supervisory Board meeting, which did not give
rise to any qualifications, the Supervisory Board approved
the financial statements of Petro Welt Technologies AG
for 2017. Thereby the solo financial statements for 2017
have been approved pursuant to section 96 (4) of the
Stock Corporation Act. The same applies to the consolidated financial statements for 2017. Further, the Supervisory Board accepted the proposal to retain dividends
of 2017 and approved the Corporate Governance Report
following the consideration by the Audit Committee.
The Supervisory Board also examined the non-financial
information report 2017 with respect to lawfulness, correctness and adequacy of purpose on 20 April 2018. The
Supervisory Board had no objections against this report.
The reviewed financial statements, reports and the proposed distribution gave no cause for any complaints.
Further information about the Supervisory Board’s composition and work, and its remuneration can be found in
the Notes and the Corporate Governance Report.
Finally, we sincerely thank the Management Board and
the entire staff of the group for their commitment and
support in the financial year 2017 as well as all shareholders, customers and partners for their trust.

Vienna, 20 April 2018
Maurice Gregoire Dijols
on behalf of the Supervisory Board

During the scheduled meeting on 20 April 2018, the
Supervisory Board examined the 2017 annual financial
statements, the Company’s management report, the
audit report prepared by KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftsprüfungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft,
Vienna, as well as the proposed distribution of profits.
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Economic Environment
Global
2017 was a tumultuous year that was characterized by
natural disasters, geopolitical tensions, and deep political
divisions in many countries. On the economic front,
however, 2017 ended on a high note thanks to the
accelerating global gross domestic product (GDP).
According to the Organization for Economic Co-Operation and Development (OECD), global growth is estimated to reach 3.6%. The International Monetary Fund (IMF)
expects growth to continue in 2018 and predicts an
increase of 3.7%. This optimistic outlook is based on
broad upward revisions for the euro zone, Japan, the
emerging Asian and European economies, and Russia—
which more than offset downward revisions for the
United States and the United Kingdom.
Russia’s economy in 2017
According to Rosstat, the Russian economy returned to
modest growth of 1.5% in 2017, compared with -0.6% in
2016. The recovery of the Russian economy is based on
positive global growth, the recovery of trade, growing

macroeconomic stability, and rising oil prices. World
Bank expects economic growth of 1.7% in 2018.
This growth momentum was supported by the rebound
of domestic demand in the first half of 2017. On the production side, mineral resource extraction, transportation,
as well as state management and provisioning for
national security drove growth in the first quarter of
2017. Industrial production expanded too, albeit at a
modest pace that contributed to growth nonetheless.
The country’s monetary policy remained prudent and
consistent with the inflation-fighting framework, which
enabled Russia’s Central Bank to come in below the
consumer price index (CPI) inflation year-end target as
early as in July 2017. Uneven growth dynamics notwithstanding, positive tailwinds, firming oil prices, and
growing macro-stability have allowed both consumer
demand and consumption to rise along with the improvement in the business climate, says the World Bank.
Over the yearly average (2016/2017), the ruble exchange
rate continued to decline, although not as visibly as in
the previous year.

Table 2: Growth
2017/2016
year on year

2016/2015
year on year

2015/2014
year on year

GDP

1.5%

-0.6%

-3.7%

Industrial production

1.0%

2.5%

-3.4%

Oil production
Investment
CPI
Real disposable income

-0.3%

2.6%

1.3%

4.2%

-2.3%

-8.4%

2.5%

7.1%

15.5%

-1.7%

-5.9%

-4.0%

Sources: Rosstat, IMF, World Bank
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Chart 3: Nominal exchange rates of foreign currencies against the rouble (rubles per unit of currency)
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Kazakhstan's economy in 2017
Kazakhstan’s statistics agency declared that domestic
GDP grew by 4.0% in 2017 driven by accelerated oil and
gas production growth. Kazakhstan’s corporate sector
as a whole also benefited from this trend. Thus, the
increase of industrial output and investments reached
7.1 and 5.5% accordingly. The positive economic development was also based on the limited inflation of 7.1%,
and the considerable pace of retail trade reached 6.3%.
Global oil market
The growth in worldwide demand for oil is estimated to
have reached 1.53 million barrels per day in 2017, well
above the initial forecast and at a rate that maintained
the consistently healthy growth seen over the past three
years. OECD Europe contributed most of the upward
revisions due to solid progress in the industrial sector in
addition to strong demand from the transportation
sector. In non-OECD countries, China recorded robust
demand for oil in 2017, as both the petrochemical and
the transportation sectors continued to expand at a
healthy pace and overall economic activity outpaced
initial expectations. For 2018, the main assumption
driving the forecast is firm economic growth that lends
support to industrial and construction fuels in both
OECD and non-OECD countries. The expansion of the
transportation sector is expected to provide the bulk of
oil demand growth while petrochemical demand growth
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is projected to be one of the fastest-rising contributors
in the US, China, South Korea, and the Middle East.
As such, world oil demand growth is estimated at
1.51 million barrels per day in 2018, up from 1.26 million
barrels per day as initially forecast.
Non-OPEC oil supply growth in 2017 was well above
initial market expectations and now stands at 0.81
million barrels per day. Higher-than-expected supply
growth in the US, Canada, and Kazakhstan have been
the key contributors to the upward revisions, particularly
US tight oil. As a result, US oil output is now expected to
grow at 0.61 million barrels per day in the current year.
The momentum that made itself felt in 2017 is expected
to continue in 2018 on the back of rising investments in
US tight oil and improved well efficiency. Higher output
from Canada, due to previously approved oil sands
projects, will also contribute to the growth in 2018.
As a result, the non-OPEC supply is expected to expand
by 0.99 million barrels per day in 2018. The forecast is
fraught with considerable uncertainties, particularly
regarding US tight oil developments.
At the end of 2017, the average price of crude oil per
barrel surged above USD 60 per barrel for the first time
since June 2015. The oil price is expected to average
USD 62 per barrel in 2018.
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Oil and gas production in Russia and Kazakhstan
Oil production in Russia reduced slightly by 0.3% in 2017
because joining to OPEC agreement. This agreement on
the global level led to a sensitive oil production correction in Nov-Dec 2017. By contrast, Russian gas production increased by 8.7% due to the strong demand from
the European Union.

exports to GDP growth rose substantially as a result of
a significant rebound in oil exports. Both the ongoing
economic recovery in Russia and higher demand for oil
in EU countries improved external demand.

As we forecast, Kazakhstan’s oil production showed
impressive growth of 11.2% in 2017. Gas production
experienced spectacular increase of 14%. While domestic demand improved marginally, the contribution of net

In past years, oil production and GDP growth have
developed more or less in tandem with each other—
except for 2015 and 2016, when oil output growth lost
its direct correlation with GDP growth. In both of these
years, the onset of the recession lowered GDP by
3.7%. Yet Russia’s oil production continued to rise and
to hit new highs year after year.

Chart 4: Russian GDP and oil output

Chart 5: Drilling dynamics in Russia – overall drilling
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The high level of oil output in 2017 was achieved yet
again thanks to the increase in exploration drilling by
10.4% year on year (2016: 11.8% year on year). The
overall drilling volume also rose by 12.6% year on year,
reaching 28,809 thousand meters. Production drilling in
turn grew by 12.6% year on year (2015: 11.8% year on
year) (see Chart 5).
The major players in the Russian oil industry demonstrated varying degrees of momentum with respect to
production drilling. Rosneft remained the undisputed
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leader, reporting a market share of 42.9% in 2017, up
from a market share of 36.9% the previous year. While
Surgutneftegaz, another major player in this segment
of the oil field market, ranked second with a market
share of 16.9%, the steady decline in its market share
continued unabated. Lukoil, the second-largest Russian
oil company, achieved a market share of 10.6% as of
the end of 2017, down from 10.7% in 2016. The other
state-owned company, Gazprom Neft, lost 2.3% of its
market share, coming in at 8.7% as of the end of 2017
(see Table 3).
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Table 3: Breakdown of market shares in production drilling by company
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Rosneft

28.6%

26.2%

30.5%

36.9%

42.9%

Surgutneftegaz

24.8%

21.8%

19.6%

18.2%

16.9%

Lukoil

18.0%

20.2%

12.5%

10.7%

10.6%

Gazprom Neft

14.1%

14.0%

13.1%

10.4%

8.7%

Others

14.5%

17.8%

24.3%

23.8%

20.9%

Total

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Source: CDU TEK, calculation of PeWeTe Group

Chart 6: Growth rate of number of fracks

In the past seven years, the hydraulic fracture segment
was buffeted by changing dynamics. The number of
fracking wells rose rapidly between 2012 and 2014, fell
considerably in 2015 and 2016, and then increased again
in 2017 by 2.1% (see Chart 6).
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Rosneft remained the leading oil customer in the fracturing segment. Having experienced a steady decline from
a market share of 31.6% in 2013 to a market share of
26.0% in 2016, its market share rose to 34.1% in 2017 due
to the takeover of Bashneft in late 2016. Surgutneftegaz,
Tatneft and Lukoil follow after Rosneft occupying close
market shares (market share estimation depends strongly
on the methodology of calculation of number of fracs –
how multistage operations are included – like one job or
according to a number stages). Gazprom Neft ranks fifth in
the fracturing business losing its market share (see Table 4).
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Generally, the Russian oilfield service industry
experienced some revival in 2017 but mostly due to
Rosneft’s contribution.
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Table 4: Breakdown of fracturing operations by company
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Rosneft*

31.6%

32.4%

26.5%

26.0%

34.1%

Surgutneftegaz

13.7%

16.7%

20.9%

21.4%

25.1%

Tatneft

11.3%

10.2%

9.9%

13.0%

13.3%

Lukoil

18.2%

14.9%

14.1%

13.9%

12.2%

7.5%

6.1%

5.1%

7.4%

6.7%

Others

Gazprom Neft

17.7%

19.7%

23.5%

18.3%

8.6%

Total

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

* Including Bashneft in 2017, which had been acquired in October 2016 / Source: CDU TEK, calculation by the PeWeTe Group
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Industrial outlook
Future developments in both the energy and the oil
markets will be driven by a number of factors. The key
factors are population growth, changing demographics,
the anticipated trajectory of economic growth, industry
policy changes, technological advancements as well as
energy and oil prices. Overall population growth is
expected not only to expand at a very low rate compared with the previous century, but also to decelerate
further as the outlook moves to 2040. At the same time,
the world’s population continues to age as fertility rates
decline and people live longer the world over. In addition, more people are relocating not only from country
to country, but also increasingly from the countryside to
urban areas.
The global population is estimated to soar from
7.3 billion in 2015 to 9.2 billion in 2040. The additional
1.8 billion people will come mainly from developing
countries.
Against this backdrop, in the Reference Case global
gross domestic product between 2016 and 2040 is
expected to increase at a rate of 3.5% p.a. on average.
Most of the global growth will be driven by the developing countries, which are expected to grow by an average
of 4.5% p.a. during this period on the back of higher
labor productivity growth and a more optimistic demographic outlook. The evolution of energy markets over
time is significantly impacted by government policies,
which are used as mechanisms to stimulate change
beyond purely market-driven forces. The current trend is
expected to lead toward a long-term global convergence
that focuses on energy efficiency and the increasing
adoption of clean energy, including renewables. More
over, policies in developing countries are also expected
to entail energy poverty eradication measures. At the
global level, the largest contribution to the demand for
energy in the future is projected to come from natural
gas. In absolute terms, the demand for natural gas will
rise by almost 34 mboe/d, reaching a level of 93 mboe/d
by 2040. Its share in the global energy mix will increase
by a significant 3.6 percentage points.
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According to the World Oil Outlook 2040, the mediumterm oil demand outlook up to 2022 shows an increase
of 6.9 million barrels per day, from 95.4 million barrels
per day to 102.3 million barrels per day. This corresponds
to a healthy average annual increase of almost 1.2 million
barrels per day. Demand in developing countries is
expected to be strong, soaring from 43.2 million barrels
per day in 2016 to 49.6 million barrels per day in 2022.
Outlook for Kazakhstan oil field services
The 2017 oil price recovery helped not only to reduce
Kazakhstan’s current account deficit but also to devise
a more active policy towards domestic oil production.
As the country’s proven oil reserves stay at 30 billion
barrels and exports are to be increased from 67 million
tons in 2017 to 69 million tons in 2018, the country plans
to start production on the Tengiz, Karachaganak, and
Kashagan oil fields. In 2018, the Kazakh government is
expected to invest USD 6 billion in the modernization
and expansion of its refineries. Along with the focus on
the Kashagan field and considering the long history of
Russian companies in the country, those focusing on
horizontal drilling have a unique opportunity to enter
the developing market based on competitive service
prices—not only with respect to sophisticated drilling
but also with respect to fracturing, which may be considered the main driver of development in Kazakhstan.
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Development of the PeWeTe Group

operations. The cost of sales was in the planned range,
closely tracking the growth of revenue, which resulted in
pushing gross profits up by 11.1% compared with 2016.
The accelerated increase in administrative expenses is
related to the need to create new management and
business opportunities, thus leading to lower EBIT and
EBITDA margins. Thanks to the rise in its financial
income and its efficient risk management, the Group
posted spectacular net profit growth of 21.6%.

Highlights of 2017
For the PeWeTe Group, 2017 was characterized by the
following four factors: The macroeconomic situation
in Russia and Kazakhstan stabilized, and the average
exchange rate of the Russian ruble versus the euro even
increased by 11%. Both higher and stable crude oil
prices ensured sustainable demand from the oil majors.
At the same time, however, oil companies continued
to put pressure on oilfield service prices, especially in
fracturing. Generally speaking, the oilfield service sector
is experiencing intensive changes and, faced with this
challenge, oilfield service companies must prepare to
rebuild their management model and look for new
business opportunities that may require additional
expenditures. Given such conditions, the PeWeTe Group
developed satisfactorily in terms of both its operating
business and its finances.

The most important business achievements of the
PeWeTe Group in 2017 were as follows:
— Sales revenues increased by 3.0% in RUB and
by 16.0% in EUR.
—E
 BITDA rose by 2.0% from EUR 81.5 million in 2016
to EUR 83.1 million in 2017.
—T
 he consolidated net result increased by 21.6%
to EUR 31.0 million.
— The equity base rose by 3.7% and the equity ratio
is 55.2%.
— The previously acquired proppant manufacturer,
CARBO Ceramics, contributes to both revenue and net
profit.
— The company’s positive financial performance will
boost both its economic base and its performance
in 2018.

Revenues generated in Russian rubles were up by
3.0%. The consolidated financial statements in EUR
show that the Group outperformed both the original
guidance and the expected results. Revenues for 2017
were EUR 353.0 million, and EBITDA and EBIT were
EUR 83.1 million and EUR 36.8 million, respectively.
Expressed in RUB, the revenue increase was mostly
due to revenue growth per drilling services job and
the increase in the number of well service segment

All figures are based on the following exchange rates:

Table 5: Exchange rate
Closing rate as at
12/31/2017

Closing rate as at
12/31/2016

Average rate
2017

Average rate
2016

1 Euro (EUR)
= Russian ruble (RUB)

68.8668

63.8111

65.9014

74.2310

= Kazakhstan tenge (KZT)

398.23

352.42

368.52

378.32

= US dollar (USD)

1.1956

1.0520

1.1294

1.1073

57.6002

60.6569

58.3529

67.0349

332.33

333.29

326.08

341.76

1 US dollar (USD)
= Russian ruble (RUB)
= Kazakhstan tenge (KZT)
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Group structure

Chart 7: Structure of the Group
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Moscow, Russia
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LLC KAT.oil Leasing
Kogalym, Russia
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* Management company

Reference to the text in the chapter “Company”.

Operating Segments and
their Performance
The PeWeTe Group is operating in the upstream business
in the oil and gas industry and presents its activities in
three reportable segments: the Well Services segment;
the Drilling, Sidetracking, and IPM segment and segment
of proppant production.
Well Services segment
The Well Services segment comprises hydraulic fracturing,
multi-stage fracturing and remedial cementing. Hydraulic
fracturing is a very effective method for conveying hydrocarbons to the surface, i.e. well stimulation. In Russia,
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Petro Welt Technologies AG is at the forefront of a technique known as multi-stage fracking and the supporting
technology.
Offered as an added service during hydraulic fracturing,
remedial or squeeze cementing is a sealing practice aimed
at preventing the mixture of water and other unwanted
fluids with hydrocarbons by insulating the oil zone from
the water zone. By sealing the borehole, the well is
prepared for efficient production at a later time. The
Company has performed over ten thousand well cementing jobs since 1996 and is the largest independent fracking
services provider in Russia with a market share of about
24% (based on the number of jobs).
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Drilling, Sidetracking, and IPM segment
The Drilling, Sidetracking and IPM segment encompasses
conventional drilling, sidetrack drilling, and integrated
project management (IPM). In conventional drilling, an
oil or gas well is created by drilling a vertical, horizontal
or inclined hole into the earth to a depth of up to
5,000 meters using a drilling rig which contains all
necessary equipment and generates the required
onsite power for all operations.
Sidetrack drilling, also known as inclined drilling, is a
term used to describe the drilling of a new wellbore
from the upper section of an existing well that no longer
produces oil either due to reservoir problems or irre
parable damage in the borehole. For producers, this
method represents a cost-effective way of reactivating
idle wells and rebuilding production capacity, either
by bypassing a problematic well section or reaching
new reservoirs. Integrated Project Management (IPM)
enables Petro Welt Technologies AG to provide singlesource solutions primarily using our drilling capacities
complemented by third-party services where needed, i.e.
top quality drilling or sidetracking services on a turnkey
basis. These services include order processing, contract
management, and the management of services rendered
by subcontractors including measurement while drilling
(MWD), logging while drilling (LWD), and liner cementing.
Production of proppant
WELLPROP (Russia) is focusing 95% of its sales on the
intermediate-density ceramic proppants used in hydraulic
fracturing. The high efficiency of the production process
is the key advantage of these proppants relative to the
company’s main competitors. The plant is located in
Kopeysk, Russian Federation, and has one installed production line with a capacity of 50,000 tons. Historically, the
company has produced 45,000 to 50,000 tons per year.

Operating Performance of the Group
In 2017, the operating subsidiaries of Petro Welt
Technologies AG demonstrated their competitiveness
in the services market for top oil-producing clients and
benefited from a host of successful tenders. The com
pany’s scope of services in the Russian oil field services
market has been redistributed in terms of physical
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volumes due to the weakening of several market players,
for example, in the fracturing segment. Some service
companies have withdrawn from the market due to
quality issues and low performance.
The clients of Petro Welt Technologies AG, which are
the leading oil companies in the Russian Federation,
benefited from the favorable correlation of rising oil
prices and stable demand on core markets such as
Europe. Oil companies’ budgets for operating expenditures (OPEX) were the biggest challenge. But most of our
clients were able to find the right balance and managed
to withstand service programs. The state-owned companies switched fully to ruble-denominated contracts and
even boosted their financial performance, stabilizing
capital expenditures.
In spite of such positive factors, the major Russian oil
companies helped to create a buyer’s market favoring
low-price suppliers. During the first nine months of 2017,
clients were not interested in technological innovations
and instead were fully focused on increasing the quantity of commodity operations. But the situation may
change in 2018, because Russia and other key oil
countries have reached maximum oil production levels.
Increasing number of jobs
The number of service jobs at Petro Welt Technologies
AG in the drilling, sidetracking, and integrated project
management (IPM) segment rose by 5.5% to 343 jobs in
2017, up from 325 jobs in 2016 (see Chart 8). One of the
key factors for this increase was the higher demand
overall for conventional drilling. At KAToil Drilling, the
number of drilled wells rose by 9.9% and KATOBNEFT,
which is specialized in sidetracking, boosted operations
by 1.4%. Average segment revenues per job soared by
13.2% to EUR 481.6 thousand (2016: EUR 425.2 thousand).
The total number of service jobs in fracturing and
remedial services in the Well Services segment, which
comprises KATKoneft and PeWeTe Kazakhstan, increased by 23.7%, from 4,717 in 2016 to 5,834 in 2017.
At the same time, the core fracturing segment in Russia
also showed an increase in operations by 18.6% from
3,732 in 2016 to 4,425 in 2017. The share of more
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profitable multistage fracturing rose from 40% to 56%
and the average segment revenues per job fell by 10.2%
to EUR 31.6 thousand. The negative development of
revenue per job was related to a less than average
re-injection of proppant per well. Recognized by clients
for its excellent performance, KATKoneft had the
opportunity to participate in the redistribution of the
market and to improve the range of its clients.
The equipment operated by Petro Welt Technologies AG
as at 31 December 2017 consisted of 15 drilling rigs
(2016: 15), 26 sidetracking rigs (2016: 26) and 18 frac
turing fleets (2016: 19).
Revenue development
The Group generates income in two currencies: the
Russian ruble and the Kazakhstan tenge. Both currencies
have been subject to volatility. In 2017, the average
ruble/euro exchange rate was 65.90 rubles per euro.
As at 31 December 2017, the exchange rate was
68.87 rubles per euro.

The Group generates 99% of its revenues in Russian
rubles and 1% in Kazakhstan tenge. The rate of the
Kazakhstan tenge against the euro has fallen as at
31 December 2017, showing a negative trend of
13.0% compared with 31 December 2016.
Total Group revenues measured in Russian rubles rose
by 3.0% in the 2017 fiscal year. The revenue increase in
rubles was made possible mostly by the revenue growth
per job in the Drilling, Sidetracking, and IPM segment as
well as a record number of operations in the fracturing
segment. In contrast, revenues in the Group reporting
currency, the euro, rose by 16.0% to EUR 353.0 million,
from EUR 304.4 million in the previous year. The quarterly revenue development and seasonality of the
operating business are presented in the following table.
The best quarterly result was achieved in the second
quarter with revenues of EUR 95.9 million. Like every
year, the weakest quarter was the first one due to cold
winter in Siberia.

Table 6: Revenue development 2017 per quarter and segment
in EUR million

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

2017

2016

+/-%

Petro Welt Technologies consolidated

79.8

95.9

87.3

90.0

353.0

304.4

+16.0%

Well Services

38.8

49.5

49.4

46.9

184.6

166.2

+11.1%

Drilling, Sidetracking, IPM

41.0

46.4

37.9

39.9

165.2

138.2

+19.5%

3.2

3.2

Proppant Production

Segment Reporting
The upward trend in the development of the Group’s
revenue, calculated in euros, is fully correlated within
the Well Services and the Drilling, Sidetracking and IPM
segments.
The stability of the economy and the risk of a downgrade
in quality in the Drilling segment allowed major customers to choose a less aggressive budget policy, which had
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a positive impact on per-job revenues, boosting them
by 13.2% in connection with the geographical expansion
of our conventional drilling services.
In the Well Services segment, the production program
was successfully completed in 2017 supported by the
increase of overall number of jobs and the share of
multistage fracks.
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Chart 8: Quarterly development of the service job count
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The share of the company’s revenues generated by
its service lines between 2015 and 2017 shows some
increase in revenues from fracturing and substantial
growth in revenues from conventional drilling, which
partially replaced sidetracking (see Chart 9).

Chart 9: Revenue development by service

line 2015–2017 (in percent)
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Cost of sales performance
Strong operating activity was supported by a cautious
financial policy. The cost of sales rose by 17.1% (or
EUR 42.4 million) to EUR 290.0 million, up from
EUR 247.6 million in the previous year. This increase is
in line with the growth of sales revenues in 2017 (16.0%).
However, the cost of sales showed marginal growth in
Russian rubles (increase by 4.0%), given the Russian
economy’s slightly inflationary dynamics in 2017. This
development was due to strict budgetary discipline, the
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fact that the share of imported stocks and components
was kept at a low-risk level, and the weakening of the
Russian ruble since June 2017.
In 2017, raw material costs rose by 8.0% or EUR 7.7 million
to EUR 103.3 million. The average number of employees
increased by 6.7% to 3,535, up from 3,313 in the previous
year. At the same time, personnel costs grew by 16.2%,
from EUR 40.7 million to EUR 47.3 million, due to the
increases in both staff and incentive payments, which
enabled greater production efficiency and made it
possible to adjust salaries to industry benchmarks in
order to retain key personnel.
Direct costs, which include expenditures for production
services, transport, maintenance, and repair, rose by
32.0% or EUR 17.5 million, from EUR 54.6 million in 2016
to EUR 72.1 million in 2017, in spite of the expansion
of the production program and the change in its operational structure. Spending related to production services
also rose due to higher executor prices which, in turn,
were driven by increases in both tariffs and taxes.
Administrative costs rose to EUR 24.7 million from
EUR 19.6 million in the previous year due to the launch
of new business opportunities, including the acquisition
of CARBO Ceramics Eurasia and the creation of the
associated organizational and legal infrastructure.
These expenses were also affected by re-class of some
part of main production personnel of KAToil Drilling to
management staff.
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Development of earnings
The gross profit increased by 11.1% in 2017 to EUR 63.0
million, up from EUR 56.7 million in the previous year
(see Table 7). The gross profit margin was 17.9% (2016:
18.6%), thus providing a reliable basis for successful
P&L dynamics in a risky external environment.
Even though its margin decreased to 23.5%, down from
26.8% in 2016, EBITDA grew in 2017 thanks to higher
revenue generation.
The operating result, which is reported as earnings
before interest and taxes (EBIT), decreased by 7.3% to
EUR 36.8 million (2016: EUR 39.7 million) due to the

change in revenues relative to the actual cost of sales.
In combination with increased administrative costs,
this caused the EBIT margin to decline to 10.4%
(2016: 13.0%), a level that is in the planned range.
The positive effect (EUR 1.8 million) of the positive
financial result of EUR 2.9 million in 2017 enabled
the Group to post a profit before tax in 2017 of
EUR 39.7 million (2016: EUR 40.8 million).
The Group showed strong net profit growth of 21.6%
due to the decrease in the effective tax rate from 38.7%
in 2016 to 21.8% in 2017. Earnings per share were EUR 0.63
per share for 2017, up from EUR 0.52 per share in 2016.

Table 7: Group figures EBITDA and EBIT
Key positions

2017

2016

+/-

+/-%

Sales revenues

in EUR million

353.0

304.4

48.6

+16.0%

Gross profit

in EUR million

63.0

56.7

6.3

+11.1%

EBITDA

in EUR million

83.1

81.5

1.6

+ 2.0%

EBIT

in EUR million

36.8

39,7

-2.9

-7.5%

Gross profit margin

17.9%

18.6%

EBIT margin

10.4%

13.0%

EBITDA margin
Group result
Earnings per share

Proposal of the Management Board on
the distribution of dividends for 2017
The Management Board has the strong intention to
meet shareholders’ expectations regarding the com
pany's development and growth. Overseas expansion
is considered necessary for the successful development
of business in both the short and the medium term.
The first step was taken with the acquisition of Trican
Kazakhstan in 2016 and the second step with the
acquisition of CARBO Ceramics. Additional international
projects are being planned and in preparation in
Kazakhstan as well as in other countries that produce
crude oil and natural gas. Apart from the company's
international expansion, it is also necessary to strength-
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23.5%

26.8%

in EUR million

31.0

25.5

5.5

+21.6%

in EUR

0.63

0.52

0.11

+21.2%

en its position in its core markets in Russia through
investments in technology, infrastructure, software, and
personnel training in order to maintain its reputation
as a leader in technology. The company’s strong cash
position will strengthen its ability to negotiate long-term
credit facilities and to further reduce its financing costs.
Development of equity and balance sheet structure
The equity rose by 3.7% from EUR 233,3 million in 2016
to EUR 242,0 in 2017, mainly due to the increase in
retained earnings of 14.0%, from EUR 220.9 million in
2016 to EUR 251.9 million in 2017. The non-current
assets of Petro Welt Technologies AG decreased by
6.1%, whereas the current liabilities rose sharply by
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144.9%. This increase is due to the reclassification of the
loan received from Petro Welt HOLDING (CYPRUS)
LIMITED to short-term liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
However, an addendum on postponing the maturity of
the loan to 31.12.2022 is currently in the process of being
negotiated and signed. At the end of 2017, total net debt
was EUR 25.4 million, which corresponds to a net debt/
EBITDA ratio of 0.31.

All financial stocks (assets, capital, and liabilities)
developed positively despite the depreciation of the
ruble at the end of 2017. Total assets rose by 4.1% to
EUR 437.9 million in 2017 thanks to both the improved
cash position and the increase in current assets. The
equity ratio improved owing to the growth in retained
earnings by EUR 31.0 million.

Table 8: Group balance sheet structure
Balance sheet positions

12/31/2017
in EUR million

12/31/2017
percentage

12/31/2016
in EUR million

12/31/2016
percentage

Current assets

278.2

63.5%

250.7

59.6%

Non-current assets

159.7

36.5%

170.1

40.4%

Assets

437.9

100.0%

420.8

100.0%

Current liabilities

191.4

43.7%

78.1

18.6%

4.6

1.1%

109.3

26.0%

Equity

Non-current liabilities

242.0

55.2%

233.3

55.5%

Liabilities and equity

437.9

100.0%

420.8

100.0%

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Table 9: Development of debt and debt/equity ratio
Key figures

Liabilities against Petro Welt Holding Limited

in EUR million

112.5

108.7

Trade payables

in EUR million

43.4

37.8

Other liabilities with the exception of accrued liabilities

in EUR million

3.8

3.1

Less: cash and cash equivalents

in EUR million

(68.9)

(103.0)

in EUR million

(65.5)

(10.7)

Net debt

in EUR million

25.4

35.9

Total equity

in EUR million

bank deposits

Net debt to equity ratio
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242.0

233.3

10.5%

15.4%
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Cash flow development
Higher EBITDA of EUR 83.1 million in 2017 (2016:
EUR 81.5 million) kept the cash flow from operating
activities, which reached EUR 77.7 million, achieved the
prior-year figure of EUR 78.4 million. This served as the
basis for financing OPEX and CAPEX programs and other
vital purchases. The negative development of the cash
flow from operating activities is related to the lower
inflow of working capital.
Cash flows from investing activities rose to EUR 104.8
million. Mostly, this indicator was affected by the
addition to cash deposits (EUR 73.3 million) and
the acquisition of the Carbo production facility
(EUR 17.9 million).
There was no cash outflow from financing activities in
2017 (2016: EUR 0.7 million).
As at 31 December 2017, the Group held bank deposits
of EUR 66.4 million (2016: EUR 101.8 million); those with
maturities of three months or less are included in the
balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents.

Risk Management
The material non-financial risks are described in the
chapter “Non-Financial Information Report.”
Petro Welt Technologies AG maintains a group-wide
Opportunities and Risk Management System, which it
has documented in the Group’s Risk Management Handbook since 2005. This system is an essential part of the
Group’s business planning and controlling processes.
Since 25 February 2015, the company’s CFO, Valeriy
Inyushin, has been authorized by the Management
Board to act as the Group’s Chief Risk Manager (CRM),
who is responsible for the Group’s risk reporting on a
regular and an ad-hoc basis. This appointment has
enabled the Management Board to gain access to all
risk-related information at any time in order to identify
and assess various risk events, take appropriate actions,
and respond to different developments and scenarios.
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For further information, please see note 28, “Financial
risk management objectives and policies,” in the con
solidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.
Risk factors and risk measurement
Risks arise from the Group companies that Petro Welt
Technologies AG operates in Russia and Kazakhstan.
Material risks to the Group’s net assets, financial position, and results of operations stem from the monetary
policies and economic actions of the Russian and Kazakh
governments. Measures aimed at strengthening the
Russian government’s control over the oil and gas
extraction industries may indirectly affect the service
providers in the region. Further risks to the business
prospects, earnings, and financial performance of the
Petro Welt Technologies Group might arise from the
continued deterioration of political relations between
Russia and Western countries, especially the UK and the
US. Petro Welt Technologies proactively monitors all
countries and associated regions in which it operates.
Furthermore, local management teams are put in place
in all countries to ensure proximity to each country’s regulatory environment.
Despite the increase in the average ruble exchange rate
and the decrease in the volatility of the Kazakhstan
tenge, the currency risk remains one of the most
important risks to the financial stability of the PeWeTe
Group. The group-wide Opportunities and Risk Management System addresses financial risks and helps to
develop countermeasures to mitigate these risks.
Certain assets or goodwill may become fully or partly
impaired in case of a deterioration of the industrial
environment, which now includes not only the oil field
service segment but also the Russian proppant market.
Any such impairment could make it difficult or impossible to attain forecast business goals, significantly
impacting the Group’s financial results. The deceleration
or even probable reduction of oil production in Russia
has become another significant risk factor that defines
prospective demand for oil field services. By expanding
its activities in Kazakhstan and participating in the new
proppant market, Petro Welt Technologies is incurring
new risks, although this creates new opportunities for
the Group at the same time.

P E T R O WE L T T E CH N OL OG IE S A G / A N N U A L R E P ORT 2 0 1 7

G RO U P M A N A G E M E N T R E P OR T

A certain level of sales risk is integral to ordinary business activities and is likely to arise as a result of ongoing
changes in the oil field service segment. The Group
depends on a limited number of key clients presented
by oil majors. Any failure to achieve our operating
objectives or to meet our targets could potentially result
in the loss of key clients and in significantly lower
revenues. To counteract these risks, Petro Welt Tech
nologies focuses on innovative services, technologies,
and processes that are tailored to clients’ needs. Our
strategically broad range of services as well as our
excellent market and production know-how should help
us to remain independent in our markets. We are also
expanding our service range and markets into attractive
niches where innovative solutions and premium quality
are a must.
The competitiveness of the Group companies, including
their ability to keep prices attractive, is both maintained
and improved by continuous innovation, quality control
as well as Compliance management and assurance, and
by expanding the scale and scope of the Group’s services
to key clients. For clients, the opportunity costs associated with switching from the services provided by our Group
companies to those of alternative service providers are
relatively high due to years of cooperation, the Group’s
proprietary technology and expertise, as well as its
in-depth working knowledge of Russian and Kazakh
oil fields.
The founding of the management company, Petro
Welt Technologies LLC, in Russia serves to rigorously
implement the Group’s risk management policies in all
Group subsidiaries.
Liquidity and credit quality risks
The management company’s unique approach to
liquidity management, which serves to ensure the
liquidity of all operating companies, has been reinforced.
The main remaining risk is that of potential client
default.
As regards the Group, the primary goal consisted of
maintaining the key performance indicators at satis
factory levels, such as the net debt to EBITDA ratio.
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Due to the lack of clarity in the Russian banking system,
the Group has implemented basic rules for managing
free cash and depositing it with the TOP 20 credit
institutions. WELLPROP is also integrated into our Group
system of monitoring and managing liquidity risk.
The Group has successfully maintained its Moody’s
credit rating of Ba3 with stable outlook.
Potential Group liquidity risks are associated with its
ability to meet its financial obligations, for instance,
those related to trade payables or interest-bearing
liabilities. In order to assess the liquidity risks, the
budgeted operating, financial, and investment cash
inflows and outflows are analyzed on a monthly basis
throughout the Group, and the budgeted net liquidity
is compared with the actual net liquidity. The Group
follows a zero-debt policy with respect to funding from
purely external sources over the medium term.
Liquidity management is currently based on pooling
financial resources for the timely fulfillment of obli
gations to contractors. Management monitors the
predicted and actual cash flows and analyzes the
repayment schedules for financial obligations.
Another measure designed to improve the quality of
liquidity management entails the ongoing automation
of treasury processes which, in turn, helps to optimize
repayment planning. A relevant automation project has
been launched in Kazakhstan.
The Company place free cash only in the bank current
accounts and deposits. The use of financial instruments
is not material to the Company’s earnings and financial
position.
Noteworthy Group risks
Market risks
The ongoing volatility of the international oil field service
market is confirmed by the continued exit of some of the
largest international companies from certain emerging
markets and certain market niches, the bankruptcy of
local players, and sustained M&A activities throughout
the industry. The GE deal involving the acquisition of
Baker Hughes is but one example of these trends.

51

G RO U P M A N A G E M E N T R E P OR T

Russia’s support of the OPEC decision to cut oil pro
duction might reduce the physical volume of oil field
services. This means that the risk of a possible drop in
crude oil prices changed into the risk of a deceleration or
decrease of oil production in Russia and other oil
countries that can limit demand for oil field services and
related pricing. Our fears concerning the price pressure
on the fracturing segment in Russia were confirmed at
the end of 2017.
Heightened uncertainty surrounds the future CAPEX
plans of oil companies, as their ability to make investment decisions is also impacted by a number of political
and economic factors.
The entire industry faces significant challenges resulting
from the low oil field services price environment.
Exploration & production (E&P) companies have been
pushing the supply chain to aggressively lower costs
which, in turn, impacts margins. The resulting implications for the service sector include reductions in capacity
utilization and lower rates, forcing service companies to
respond by downsizing.
For these reasons, demand for the Group’s services is
closely linked to the level of exploration, development,
and production activity, as well as to capital spending by
oil and gas companies in general. Diminished upstream
activities of Group clients may lead to a situation where
the Group’s operating subsidiaries are increasingly
exposed to higher downside risks to their service orders
and prices. As a consequence, both consolidated
revenue and earnings may deteriorate.
The Group predominantly operates in Russia and
Kazakhstan, providing services to all major oil and gas
companies in the region. Hydrocarbon production
volumes are often defined by producers’ long-term
strategic plans and sometimes defined by international
contracts. In the near term, an important way to mitigate
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market risks includes the Group’s significant exposure
to national oil and gas companies such as Rosneft and
Gazprom (Gazpromneft) whose upstream activities and
budgets have demonstrated greater resilience to the
decreases in energy prices.
The future success of the Group depends, first and
foremost, on its ability to create an efficient contract
portfolio. Sometimes, it is difficult to predict when a
contract will be awarded in response to a bid submitted
by a subsidiary. Contract awards may be affected by
events that are beyond the scope of the Group’s influence, such as energy prices, the global political and
general economic environment, clients’ ability to obtain
required permits and licenses, and the availability of
funding at a reasonable cost. In such cases, contract
awards may be delayed and some of the Group’s clients
may even decide to cancel tenders.
The need to adapt technology integration in order to
reduce costs remains the key technical challenge. The
low oil price environment may accelerate the trend
toward new operating models, leading oil field service
companies to form new partnerships out of mutual
necessity with the aim of sharing risk and optimizing
project performance on a longer term life-of-field basis.
As a result, the trend toward consolidation within the
sector will continue to determine the global landscape
for most of the market players.
Foreign currency risks
Risks
The ruble and tenge zones are exposed to commodity
price dynamics. The economic steps taken by both the
US government and the Federal Reserve are likely to be
out of alignment. An unclear future as regards free trade
principles may foster the emergence of currency zones
even in developed countries. The new tariff regimes that
are being implemented by the US, the EU, and China
make the world trade system more fragile, with the
potential risk of additional currency volatility.
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Diversification into Kazakhstan represents one option to
mitigate these risks. Compared with the Russian ruble,
the tenge experiences a lag in reacting to oil and gas
price corrections.
In addition, the Group will work toward achieving a
greater correlation between the currency of earnings
and the currency of costs: In other words, revenues in
the local currency should be covered by costs in the
local currency.
The Group’s reporting currency is the euro. Almost all of
the Group’s revenue and expenses are in Russian rubles
and partly in Kazakhstan tenge. Fluctuations in exchange
rates between the euro, the Russian ruble, and the tenge
affect the translation of the Group’s financial results into
euros. Any further instability in exchange rates between
the US dollar, the euro, and the Russian ruble may
impact the Group’s supply costs, in particular, for
operating equipment and machinery. Exchange rate
volatility may also affect the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet.
Legal risks
(a) As reported in the previous year, there is a suspicion
that the Group could have been overcharged for certain
fixed assets. In the event that this suspicion is confirmed,
and it is established that some of the Group’s fixed
assets were in fact overvalued, this could result in the
revision of the carrying amount of these fixed assets
and in corresponding claims for damages.
If the suspicion is confirmed, remeasurement of the
affected fixed assets to the corresponding residual value
would lead to restatement of their cost with no corresponding impact to profit or loss. As a consequence,
depreciation and amortization for previous periods
would decrease, in which case the restatement would be
reported cumulatively in retained earnings. Such a
revision of the carrying amount is not feasible at this
time due to the early stage of the proceedings and the
related need for clear and transparent data.
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The investigation being carried out by the Central Public
Prosecutor's Office for the Prosecution of Economic
Crimes and Corruption in Vienna is still ongoing. Appropriate measures will be taken as soon as the results of
the investigation are available and provided the suspicions
of potential damage to Petro Welt Technologies AG are
confirmed. Once all findings are evaluated, it will also be
assessed whether adjustments to the list of related
parties are necessary.
At present, the potential assertion of claims for damages
is being assessed.
(b) In the meantime, the investigation being carried
out by the Vienna Public Prosecutor’s Office for the
Prosecution of Economic Crimes and Corruption was
expanded to include certain business transactions of
Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH headquartered in Vienna,
a fully-owned subsidiary of Petro Welt Technologies AG.
The Vienna Public Prosecutor’s Office is currently
investigating procurement transactions and the use
of financial resources made available by the parent
company. The Managing Directors of this company
were Ronald Harder (up to 13 March 2015) and Edward
Brinkmann (up to 13 February 2015).
(c) Within the context of carrying out a contract order
in India, Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH filed claims for
damages of USD 817,409 from Essar Oil Ltd. with a court
in Mumbai. In turn, Essar Oil Ltd. has filed counterclaims
to the amount of USD 832,500. The legal dispute is still
pending.
(d) Within the context of another contract order, Petro
Welt GEODATA GmbH filed claims for damages of USD
3,118,642 from GeoEnpro Petroleum Ltd. with a court
in New Delhi. In turn, the defendant filed counterclaims
to the amount of USD 944,841. With award dated
29 December 2017, it was decided that GeoEnpro
Petroleum Ltd is obliged to pay USD 56,923.65 (together
with interest) to Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH. All
additional claims of Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH were
rejected. All counterclaims of GeoEnpro Petroleum Ltd
were also rejected.
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(e) In the course of the change of control, three former
members of the Management Board, namely former
Chairman Manfred Kastner, former Vice-Chairman
Ronald Harder and former member Leonid Mirzoyan,
gave notice of resignation, invoking the change-ofcontrol clause stipulated in their Management Board
employment contracts. The respective employment
contracts were terminated effective 31 March 2015.
According to this change-of-control clause, the former
directors would have been entitled to compensation
payments. These payments would have been due by
31 March 2015 at the earliest.
However, the former members of the Management
Board initiated payment to themselves for the total
amount of EUR 1,539,603.50 on 13 February 2015 prior
to the stipulated due date. Subsequently, the former
members of the Management Board were dismissed
for good cause from the Management Board with
immediate effect by resolution of the Supervisory
Board dated 25 February 2015.
On 17 March 2015, Petro Welt Technologies AG filed a
lawsuit against the former members of the Management
Board to the amount of EUR 1,539,603.50. The lawsuit is
based on unjust enrichment, compensation for damages
and repayment of the unlawfully issued payment. The
claim also consists of a declaratory claim that no further
compensation payments are owed to the former
members of the Management Board. The outcome
of the legal proceedings is uncertain.
(f) Legal risks that may arise from normal business
operations are sufficiently covered by existing insurance
policies.

Shareholder Structure and
Share Capital Information
in accordance with Section 243a(1) of the
Austrian Commercial Code
Petro Welt Technologies AG’s share capital amounted to
EUR 48,850,000 as of 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: EUR 48,850,000) and is divided into 48,850,000
issued and outstanding no-par-value shares. The shares
are listed on the official market of the Prime Standard at
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. All of the shares are
admitted for trading. No preferred shares have been
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issued. There are no restrictions regarding voting rights
or transmission rights of the shares. As of the balance
sheet date of 31 December 2017, Petro Welt Techno
logies AG had not acquired any of its treasury shares
to date.
Since its successful initial public offering in 2006, Petro
Welt Technologies AG has voluntarily adhered to the
German Corporate Governance Code. Apart from a few
exceptions, which are disclosed in the declaration of
compliance of Petro Welt Technologies AG, the company
has fully complied with the recommendations contained
in the code.
Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) directly holds 47.7%
(2016: 47.7%) of the shares of Petro Welt Technologies AG.
The majority owner of Petro Welt Holding Limited
(Cyprus) is Joma Industrial Source Corp.
Joma Industrial Source Corp. directly holds 39.36% of the
shares in Petro Welt Technologies AG (2016: 39.36%).
Dijols directly holds 5,850 shares (2016: 5,850 shares) of
Petro Welt Technologies.
As a result, Joma Industrial Source Corp. directly and
indirectly controls a total of 42,528,711 voting rights in
Petro Welt Technologies AG (corresponding to 87.06%
of shares).

Internal Control System
in accordance with Section 243a(2) of the
Austrian Commercial Code
The essential characteristics of the monitoring and
control of the internal control system (ICS) and the Risk
Management System (RMS) are described on the basis of
the five components of the COSO Framework.
The ICS consists of the organizational structures along
with the management accounting principles, methods
and procedures which are crucial for implementation by
the Group’s Management Board, the Audit Committee
and the Moscow-based Executive Board of Directors as
well as the management teams of the subsidiaries and
their audit committees, internal audit departments and
top executives.
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The ICS is subject to supervision by the regulatory
authority on all issues of management accounting and
financial accounting and has the authorization to issue
instructions to ensure the adoption of uniform standards throughout the Group. Process manuals have been
created in the form of Group and individual company
guidelines to aid in implementation. These include the
accounting manual applying to subsidiaries in accordance with Russian GAAP, the IFRS accounting manual,
budgeting manual and schedule, inventory guidelines, a
handbook on the circulation of documents, a health,
safety and environmental management (HSE) manual, as
well as other manuals and internal instructions.
The key components of the Group’s internal control
system are the management accounting environment,
risk assessment and management, management
accounting activities, dataware and exchange of information, monitoring and supervision. The management
accounting environment encompasses business policies,
ethical values, and authorities on the part of employees,
the assignment of responsibilities, the organizational
structure, as well as guidance.
The following bodies are involved in the management
accounting process: the Management Board, the Audit
Committee, along with the audit committees, internal
audit departments, and authorized employees in the
subsidiaries.
The ICS is based on the budgets and financial results of
subsidiaries as well as the consolidated budget and
financial results of the Group. The departments in the
subsidiaries with responsibility for accounting and
reporting report directly and regularly to the Executive
Board of Directors of the Moscow management company, which in turn regularly reports on business developments to the Management Board of the Petro Welt
Technologies Group. The departments of subsidiaries
monitor and report on planning, budgeting, reporting
processes, as well as on deviation analyses and goal
attainment. They put together monthly, quarterly,
and annual financial reports in line with Russian GAAP
and IFRS requirements.
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Quarterly reporting to the Supervisory Board relates to
the accounting process, which is the main feature of
internal quarterly reporting. However, it also includes a
general report on the economic environment in the oil
and gas field services industry. Other reports for the
Supervisory Board include the Annual Report and the
report by the Management Board focusing on the
annual budget, including the finance, liquidity, and
investment plans.
Financial accounting
Financial accounting in Russia is carried out on the basis
of the 1C program. Inventory and disposal of assets are
the responsibility of the local inventory managers at the
individual subsidiary level. Their roles are stipulated in
the inventory guidelines applying to Group subsidiaries.
Additions to non-current assets are entered into 1C and
are checked against the approved investment plans on
a monthly basis. Depreciation and amortization of
non-current assets is automatically recorded in 1C.
The main document entry in 1C is responsible for
checking, entering and payment preparation of all
invoices. Accounts payable enters all invoices and
payment orders from various creditors. This area
attaches particular importance to checking legal requirements, sales and corporation tax data, and the Group’s
internal regulations such as payment instructions for
signing authorization and value limits. Accounting for
subsidiaries is carried out in line with Russian GAAP by
the accounting staff in the accounting department in
close cooperation with Group management accounting.
On a quarterly basis, the financial accounting departments of subsidiaries implement the transformation
process on their Russian GAAP financial data and
prepare the IFRS packages. Once these have been
finalized, they are then passed on for evaluation by the
Group’s IFRS reporting department. Following the
department’s approval, the data is forwarded for
consolidation.
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IT systems
The 1C system is used for financial accounting. The
Group uses the Oracle Hyperion planning system for
budgeting, management accounting, and reporting.
Safety measures and operational quality
monitoring for 2017–2019
Service quality and safety measures were also core
values for Petro Welt Technologies AG during 2017 and it
is our main priority for the next years. To ensure the
safety of PeWeTe staff in the field and maintain the high
quality of our operations, we continue to take measures
to protect our staff from various possible hazards and to
control risks. These measures include the definition of
PeWeTe's corporate policies and standards.
A root cause analysis of several of the most serious
incidents that occurred in 2016 indicated new threats
and new risks. The analysis disclosed new weaknesses in
some of the existing safety and quality assurance
processes. To address these, the Group strategic
program aimed at minimizing risks and improving the
quality of operating processes has defined four key
phases.
Phase 1: QHSE (Quality, Health, Safety and Environment).
This phase addresses the improvement of authorities
and the corporate culture. During 2016, all operating
segments implemented the OLIMP online training
program.
Phase 2: Hazard and effects management process
(HEMP). Line of fire and injury prevention training is a
part of the HEMP process implemented for KATOBNEFT
and KAToil-DRILLING companies.
Phase 3: Service quality process improvements. Monthly
controls by operating companies and quarterly controls
by management teams have been implemented.
Phase 4: Road safety management. IVMS (In-Vehicle
Monitoring System) tracking systems have been installed
to 50% of heavy vehicles. All contractor cars used for
passenger transportation are equipped with video
monitoring systems.
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Research and Development (R&D)
in accordance with Section 243(3) of the
Austrian Commercial Code
In 2017, Petro Welt Technologies AG did not invest in
R&D activities. The company does not perform any
research and development activities on its own. The
company cooperates with global service providers for
the best “fit for purpose” technologies addressing
clients’ needs and market trends.

Important Events
after the Balance Sheet Date
Petro Welt Technologies AG and Petro Welt HOLDING
(CYPRUS) LIMITED entered into a negotiation of amendment of a currently valid loan agreement. The termination date for liability amounting to EUR 100 million and
the interest payment date according to the amendment
is 31.12.2022. The interest rate will be changed at arm's
length. The addendum is currently in the process of
negotiation and signing.

Economic Expectation and Guidance
The global economy and oil prices in 2018
The stronger economic momentum in 2017 is expected
to carry over into both 2018 and 2019, with global
growth having been revised upward to 3.9% for both
years (0.2 percentage points higher relative to the fall
forecasts). For the two-year forecast horizon, the upward
revisions to the global outlook stem mainly from
advanced economies, where growth is now expected to
exceed 2% in 2018 and 2019. This forecast reflects the
expectation that favorable global financial conditions
and strong sentiment will help maintain the recent
acceleration in demand, especially with respect to
investments, which will have a noticeable impact on
growth in economies with large exports. In addition, the
US tax reform and the associated fiscal stimulus are
expected to temporarily boost US growth, with favorable
demand spillovers for US trading partners—especially
Canada and Mexico—during this period. The expected
global macroeconomic effects account for about onehalf of the cumulative upward revision of the global
growth forecast for 2018 and 2019, with a range of
uncertainty around this baseline projection. Growth this
year and next in the Commonwealth of Independent
States (CIS) is projected to remain above 2%, supported
by a slight upward revision of growth prospects for
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Russia in 2018. As of early January 2018, both the US
dollar and the euro remain close to their August 2017 level
in real terms. (Source: International Monetary Fund (IMF),
World Economic Outlook (WEO) Update, January 2018)
The improving global growth outlook, weather events in
the United States, the extension of the OPEC+ Agreement to limit oil production, and geopolitical tensions in
the Middle East have supported crude oil prices. Between August 2017 (the reference period for the October
2017 WEO Update) and mid-December 2017 (the
reference period for the January 2018 WEO Update),
crude oil prices rose by about 20% to over USD 60 per
barrel, with an additional increase in early January 2018.
The markets expect prices to gradually decline over the
next four to five years; as of mid-December 2017,
medium-term price futures stood at about USD 54 per
barrel, a modest increase from August 2017. The
increase in fuel prices raised headline inflation in
advanced economies, but wage and core-price inflation
remain weak. In emerging market economies, headline
and core inflation have ticked up slightly in recent
months after declining earlier in 2017. (Source: IMF,
World Economic Outlook Update, January 2018)
Amid mounting fiscal pressures and in view of shale
oil’s resilience, several OPEC members along with ten
non-OPEC countries led by Russia agreed to revert to
production cuts to shore up prices (Source: World Bank
2016a). The initial six-month agreement, which went into
effect in January 2017, was subsequently extended twice:
first to March 2018 and then to December 2018. Relatively
high compliance with the agreed cuts, especially by
Saudi Arabia (the dominant OPEC member) and Russia
(the most important non-OPEC oil producer) contributed
to some rebalancing of the oil markets in 2017. How
ever, actual and expected prices did not rise following
these policy announcements, illustrating the reduced
ability of OPEC to influence market conditions as US
shale oil has effectively become the new marginal cost
producer. (Source: World Bank, Global Economic
Prospects, January 2018).

The Russian and Kazakhstan economies in 2018
We expect oil price fluctuations of between USD 60 and
USD 70 per barrel on the global energy market, because
demand will remain relatively stable, as will supply—
depending on the ability of shale oil producers to
propose optional production levels. Thanks to more or
less favorable price conditions, oil producers including
Russian players will be able to generate necessary
profits without huge efforts related to increases in oil
production. Another important aspect is that the OPEC+
Agreement, which limits output, is generally beneficial
for most of the producers.
Growth in Russia is expected to stabilize at around 1.8%
between 2018 and 2020. Russian industrial production
will continue to benefit from trade barriers, because
the sanction regime remains in place and because the
country has launched investment programs in agriculture, infrastructure, and transportation. Growth in
Kazakhstan is projected to reach a moderate 2.6% in
2018 as the one-time effects of both the production
increases at the Kashagan oil field and the fiscal stimulus
wane. Kazakhstan’s growth is expected to rise to 3%
by 2020 as the country reaps the benefits of structural
reforms. The recovery is maintained by higher production levels at the Kashagan oil field (which is exempt
from the production cuts agreed by OPEC and ten
non-OPEC producers) as well as by supportive macro
economic policies. Declining inflation will drive private
consumption.
Guidance for revenues and earnings
The positive development of the company’s key financial
performance indicators in 2017 creates a sound basis
for the reliable generation of profits. The company's
management expects sales revenues to reach about
EUR 335 to EUR 345 million in 2018 and hopes to keep
the EBITDA margin between 22% and 24%. In turn, this
could enable the company to maintain its main indicators of profitability in 2018. This forecast does not take
into account potential external economic shocks.

Vienna, 23 April 2018
Yury Semenov
Chief Executive Officer, CEO
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Valeriy Inyushin
Chief Financial Officer, CFO
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Auditor’s report

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Audit Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Petro Welt Technologies AG, Vienna, Austria, and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our pro
fessional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
however, we do not provide a separate opinion thereon.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2017,
and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EU as well as the additional requirements
stipulated in § 245a UGB (Austrian Commercial Code).

Risk for the Financial Statements
The assessment, whether any impairment (of reversal of
impairment) to the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment should be recognized requires significant
estimation by management.

Basis for our Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU
Regulation 537/2014 ("EU Regulation") and Austrian
Standards on Auditing. These standards require the
audit to be conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities” section of our auditor’s report. We are
independent of the audited Group in accordance with
Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
professional regulations, and we have fulfilled our other
responsibilities under those relevant ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Refer to Note 4, 7 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, the valuation of
property, plant and equipment represents a key audit
matter.
Our Response
— Our audit procedures included testing of the Group's
budgeting process upon which the forecasts are
based as well as the group's discounted cash flow
model including the underlying assumptions by
reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets.
— We used our own internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the assumptions and methodology used by the Group, in particular those relating
to the forecast revenue growth and profit margins.
— We compared the group's assumptions to externally
derived data as well as our own assessments in
relation to key inputs such as projected economic
growth, competition, inflation and discount rates,
as well as performing sensitivity analysis on these
assumptions.
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— We also assessed whether the Group's disclosures
about the sensitivity of the outcome of the impairment assessment to changes in key assumptions
reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of
property, plant and equipment.
Responsibilities of Management and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU as well as the
additional requirements stipulated in § 245a UGB. In
addition, management responsible for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Management is also responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting, unless management either intents to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement – whether
due to fraud or error – and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our audit opinion. Reasonable assurance
represents a high level of assurance, but provides no
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the EU Regulation and Austrian Standards on Auditing
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(and therefore ISA), will always detect a material misstatement, if any. Misstatements may result from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation
and Austrian Standards on Auditing, we exercise pro
fessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.
Moreover:
— We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, we design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to serve as
a basis for our audit opinion. The risk of not detecting
material misstatements resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or override of internal control.
— We obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
— We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
— We conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our audit report to the respective note in
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the consolidated financial statements. If such disclosures are not appropriate, we will modify our audit
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
— We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the notes, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
— We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
— We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
amongst other matters, the planned scope and timing
of our audit as well as significant findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

— We communicate to the audit committee that we
have complied with the relevant professional requirements in respect of our independence, that we will
report any relationships and other events that could
reasonably affect our independence and, where
appropriate, the related safeguards.
— From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit i.e. key audit matters.
We describe these key audit matters in our auditor’s
report unless laws or other legal regulations preclude
public disclosure about the matter or when in very
rare cases, we determine that a matter should not
be included in our audit report because the negative
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public benefits of such
communication.
Report on Other Legal Requirements
Group Management Report
In accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing,
the group management report is to be audited as to
whether it is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements and prepared in accordance with legal
requirements.
Management is responsible for the preparation of the
group management report in accordance with the
Austrian legal requirements.
We have conducted our audit in accordance with
generally accepted standards on the audit of group
management reports as applied in Austria.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the group management report is con
sistent with the consolidated financial statements and
has been prepared in accordance with legal requirements. The disclosures pursuant to Section 243a UGB
(Austrian Commercial Code) are appropriate.
Statement
Based on our knowledge gained in the course of the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and our
understanding of the Group and its environment, we
did not note any material misstatements in the group
management report.
Other Information
Management is responsible for other information. Other
information comprises all information provided in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements, the group management report, and the
auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover any other information and we do not
provide any assurance thereon.
In conjunction with our audit, it is our responsibility
to read this other information and to assess whether,
based on knowledge gained during our audit, it contains
any material inconsistencies with the consolidated
financial statements or any apparent material
misstatement of fact. If we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of fact in other information,
we must report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

A NN U AL REP O RT 2 017 / PE TRO W E LT TE C HN O LO G IE S A G

Additional Information in accordance
with Article 10 EU Regulation
At the Annual General Meeting dated 16 June 2017,
we were elected as group auditors and we were com
missioned as group auditors by the Supervisory Board
on 13 October 2017. We have been the Group’s auditors
from the year ended 31 December 2015, without
interruption.
We declare that our opinion expressed in the “Report
on the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report is consistent with our additional report to
the Audit Committee, in accordance with Article 11 EU
Regulation.
We declare that we have not provided any prohibited
non-audit services (Article 5 Paragraph 1 EU Regulation)
and that we have ensured our independence throughout
the course of the audit, from the audited Group.
Engagement Partner
The engagement partner is Mr. Mag. Yann-Georg Hansa.

Vienna, 23 April 2018
KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftsprüfungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft
Mag. Yann-Georg Hansa
Wirtschaftsprüfer
(Austrian Chartered Accountant)
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017

in EUR thousand

Notes

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Assets
Non-current assets

159,740

170,124

Property, plant and equipment

7

153,787

167,656

Intangible assets

8

2,291

35

Goodwill

6

1,110

-

1,942

540

610

1,893

Other assets
Deferred tax assets

22

278,204

250,651

9

40,132

36,015

Trade receivables

10

97,035

83,707

Bank deposits

13

65,489

10,695

Current assets
Inventories

Other current assets

11

5,783

15,901

Tax receivables

12

878

1,369

Cash and cash equivalents

13

Total assets

68,887

102,964

437,944

420,775

241,956

233,333

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital

14

48,850

48,850

Capital reserve

14

111,987

111,987

Retained earnings

251,889

220,874

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

23

263

215

Currency translation reserve

14

(171,033)

(148,593)

4,620

109,297

Non-current financial liabilities to related parties

15

-

100,000

Deferred tax liabilities

22

3,617

8,244

Employee benefits

23

1,003

1,053

Non-current liabilities

191,368

78,145

Current financial liabilities to related parties

15

112,526

8,709

Trade payables

15

43,427

37,764

Other current liabilities

15

31,429

26,792

11

93

15

3,975

4,787

437,944

420,775

Current liabilities

Advance payments received
Income tax payables
Total equity and liabilities
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Consolidated profit or loss statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

in EUR thousand

Notes

2017

2016

Revenue

16

353,023

304,379

Cost of sales

17

(289,980)

(247,644)

63,043

56,735

18

(24,676)

(19,603)

(510)

-

Other operating income

19

2,205

4,903

Other operating expenses

20

(3,309)

(2,318)

36,753

39,717

Continuing operations

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses

Operating result
Finance income

21

8,716

5,645

Finance costs

21

(5,781)

(4,554)

2,935

1,091

39,688

40,808

(8,663)

(15,784)

31,025

25,024

(10)

475

31,015

25,499

Net finance income/(costs)
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

22

Profit after tax from continuing operations
Profit/(Loss) after tax from discontinued operation (net of income tax)

18, 22

Profit
Basic earnings per share in EUR

24

0.63

0.52

Diluted earnings per share in EUR

24

0.63

0.52
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Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

in EUR thousand

Notes

Profit

2017

2016

31,015

25,499

25,719

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations:
Currency translation differences

14

(13,611)

Net investments

22

(11,619)

37,742

Income tax effect related to net investments

22

2,790

(1,164)

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Net gains on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

22

60

78

Income tax effect related to defined benefit plans

22

(12)

(16)

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

66

(22,392)

62,359

8,623

87,858
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Share
capital

Capital
reserve

Retained
earnings

Remeasurement
of defined
benefit
plans

in EUR thousand

As at 1 January 2016

48,850

111,987

195,375

153

Currency
translation reserve

Total
equity

Functional
currency

Net
investment

(89,084)

(121,806)

145,475

Profit

-

-

25,499

-

-

-

25,499

Currency translation differences

-

-

-

-

25,719

36,578

62,297

Net gains on remeasurement
of defined benefit plans

-

-

-

62

-

-

62

-

-

25,499

62

25,719

36,578

87,858

As at 31 December 2016

Total comprehensive income

48,850

111,987

220,874

215

(63,365)

(85,228)

233,333

As at 1 January 2017

48,850

111,987

220,874

215

(63,365)

(85,228)

233,333

Profit

-

-

31,015

-

-

-

31,015

Currency translation differences

-

-

-

-

(13,611)

(8,829)

(22,440)

Net gains on remeasurement
of defined benefit plans

-

-

-

48

-

-

48

Total comprehensive income

-

-

31,015

48

(13,611)

(8,829)

8,623

48,850

111,987

251,889

263

(76,976)

(94,057)

241,956

As at 31 December 2017
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

in EUR thousand

Notes

2017

2016

39,584

40,691

7,8

46,350

41,757

19, 20

40

761

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses
Loss on the disposal of property , plant and equipment
Foreign exchange loss

21

1,913

540

Net finance income

21

(4,848)

(1,631)

-

(3,249)

(9,427)

(8,143)

Negative goodwill

6

Income taxes paid
Change in Working Capital

4,124

7,652

Change in inventories

(769)

(10,402)

Change in trade and other receivables

(5,520)

9,750

Change in trade and other liabilities

10,413

8,304

Cash flows from operating activities

77,736

78,378

(36,413)

(20,944)

1,167

499

(73,260)

(18,380)

15,078

20,430

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Addition to cash deposits
Withdrawal of cash deposits
Interest received
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash transferred
Loans issued
Cash proceeds from repayment of loans
Cash flows used in investing activities
Withholding tax paid
Cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

6

8,412

4,989

(17,918)

(2,005)

(2,800)

-

953

-

(104,781)

(15,411)

-

(664)

-

(664)

(7,032)

12,196

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(34,077)

74,499

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

102,964

28,465

68,887

102,964

(98)

(76)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Of which: cash flows from discontinued operation
Cash flows from operating activities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Business description

2. Operating environment of the Group

Petro Welt Technologies AG (previously named C.A.T.
oil AG (“the Company”) is a company established under
Austrian law (FN 69011 m). The Company’s registered
office is 1010 Vienna, Kärntner Ring 11-13. The shares
of the Company are traded on the Prime Standard at the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

The majority of the Group’s operations are conducted in
the Russian Federation (Russia). The Russian Federation
displays certain characteristics of an emerging market.
Its economy is overly dependent on the European
market for oil and gas sales, sanctions continue to limit
access to technologies. The legal, tax and regulatory
frameworks continue to develop and are subject to
frequent changes and varying interpretations.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries listed in Note 5 (together
with the Company referred to as the “Group”).
The Group is primarily engaged in supply of technology
and integrated project management for the oil and gas
production industry. The main activities of the Group
include hydraulic fracturing, sidetrack drilling, drilling
and remedial as well as auxiliary services.
The group’s operations are located in Russian Federation
and in Kazakhstan.
Average number of employees was 3,535 in 2017,
including 332 employees of management and office staff
(2016: 3,313, including 280 employees of management
and office staff).
The ultimate beneficiary owner of the Group is Mr Maurice
Dijols. The Company’s immediate parent companies are
Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) (former C.A.T.
Holding Limited (Cyprus) and Joma Industrial Source Corp.
These consolidated financial statements are published in
German and English languages. The German version of
the consolidated financial statements prevails.

Russian economy in 2017 is featured by lower level of
uncertainty, soft monetary policy and moderate modification of taxation system due to the upcoming presi
dential elections. However, state influence in the oil &
gas sector is high, limiting access for foreign investment
and domestic fuel demand remains weak.
The average price of Urals crude oil in January –
December 2017 amounted to USD 53,03 per barrel,
according to the Ministry of Finance. For the 2016 year
it was USD 41,9 per barrel. Thus, during the year, the
average price per barrel of Urals crude increased by
26.6% in the reporting period. The average Urals price in
December 2017 was USD 63,61 per barrel, which is 22%
higher than in December 2016 (USD 52,08 per barrel).
In 2017 the ruble rate were stable and fluctuated within
the corridor 56-61 rubles per dollar.
In addition to Russia, the Group conducts operations in
Kazakhstan. The economy of Kazakhstan was influenced
by the volatile dynamics of oil prices, but the exchange
rate of tenge against the us dollar strengthened (from
342 to 326 tenge for $1), inflation slowed, the base rate
decreased, economic activity is growing following global
oil price.
These events may have a further significant impact on
the Group’s future operations and financial position,
the effect of which is difficult to determine. The future
economic and regulatory situation and its impact on the
Group’s operations may differ from management’s
current assessment.
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3. Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European
Union (EU). Petro Welt Technologies AG and its sub
sidiary companies maintain their accounting records
according to the regulations applicable in their country
of registration. These financial statements are based on
such financial books and records adjusted in order to
comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU.
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.
Summary of principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements is set out in
Note 4. The policies have been consistently applied to
all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
(b) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Euro, which is the functional currency of the parent
company. A functional currency of the Russian foreign
subsidiaries is the Russian Ruble ("RUB"). A functional
currency of Petro Welt Technologies Kazakhstan LLP is
Kazakhstan Tenge (“KZT”).
All financial information presented in Euro has been
rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.
(c) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.
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Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:
— Note 16 – revenue;
— Note 4 – useful lives of property,
plant and equipment;
— Note 7, 8 – impairment test: key assumptions
underlying recoverable amounts;
—N
 ote 22 – recognition of deferred tax assets:
availability of future taxable profit against which
carry-forward tax losses can be used;
—N
 otes 26 – recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

4. Significant accounting policies
New standards and interpretations
The following changes to the standards became man
datory on January 1, 2017, but did not have significant
influence on the consolidated financial statements:
Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) released
on 29 January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2017 or after that date. During
2017 there were no cash movement between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.
The recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized
losses – Amendment to IAS 12 issued on January 19,
2016 and effective for annual periods, beginning on
1 January 2017 or after this date.
Annual improvements to International financial reporting standards for 2014-2016 (released on 8 December
2016 and coming into force, in terms of application of
amendments to the IFRS (IFRS) 12 – for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2017 or after this date).
A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards
and Interpretations are not yet effective as at 31 December 2017, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Out of these pronouncements, the following will have a potential impact
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on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Group plans to adopt these pronouncements when they
become effective.
(a) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes. IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The standard establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customers must be capitalized as an
asset and amortized on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the asset relates.
The Group provides oil field services. The Group is
specialized in services which increase the productivity
of new and existing oil and gas formations. The main
activities of the Group include hydraulic fracturing,
sidetrack drilling, drilling, remedial as well as auxiliary
services and delivery of proppant.
(a) Sale of proppant
For contracts with customers in which the sale of
proppant is generally expected to be the only performance obligation, adoption of IFRS 15 is not expected
to have any impact on the Group’s revenue and profit
or loss. The Group expects revenue recognition to occur
at the point in time when control of the proppant is
transferred to the customer, generally upon delivery
of the goods.
(b) Rendering of oil field services
The Group’s well services segment provides hydraulic
fracturing, sidetrack drilling, drilling, remedial as well
as auxiliary services.
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The Group concluded that sidetrack drilling and drilling
services are satisfied over time given that the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
The performance obligation is the drilling services for a
well. The Group recognizes sidetrack drilling and drilling
revenue using the output method by reference to the
stage of completion. The transaction price is determined
on the contract level and then allocated to the wells
based on the stand-alone price.
The Group recognizes hydraulic fracturing and auxiliary
services revenue at a point of time as the period of
providing these services is short-term. The transaction
price is determined on the contract level and then
allocated to each individual fracturing operation based
on the stand-alone price.
Based on management’s preliminary assessment
adoption of IFRS 15 will not significantly impact the
Group’s revenue recognition for services.
(c) Presentation and disclosure requirements
The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15
are more detailed than under current IFRS. Many of the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are new and the
Group is assessing the impact of these disclosures
requirements. In particular, the Group expects that the
notes to the financial statements will be expanded
because of the disclosure of significant judgements
made when determining the transaction price of those
contracts that include variable consideration, how the
transaction price has been allocated to the performance
obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the
stand-alone selling prices of each performance obligation. However, on transition, the effect of these changes
is not expected to be material for the Group.
(d) Transition
The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method, with the effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial application
(i.e. 1 January 2018). As a result, the Group will not apply
the requirements of IFRS 15 to the comparative period
presented.
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(b) IFRS 9 Financial instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sets out requirements for
recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
Classification – Financial assets
IIFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement
approach for financial assets that reflects the business
model in which assets are managed and their cash flow
characteristics.
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The standard
eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.
Based on its assessment, the Group does not believe
that the new classification requirements will have a
material impact on its accounting for trade receivables,
loans, investments in debt securities and investments in
equity securities that are managed on a fair value basis.
Impairment – Financial assets and contract assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with
a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model.
This will require considerable judgement about how
changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be
determined on a probability-weighted basis.
The new impairment model will apply to financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, except for
investments in equity instruments, and to contract
assets.
Under IFRS 9, loss allowances will be measured on either
of the following bases:
— 12-month ECLs. These are ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and
— lifetime ECLs. These are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
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Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of
a financial asset at the reporting date has increased
significantly since initial recognition and 12-month ECL
measurement applies if it has not. An entity may determine that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased
significantly if the asset has low credit risk at the reporting date. However, lifetime ECL measurement always
applies for trade receivables and contract assets without
a significant financing component; the Group has chosen
to apply this policy also for trade receivables and
contract assets with a significant financing component.
The Group believes that impairment losses are likely to
increase and become more volatile for assets in the
scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model. Based on the
impairment methodology described below, the Group
has estimated that application of IFRS 9’s impairment
requirements at 1 January 2018 results in additional
impairment losses as follows.
Trade and other receivables
Most part of the Group’s trade receivables relates to the
largest Russian and Kazakh oil companies – LUKOIL,
Gazprom Neft, Rosneft, Tomskneft, Munaifieldservice
and others which are rated as B1 to Baa3 based on
Moody’s ratings as at 31 December 2017.
The estimated ECLs were calculated based on the
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures.
Probability of default (PD) and loss given default (LGD)
were used for the assessment of expected credit losses.
Probability of default corresponds to the long-term
average default rate for each rating category and was
estimated according to a study "2016 Annual Global
Default Study and Rating Transitions" by Standard and
Poor's. The rating category was determined on the basis
of the minimum rating of three international rating
agencies (Moody’s, S&P and Fitch). The PD level is
calculated for the period before repayment of receivables with indicators of a significant increase in credit
risk, otherwise it was calculated for the period until
repayment, but not more than a year. LGD parameters
generally reflect an assumed recovery rate which is
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estimated at a constant level of 45% according to
"Basel II: International Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards" for corporate borrowers.

The following table provides information about the
estimated exposure to credit risk for trade receivables,
including contract assets, as at 1 January 2018:

Carrying amount
of Trade receivables
Equivalent to
external
credit rating
by Moody’s

A1
B1–Ba3

Estimated impairment
loss allowance

Carrying
amount
of Trade
receivables

Estimated
weightedaverage
loss rate

Under
IFRS 9

Recognised
under
IAS 39

Estimated
additional
impairment
recognized
at 1 January
2018

3,900

0.00%

-

-

-

No

Creditimpaired

400

0.00%

-

-

-

No

76,238

0.09%

65

-

65

No

No rating

16,497

3.43%

583

521

62

Yes

Total

97,035

-

648

521

127

-

Baa3

The following table provides information about the estimated exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and other
receivables as at 1 January 2018:

Estimated additional impairment
recognised at 1 January 2018

Trade and other receivables

127

Total impairment losses

127

Estimated adjustment to equity
at 1 January 2018

Decrease in retained earnings

127

Decrease in equity

127
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Cash and cash equivalent
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which are rated
Ba2- to Ba1, based on Moody’s ratings as at 31 December 2017. The Group monitors changes in credit risk by
tracking published external credit ratings and licence
status of the financial institution.
The estimated impairment on cash and cash equivalents
was calculated based on the 12-month expected loss
basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.
The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents
have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings
of the counterparties and the validity of a licence of each
financial institution.
The Group believes that impairment losses do not
increase significantly for cash and cash equivalents in
the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model.
Classification – Financial liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39
for the classification of financial liabilities.
However, under IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities
designated as at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss,
whereas under IFRS 9 these fair value changes are
generally presented as follows:
— the amount of change in the fair value that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
is presented in OCI; and
— the remaining amount of change in the fair value is
presented in profit or loss.
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities
at FVTPL and it has no current intention to do so. The
Group’s assessment did not indicate any material impact
regarding the classification of financial liabilities at
1 January 2018.
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Hedge accounting
The requirements for hedge accounting have been
adjusted for greater consistency with risk management.
When initially applying IFRS 9, the Group may choose as
its accounting policy to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of IAS 39 instead of the
requirements in IFRS 9. The Group has not applied
hedge accounting as of 31 December 2017, and,
therefore, the initial application of IFRS 9 will not
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements.
Transition
The Group will take advantage of the exemption allowing
it not to restate comparative information for prior
periods with respect to classification and measurement
(including impairment) changes. Differences in the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will
generally be recognised in retained earnings and
reserves as at 1 January 2018.
The determination of the business model within which a
financial asset is held have to be made on the basis of
the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
initial application.
(c) IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS
17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases – Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities
that apply IFRS 15 at or before the date of initial
application of IFRS 16.
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to
the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance or operating leases.
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The Group is currently assessing the potential impact
of adopting IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements. The actual impact of applying IFRS 16 on the
financial statements in the period of initial application
will depend on future economic conditions, including the
Group’s borrowing rate at 1 January 2019, the composition of the Group’s lease portfolio at that date, the
Group’s latest assessment of whether it will exercise any
lease renewal options and the extent to which the Group
chooses to use practical expedients and recognition
exemptions.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amounted to TEUR 4,541 thousand, on an undiscounted
basis (see Note 7).
In addition, the nature of expenses related to those
leases will now change as IFRS 16 replaces the straightline operating lease expense with a depreciation charge
for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease
liabilities.
It is expected that the following standards and interpretations will not have significant impact on the group's
consolidated financial statements:
IFRIC 22 Transactions in foreign currency and advance
payment of compensation released on 8 December 2016
and will become effective for annual periods beginning
on January 1, 2018 or after that date. The interpretation
will resolve the issue of determining the date transactions for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
used for the initial recognition of the relevant asset,
expense or income (or part thereof) upon derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary obligation
arising from prepayment in foreign currency. Currently,
the Group is assessing how the interpretation will affect
the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty in the recognition of income tax"
issued on 7 June 2017 and is effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2019 or after that date. The
group is currently assessing the impact of this standard
on Its consolidated financial statement.
Sale or contribution of assets to an associate or joint
venture by Investor - amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
issued on 11 September 2014 and take effect for annual
periods beginning on a date to be determined By the IASB.
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment issued on
20 June 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning
on 1 January 2018 or after this date.
Transfers to or from investment property – Amendments
to IAS 40 released on 8 December 2016 and will become
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2018
or after that date.
Annual improvements to International financial reporting standards, 2014-2016-amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28 issued on 8 December 2016 effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 dates.
Characteristics of early redemption, assuming a negative
compensation – Amendments to IFRS 9 issued on
12 October 2017 and will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 on or after
that date.
Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures –
Amendments to IAS 28 issued on 12 October 2017
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.
Annual improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 – Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 issued on
12 December 2017 and become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts" issued on 18 May 2017
and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. The group assesses the impact
of this standard on its consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 19 "Employee benefits" issued on
7 February 2018 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.
All intragroup balances and transactions, including
income, expenses, dividends and unrealized gains on
transactions between Group members are eliminated in
full. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the policies
adopted by the Group.
Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If the aggregate of
consideration transferred, any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment.
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Discontinued operation
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations. Classification as a
discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when
the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier.
Financial instruments
The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into
the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading and include shares.
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Held to maturity
includes quoted non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group has both the intention and ability to hold
to maturity.
Loans and receivables
are a category of financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.
Available-for-sale financial assets
are carried at fair value. Interest income on available
for sale debt securities is calculated using the effective
interest method and recognised in profit or loss.
The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities
into the other financial liabilities category.
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Initial recognition of financial instruments
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recorded
at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value at initial
recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price.
A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if
there is a difference between fair value and transaction
price which can be evidenced by other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or
by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data
from observable markets.
All purchases and sales of financial instruments that
require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to deliver a financial asset.
All other purchases and sales are recognised on the
settlement date with the change in value between the
commitment date and settlement date not recognised
for assets carried at cost or amortized cost; recognised
in profit or loss for trading investments and recognised
in equity for assets classified as available-for-sale.
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and the loss event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and where observable
data indicate there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised
in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
Financial assets carried at amortized cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded within
net interest and expenses in profit or loss. Loans and
receivables together with associated allowance are
written of if there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group. If, in subsequent years, the
amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases
because of event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the recovered amount is credited to profit
or loss.
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The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset original effective rate.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when (i) the
asset is redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the
asset have otherwise expired, or (ii) the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assets, or (iii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership but has not retained control. Control is
retained if the counterparty does not have the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party without the need to impose additional
restrictions on the sale.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of
when the payment is received. Revenue is measured
at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
excluding discounts, taxes and duty.
Sales are shown net of value added tax (VAT) and
discounts, after eliminating sales within the Group.
The following specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recognised:
Contract revenue
includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus
any variations in contract works, claims and incentive
payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will
result in revenue and can be measured reliably.
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If the outcome of construction contract can be estimated
reliably, then the contract revenue is recognised in profit
or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract. The stage of completion is assessed with
reference to surveys of work performed or completion
of a physical proportion of the contract work. Contract
expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create
an asset related to future contract activity. An expected
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
Revenues on sales
of spare parts, miscellaneous production and services
are recognised when goods are dispatched or services
rendered to customers, as this is normally the date
when risks and rewards of the ownership are transferred to customers.
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount
less provision made for impairment of these receivables
and include value added taxes. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due to the original terms of the
agreement. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of expected cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest for similar
borrowings. The amount of the provision is recognised
in profit or loss.
Value added tax
Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax
authorities on the earlier of collection of the receivables
from customers, or delivery of the goods or services to
customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable against
output VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The tax
authorities permit settlement of VAT on a net basis. VAT
related to sales and purchases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position on a gross
basis and disclosed separately as an asset and liability.
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Where provision has been made for impairment of
receivables, impairment loss is recorded for the gross
amount of the debtor, including VAT.
Inventories
Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined on the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprise material, direct labour and
the appropriate indirect manufacturing costs (based on
normal operating capacity). Obsolete and slow-moving
inventories are written down, taking into account their
expected use and their future realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion
and selling expenses.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits held
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition
for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.

Construction in progress is accounted for based on
actual costs less provision for impairment. Upon completion, assets are transferred to corresponding cate
gory of property, plant and equipment at their carrying
amount. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until the asset is available for use.
Costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed
when incurred through consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Costs of replacing of major parts or components
are capitalized and the replaced part is retired.
At each reporting date management assesses whether
there is any indication of impairment of property, plant
and equipment. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount, which is
determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount and the difference
is recognized as an expense (impairment loss) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognized for an asset in prior years is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount.
Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over
the estimated useful lives:

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and is recognised net
within other income/other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Useful life

Number of years

Buildings

5 to 33 years

Plant and machinery

2 to 15 years

Operational and office equipment, data processing equipment

2 to 15 years

Vehicles

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount
that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset less the estimated cost of disposal, if the asset
was already of the age and in the condition expected at
the end of its useful life. The residual value of an asset is
nil if the Group expects to use the asset until the end
of its useful life. The asset’s residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date. Gains and losses arising from the
retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment
are included in profit or loss as incurred.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets include computer software and rights
to use this software. Acquired items of intangible assets
are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring them to use. The items of intangible
assets are amortized using straight-line method.
Patents that are acquired by the Group, which have
finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is generally recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that
they are available for use since this most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful
lives for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:
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2 to 7 years

— patents: 10-20 years;
— software 3-10 years.
Operating leases
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines
whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease.
This will be the case if the fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset from the lessor to the Group,
the total lease payments are charged to the profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Pension and post-employment benefits
Defined benefit pension plans
estimate the amount of pension benefit that an em
ployee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.
The net liability is recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans operated by the Group is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets.
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The defined benefit obligations are calculated by
independent actuary. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations are determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid associated with the
operations of the plans, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liabilities.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from measurement
of pension benefit obligations are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Past service cost is immediately
recognized in consolidated profit or loss statement
within operating expenses.
Other liabilities to employees after the termination
of their employment.
Group pays a one-time financial assistance in connection
with the achievement of the employees of the anniver
sary of age, lump benefits upon retirement or disability,
reallocation from Far North territory compensation etc.
the size of these payments usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and minimum
wage rates that are used in Group companies.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions for the calculation of
liabilities for these types of payments are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment test
for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s (“CGU”)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are colla
borated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated
profit or loss statement.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made
at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses
no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the con
solidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Income taxes
Income taxes have been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Russian legislation
and legislation of other jurisdictions in which the Group
performs the business during the reporting period. The
income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred
tax and is recognized in the profit or loss except if it is
recognized in other comprehensive income because it
relates to transactions that are also recognized, in the
same or a different period, in other comprehensive
income.
Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of
taxable profits and losses for the current or prior periods.
Deferred income tax is recognized for tax loss carry
forwards and temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for the financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred
taxes are not recognized for temporary differences on
initial recognition of goodwill or any asset or liability if
the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date which
are expected to apply to the period when the temporary
differences will reverse or the tax loss carry forwards
will be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
netted only within the individual companies of the
Group.
Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences
and tax loss carry forwards are recorded in the statement of financial position only to the extent that it is
probable that the difference will be available against
which the deductions can be utilized.
The recognized deferred tax asset represents amount
of income tax which may be recovered through future
income tax expenses and is recorded in the statement
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of financial position. Deferred income tax assets are
recorded to the extent that realization of the related tax
benefits is probable. The future taxable profits and the
amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future
are based on management expectations that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are recognized initially at cost
which is the fair value of the proceeds received, net of
transaction costs incurred. Loans and borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.
Interest expense, which is currently due, is recorded
within short-term loans and borrowings.
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of Group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is
the difference between amortised cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and
the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
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Foreign currency differences arising in translation are
recognised in profit or loss, except for differences arising
on the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and
—A
 ll resulting exchange differences are recognized as a
separate component of other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations
The results and financial position of all of the Company's
subsidiaries that have a functional currency which is
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

The financial statements of the Russian companies are
translated into the presentation currency (EUR) using the
official exchange rates of the Russian Federation.

— Assets and liabilities for each reporting date
presented are translated at the closing rate at
that reporting date;
— Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and each statement of other comprehensive

Currency (1 EUR=)

The relevant exchange rates used for foreign currency
translation in relation to the Euro are as follows:

Closing rate as at
12/31/2017

Closing rate as at
12/31/2016

Average rate
2017

Average rate
2016

68.8668

63.8111

65,9014

74.2310

Kazakhstan tenge (KZT)

398.23

352.42

368,52

378.32

US-Dollar (USD)

1.1956

1.0520

1.1294

1.1073

Russian Ruble (RUB)

The relevant exchange rates used for foreign currency translation in relation to the U.S. dollar are as follows:

Currency (1 USD=)

Russian Ruble (RUB)
Kazakhstan tenge (KZT)

Closing rate as at
12/31/2017

Closing rate as at
12/31/2016

Average rate
2017

Average rate
2016

57.6002

60.6569

58,3529

67.0349

332.33

333.29

326,08

341.76
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Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity.
When a foreign operation is disposed of such that
control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amount in the translation reserve related
to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation while retaining control,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the settlement of a monetary item receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future,
foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such
item form part of a net investment in a foreign operation
and are recognised in other comprehensive income,
and presented in the translation reserve in equity.
Exchange differences and related income tax effect
resulting from intra-Group loans issued by Petro Welt
Technologies AG to OOO KAT.oil Leasing, which are
part of the net investment, are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has present
legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events,
it is probable that a significant outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group’s other components. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Management board to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance.
Segment results that are reported to the Management
board include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate
assets (primarily the Group’s headquarters), head office
expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.
Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s
length basis.
Dividends
Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which
they are declared. Dividends declared after the reporting
date and before the consolidated financial statements
are authorized for issue are disclosed in the subsequent
events note.
Earnings per share
Earnings per share are determined by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the reporting period.
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5. Subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Group and the share held by the Group are as follows:

Entity

Country of incorporation/
principal place of business

12/31/2017
% share

12/31/2016
% share

Activity

Kogalym, Russia

100

100

Oil field services

Nizhnevartovsk, Russia

100

100

Oil field services

100

100

Procurement of production
materials and equipment to
operational Group companies

100

100

Leasing of production equipment
to operational Group companies
Oil field services

OOO KATKoneft
OOO KATOBNEFT
OOO Trading House KAToil

Kogalym, Russia

OOO KAToil Leasing

Kogalym, Russia

OOO KAT-oil Drilling

Kogalym, Russia

100

100

Kyzylorda, Kazakhstan

100

100

Oil field services

TOO Petro Welt Kazakhstan
OOO Petro Welt Technologies

Moscow, Russia

OOO Wellprop

Kopeisk, Russia

Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH

Vienna, Austria

100

100

Consulting and management
services to the Group companies

100

-

Production of proppant

100

100

Engineering and reconnaissance of
geological formations

PEWETE Evolution LIMITED

Lymassol, Cyprus

100

100

Management services

Wellprop Cyprus LIMITED

Lymassol, Cyprus

100

-

Management services

By the end of 2015, due to internal restructuring and
optimization of internal processes all activities and
personnel of OOO Trading House KAToil were transferred to OOO Petro Welt Technologies. OOO Trading
House KAToil will be liquidated after completion of all
legal formalities.

TEUR 364,484 and consolidated net profit for the period
would have been TEUR 41,031. In determining these
amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments, that arose on the date of acquisition would
have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2017.

6. Acquisition of subsidiary

Total consideration measured on a provisional basis
amounted to USD 24,000,000 (EUR 19,996,675),
including already paid consideration of USD 22,000,000
(EUR 18,370,674). Share purchase agreement (SPA) includes consideration adjustment, which depends on the
specified amounts of net debt, net working capital at
closing date determined in SPA. Management currently
is in the process of negotiation with the seller in relation
to final amount of consideration adjustment. Trade and
other payables were also measured on a provisional basis.
The acquisition resulted in the recognition of goodwill in
the amount of TEUR 1.110. The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of TEUR 480 relating to external legal
fees. These costs have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On 21 September 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the
shares and voting interests in Carbo Ceramics Cyprus
Limited. Carbo Ceramics Cyprus Limited (was renamed
to WellProp Cyprus Limited on 28 November 2017) is the
sole owner of Carbo Ceramics Eurasia Limited Liability
Company incorporated in Russian Federation (was
renamed to WellProp Limited Liability Company on 8
November 2017) engaged in production of proppant
used in the hydraulic fracturing.
From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2017 OOO
WellProp contributed revenue of TEUR 3,264 and net
profit of TEUR 490 to the Group’s results. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, management
estimates that consolidated revenue would have been
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The following table summarises the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition.

Note

Recognised fair values
on acquisition

Property, plant and equipment

7

9,634

Intangible assets

8

2,293

in EUR thousand

Non-current assets

Other assets

35

Current assets
Inventories

6,296

Trade and other receivables

5,320

Cash and cash equivalents

452

Other assets

33

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

22

(1,811)

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables determined provisionally

(3,365)

Total identifiable net assets

18,887

Total consideration determined provisionally

(19,997)

Goodwill

1,110

Measurement of fair values
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows.

Assets acquired

Valuation technique

Property, plant and equipment

Market comparison technique and cost technique: The valuation model considers quoted
market prices for similar items when available, and depreciated replacement cost when
appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration
as well as functional and economic obsolescence.

Inventories

The cost approach: The fair value is determined based on the definition of market value
based on the cost required to substitute the valuation object in the market conditions
prevailing at the valuation date

Intangible assets
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The Relief-from-Royalty method: The Relief-from-Royalty method is a common method to
value intangible assets that can be passed for utilization of royalty payments.
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7. Property, plant and equipment
Movements of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

in EUR thousand

Equipment
electronic
data processing

Advance
payments

Total

Land and
buildings

Motor
vehicles

Machinery,
fittings,
equipment

10,523

12,612

281,434

583

387

305,539

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2016
Additions

694

423

16,268

21

2,747

20,153

Additions through business combinations

220

215

1,789

8

-

2,232

(3)

(502)

(9,429)

(22)

(415)

(10,371)

2,705

4,119

62,907

133

477

70,341

14,139

16,867

352,969

723

3,196

387,894

958

1,886

25,591

554

6,554

35,543

6,533

329

2,772

-

-

9,634

-

-

3,095

-

(3,095)

-

(1)

(314)

(3,214)

(32)

-

(3,561)

Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2016
Additions
Additions through business combinations
Transfer
Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2017

(1,342)

(1,317)

(26,316)

(213)

(378)

(29,566)

20,287

17,451

354,897

1,032

6,277

399,944

5,610

9,354

135,680

426

-

151,070

1,064

896

39,590

97

-

41,647

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2016
Depreciation and impairment losses

(3)

(375)

(8,280)

(22)

-

(8,680)

1,631

3,379

31,091

100

-

36,201

8,302

13,254

198,081

601

-

220,238

1,178

1,180

43,826

116

-

46,300

Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2016
Depreciation and impairment losses

(1)

(277)

(2,479)

(29)

-

(2,786)

(799)

(1,013)

(15,626)

(157)

-

(17,595)

8,680

13,144

223,802

531

-

246,157

As at 1 January 2016

4,913

3,258

145,754

157

387

154,469

As at 31 December 2016

5,837

3,613

154,888

122

3,196

167,656

As at 31 December 2017

11,607

4,307

131,095

501

6,277

153,787

Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2017
Net book value

Depreciation expense and impairment losses for 2017
of TEUR 46,153 (2016: TEUR 41,359) has been charged
to cost of sales and TEUR 147 (2016: TEUR 288) to
administrative expenses.
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Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use.

87

C O N SO LI DA T E D FIN A N CIA L S T A T E M E N T S

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based
on available data from binding sales transactions for
similar assets or observable market price less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model
(DCF model). The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating
unit (CGU) being tested.

The Group's management believes that the following
Group’s subsidiaries constitute separate cash generating
units: OOO KATKoneft, OOO KATOBNEFT, OOO KAT-oil
Drilling, Petro Welt Technologies Kazakhstan LLP.
The recoverable amounts of these CGUs were identified
based on the value in use, determined by discounting
future cash flows to be generated from the continuing
use of the CGUs.
The following key assumptions were used when the
impairment test was performed:

Key assumptions used in impairment test

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Information used

Actual operating results for the year
2017 and business plans for 2018–2022

Actual operating results for the year
2016 and business plans for 2017–2021

Forecast period

5 years (2018–2022)

5 years (2017–2021)

Consolidated forecast of volume of hydraulic
fracturing and drilling operations

Based on management forecast of future trends and developments of the
business approved by senior management

Raw materials and production services price

Estimates are obtained from published Producer Price Index by the Ministry of
Economic Development of the Russian Federation

Forecast of capital expenditures

Based on the management forecasts of maintenance capital expenditures for
modernization and reconstruction program

Terminal growth rate

4.15%–6.1%
3.96%
Average producer price index in terminal period

Weighted average cost of capital

15.1%–18.1%

16.5%

Current market assessment of the risks specific to cash-generating unit, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets
that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on specific circumstances of the Group and its operating segments
and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into
account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return
on investment by the Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interestbearing borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Segment-specific risk is
incorporated by applying individual beta factors. These factors are evaluated
annually based on publicly available market data.

The recoverable amount of each CGU within the Group
was higher than the book value of property, plant and
equipment and net working capital as at 31.12.2017 and
31.12.2016. In 2016 the Group fully reversed impairment
loss allocated to machinery and equipment in the
amount of TEUR 2,293.
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Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
The calculation of value in use for cash-generating units
is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
— Consolidated forecast of volume of hydraulic
fracturing and drilling operations;
— Discount rate;
— Index of inflation.
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12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Equality of value in use and carrying amount becomes possible in
case of revenue decrease by 0.4% for CGU KATOBNEFT, by 11%
for CGU KAToil-Drilling.

Decrease of revenue by 3% and by 5.7% can lead to equality of
value in use and carrying amount of CGU OOO KAToil-Drilling and
CGU OOO KATOBNEFT respectively.

Discount rate – with all other assumptions held constant.
12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Increase of discount rate to 23.2% and 15.5% would result in
equality of value in use and carrying amount of CGU OOO
KAToil-Drilling and CGU OOO KATOBNEFT respectively.

Increase of discount rate to 19% and 23.3% would result in
equality of value in use and carrying amount of CGU OOO
KAToil-Drilling and CGU OOO KATOBNEFT respectively.

Index of inflation – Management has considered the possibility of greater-than-forecast increases in inflation index.
12/31/2017

12/31/2016

The equality of value in use and carrying amount of CGU OOO
KAToil-Drilling and CGU OOO KATOBNEFT will be achieved in
case of decrease the index of inflation for operation price
by 3.4% and by 0.1% respectively.

The equality of value in use and carrying amount of CGU OOO
KAToil-Drilling and CGU OOO KATOBNEFT will be achieved in case
of of decrease the index of inflation for operation price by 1% and
by 1.8% respectively.

Operating lease
The Group leases a number of land areas owned by
local governments and production buildings under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. Land lease

in EUR thousand

Less than one year
Between one and five years

payments are determined by lease agreements. The
future lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

1,473

538

798

741

More than five years

2,270

2,449

Total

4,541

3,728

During 2017 operating rentals expenses of TEUR 646
(2016: TEUR 622) were included in cost of sales,
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TEUR 941 (2016: TEUR 839) were charged to administrative expenses.
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8. Intangible assets and goodwill

The right to us
production
technology

Software and
other intangible
assets

Total

-

482

482

Additions

-

40

40

Disposals

-

-

-

Exchange differences

-

68

68

-

590

590

in EUR thousand

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2016

At 31 December 2016

2,293

-

2,293

Disposals

-

5

5

Exchange differences

9

(41)

(32)

2,302

554

2,856

-

385

385

Additions through business combinations

At 31 December 2017
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2016
Amortization and impairment losses

-

110

110

Disposals

-

-

-

Exchange differences

-

60

60

At 31 December 2016
Amortization and impairmentlosses

-

555

555

37

13

50

1

(41)

(40)

38

527

565

-

97

97

As at 31 December 2016

-

35

35

As at 31 December 2017

2,264

27

2,291

Exchange differences
At 31 December 2017
Net book value
As at 1 January 2016

In 2017 as a result of the acquisition disclosed in Note 6,
the Group recognised intangible assets represented by
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the patents used in production of proppants by
OOO WellProp.
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9. Inventories

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

28,939

29,682

Raw material

7,828

4,188

Fuel and lubricants

2,192

2,145

Finished goods and goods for resale

1,173

-

40,132

36,015

Spare parts and other materials

Total

As at 31 December 2017 no inventories have been
pledged as collateral for borrowings (31 December
2016: nil).

TEUR 97,035 (31 December 2016: TEUR 83,707), including
receivables under construction contracts in progress.
For further information see note 16 Revenue.

10. Trade receivables

11. Other current assets

Trade receivables comprise the receivables under
service contracts ordinary activities in the amount of

Other current assets comprise the following items:

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

362

362

Value added tax

2,782

3,563

Advance payments

1,129

2,244

Deferred expenses

25

21

Receivables from related parties

Other receivables

1,485

9,711

Total

5,783

15,901
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Withholding tax liability of TEUR 7,716 related to dividends distributed to its shareholder in prior periods
and corresponding receivable from Petro Welt Holding
Limited (Cyprus) (shareholder) was accounted in 2015.
The liability for withholding taxes related to dividends
distributed to its shareholder in prior periods as the
Company previously applied tax withholding exemption
under Sec 94s Austrian Income Tax Act (“EstG”; Sec 94/2
after 15 December 2012). During 2015 it became doubtful that the Company was meeting the requirements for
claiming such tax exemption during prior reporting
periods and corresponding withholding tax liability and
receivable from shareholder was recognized. As at
31 December 2015 the liability for withholding taxes was

fully settled with Tax authorities. Receivable from Petro
Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) (shareholder) as at
31 December 2015 amounted to TEUR 7,716.
During 2016 the Tax authorities accepted the validity of
applied exemption and considered to refund full amount
of tax paid in 2015. As at 31 December 2016 other
receivables include receivable of Withholding tax from
Tax authorities of TEUR 7,716 and the amount was
returned by Tax authorities in January 2017.
Fair value of current assets approximate their carrying
value.

12. Tax receivables
Tax receivables comprise the following items:

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Income tax receivables

639

1,306

Other tax receivables

239

63

Total

878

1,369

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

1

1

2,501

1,135

13. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

in EUR thousand

Petty cash
Bank balances
Short-term deposits

66,385

101,828

Total

68,887

102,964
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As at 31 December 2017 cash in bank accounts denominated in Euro was TEUR 835, in US Dollar was TEUR 228,
in Russian Rubles were TEUR 1,438 (31 December 2016:
in Euro – TEUR 360, in Kazakhstan tenge – TEUR 41,
in US Dollar – TEUR 353).
As at 31 December 2017 bank deposits with maturities
of three months or less denominated in Russian Rubles
were TEUR 58,727, in Kazakhstan tenge were TEUR 396,
in US Dollar was 1,921, in Euro was TEUR 5,341
(31 December 2016: in Russian Rubles – TEUR 86,337,
in Euro – TEUR 10,024, in US Dollar – TEUR 3,728, in
Kazakhstan tenge – TEUR 1,739) and bear interest of
6.0%-7.55% (31 December 2016: 7.6%-10.5%).

Bank deposits with maturities of three-five months were
TEUR 65,489 (31 December 2016: TEUR 10,695) and bear
interest of (0.6%-7.55%) in Russian Rubles deposits
(2016: 0.01%-1.7%).
There was no significant cash restricted from use as
at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a
sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in note 28.

14. Equity
The carrying value of share capital and the legal share
capital value issued and fully paid up consist of the
following:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

No. of shares

Legal statutory value

Carrying amount

No. of shares

Legal statutory value

Carrying amount

48,850,000

EUR 1

48,850

48,850,000

EUR 1

48,850

The Company’s share capital amounted to TEUR 48,850
(31 December 2016: TEUR 48,850) and consists of
48,850,000 issued and outstanding no-par-value shares.
The shares are listed on the Prime Standard, Official
Market, on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. All of the
shares are admitted for trading. No preferred shares
have been issued. There are no restrictions regarding
voting rights or transmission rights of the shares. The
Company has not acquired any of its own shares to date.

Since 16 January 2015 Mr. Maurice Gregoire Dijols
directly and indirectly controls in total 42,528,711 voting
rights in the Company (corresponding to approx. 87.06%
of the issued shares).

The shareholders are entitled to exercise their rights,
in particular their voting rights, at the Annual General
Meeting. Each share in the Company entitles the holder
to one vote. There are no multiple or preferential voting
rights and there is no cap on the number of voting rights.

Currency translation reserve
Currency translation reserve comprises the following
items:
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Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the share premium from
the issue of shares and amounted to TEUR 111,987
(31 December 2016: TEUR 111,987).
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in EUR thousand

Foreign currency reserves at 1 January
Net investments
Currency translation differences
Foreign currency reserves at 31 December

The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation loss of
the financial statements of foreign operations amounted
to TEUR 13,611 for 2017 (2016: gain TEUR 25,719).
Exchange differences and related income tax effect
resulting from intra-Group loans issued by the Company,
which are part of a net investment, are recognized in
other comprehensive income. In 2017 losses on net
investments in foreign operations, net of related tax,
amounted to TEUR 8,829 (2016: gain TEUR 36,578).

2017

2016

148,593

210,890

8,829

(36,578)

13,611

(25,719)

171,033

148,593

15. Financial liabilities
As at 31 December 2016 non-current financial liabilities
to related parties comprises euro-denominated borrowing from Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) amounted
to TEUR 100,000. The interest rate was 6 month EURIBOR
plus 4%. The termination date was 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2017 the above liabilities were
classified as part of current financial liabilities to related
parties in the amount of TEUR 100,000.
The Company and Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus)
entered into negotiations in 2018 to extend the termination date till 31.12.2022.
Current financial liabilities comprise the following items:

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

112,526

8,709

Trade payables

43,427

37,764

Other current liabilities

31,429

26,792

11
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Financial liabilities from related parties

Advance payments received
Income tax payables
Total
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3,975

4,787

191,368

78,145
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Current financial liability to related party includes
borrowings and interest due to Petro Welt Holding
(Cyprus) amounting to TEUR 112,526 (31 December
2016: interest of TEUR 8,709). Interest is accrued on a
monthly basis and is payable once in a six month period,
the interest rate is 6 month EURIBOR plus 4%.

in EUR thousand

The trade payables include obligations of the Group to
its suppliers in the amount of TEUR 43,427 (31 December 2016: TEUR 37,764).
Other current liabilities consist of the following items:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Value added tax liabilities

7,600

8,021

Wages and salary liabilities

5,228

6,692

Unused vacations liabilities

7,082

4,428

832

1,088

2,747

2,796

184

153

Social insurance liabilities
Other tax liabilities
Property tax liabilities
Provisions for future losses

1,359

472

Other liabilities

6,347

3,142

31,429

26,792

Total

Provision for future losses
Under IAS 11 management analyses at each reporting
date incomplete wells for the excess of total revenue
over the costs incurred. When it is probable that total
costs will exceed total revenue, the expected loss is
recognized immediately as an expense. Loss for such
unprofitable wells in progress as at the reporting date is

charged to cost of sales (see note 17) in the period in
which management became aware of it and is accumulated in the consolidated statement of financial position
as Provision for future losses.
Contract losses related to incomplete wells amounted to
TEUR 1,359 (31 December 2016: TEUR 472).

16. Revenue
The components of revenue were as follows:

in EUR thousand

Hydraulic fracturing

2017

2016

176,467

160,361

Sidetrack drilling

92,485

74,626

Conventional drilling

72,628

63,265

Cementing

6,533

5,747

Sale of proppant

3,264

-

Other services

1,646

380

353,023

304,379

Total
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The Group’s management assesses the stage of works
completion on wells, not completed at the reporting
date in accordance with the percentage of completion
method of accounting.

The following key assumptions were used when calculating the completion stage for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016:

Operational sub segment

Sidetrack drilling

Conventional drilling

Percentage of completion

The percentage of completion
is calculated based on the amount
actually drilled as at the reporting
date relative to the total
planned volume in accordance
with the contract.

The percentage of completion
is calculated based on the number
of days actually worked on the
well relative to the schedule
of works in accordance
with the contract.

The amount of revenue recognized in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IAS 11 “Construction contracts” is TEUR 165,113 (2016: TEUR 137,891),
including revenue recognized under construction
contracts in progress amounting to TEUR 11,699

(2016: TEUR 11,601) and corresponding trade receivables (refer to note 10).
The Group’s results are not subject to significant seasonal fluctuations.

17. Cost of sales

in EUR thousand

Raw materials
Direct costs

2017

2016

103,290

95,616

72,094

54,599

Depreciation

46,153

43,762

Wages and salaries

47,319

40,706

Social tax

13,760

11,849

Other costs
Reversal of impairment of non-financial assets
Total

96

7,364

3,405

-

(2,293)

289,980

247,644
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Direct costs amounting to TEUR 72,094 (2016: TEUR
54,599) comprise production services, transportation,
repair and maintenance expenses.

TEUR 2,293. For further information refer to the notes 7
"Property, plant and equipment".
The cost of sales does not include any expenses from
discontinued operations (2016: nil).

Impairment loss on machinery and equipment was
fully reversed as at 31 December 2016 in amount of

18. Administrative expenses

in EUR thousand

Wages and salaries
(incl. remuneration for executive bodies)

2017
Continuing
operations

2017
Discontinued
operation

2016
Contiuing
operations

12,892

-

7,894

-

2,167

166

2,215

116

Consulting fees

2016
Discontinued
operation

Tax expense

2,286

-

1,761

-

Social tax

2,648

-

2,010

-

Rent expense on an operating lease

941

-

839

-

Travel and entertainment expenses

549

1

385

1

Depreciation and amortization

147

-

288

-

Purchase of other materials

348

-

267

-

1,426

-

1,228

-

Bank fees

Services rendered

87

2

90

1

Training costs

34

-

10

-

Audit fees

517

-

435

-

Insurance

60

-

36

-

Maintenance costs

319

-

218

-

Other administrative expenses

255

-

1,927

-

24,676

169

19,603

118

Total
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In 2007 the Group ventured into engineering services
and the reconnaissance of geological formations. For
this purpose the Group founded one Russian and one
Austrian subsidiaries. The Russian company has been
liquidated on 14 August 2012. In 2012 process of
liquidation of the Austrian company Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH was initiated. As of the publication of these
consolidated financial statements the liquidation

process was not yet completed. All information for
Petro Welt GEODATA GmbH in the consolidated financial
statements is disclosed separately as a discontinued
operation.
Renumeration of the Auditor
The Group auditor was entitled for the following
remuneration based on services:

in EUR thousand

2017

2016

Audit

451

386

Total

451

386

2016
Contiuing
operations

2016
Discontinued
operation

19. Other operating income

in EUR thousand

Income from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Negative goodwill
Gain from stocktaking

2017
Continuing
operations

2017
Discontinued
operation

247

-

546

-

-

-

3,249

-

534

-

36

-

Income from reversals of written-down inventories

20

-

17

-

Income from prior periods

59

-

454

-

Income from reversals of written-down
trade receivables

131

-

51

-

Income from penalties

365

-

481

-

849

49

69

-

2,205

49

4,903

-

Other income
Total
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20. Other operating expenses

in EUR thousand

2017
Continuing
operations

2017
Discontinued
operation

2016
Contiuing
operations

2016
Discontinued
operation

1,408

-

-

-

287

-

1,307

-

Expenses for penalties
Expenses for the disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Write-down of trade receivables

427

-

144

-

Write-down of inventories

237

-

27

-

Other expenses

950

-

840

-

3,309

-

2,318

-

2017
Continuing
operations

2017
Discontinued
operation

2016
Contiuing
operations

2016
Discontinued
operation

Interest income

8,716

25

5,645

-

Total finance income

8,716

25

5,645

-

Total

21. Net finance income

in EUR thousand

Interest expenses

(3,868)

-

(4,014)

-

Loss from exchange rate differences

(1,913)

(5)

(540)

-

Total finance costs

(5,781)

(5)

(4,554)

-

2,935

20

1,091

-

Total net finance income

The Group's interest income is mainly attributable to
interest on cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits.

22. Income tax
The tax rate for the Austrian companies in 2017 was
25% (2016: 25%), for the Russian subsidiaries – 20%
(2016: 20%) and for income taxable under tax law in
Kazakhstan – 20% (2016: 20%).
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Petro Welt Technologies AG is the group parent of a
tax group with the fully owned subsidiary Petro Welt
Geodata GmbH. Petro Welt Technologies AG has concluded a tax allocation agreement dated 14.12.2007
with the member of the tax group in which the “standalone” method was selected.
Income tax expenses recognized in profit or loss are:
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in EUR thousand

2017

2016

Current tax expenses

11,304

8,710

Deferred tax expense (income) relating to the origination
and reversal of temporary differences

(2,304)

2,787

Withholding tax

73

664

Income taxes from previous years

(410)

3,031

Current and deferred tax expenses

8,663

15,192

Income tax of discontinued operations amounting to
gain of TEUR 96 resulting from the tax calculations under
Austrian corporate tax law (2016: expense TEUR 592).
In 2017 the income tax contains withholding taxes of
TEUR 73 (2016: TEUR 664) resulted from intra-Group

in EUR thousand

Net investments in foreign operations
Net gains/(losses) on
remeasurement of
defined benefit plans

dividend. The rate for withholding tax on dividends in
Russia was unchanged at 5%.
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
were as follows:

2017
Before tax

2017
Related tax

2017
Net of tax

2016
Before tax

2016
Related tax

2016
Net of tax

(11,619)

2,790

(8,829)

37,742

(1,164)

36,578

60

(12)

48

78

(16)

62

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

in EUR thousand

Result before income taxes
Tax using the Austrian tax rate
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions
Tax free income
Non-deductible expenses
Change in unrecognized deferred taxes
Withholding tax on dividends

2017

2016

39,688

40,691

7,938

8,138

294

270

(196)

(302)

2,151

1,482

(1,580)

2,444

73

664

(410)

3,031

393

(535)

Current and deferred tax expenses

8,663

15,192

Current and deferred tax expenses
according to the profit or loss statement

8,663

15,192

21.83%

37.33%

(Over)/underprovisions in earlier years
Other effects

Tax rate

100
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Deferred taxes result from the individual statement of financial position items as follows

Change in
deferred taxes

12/31/2017

1/1/2017

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax
liabilities

Recognised
in profit
or loss

Credited /
(charged)
to retained
earnings

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income

Tax loss carryforwards

6,558

-

(1,177)

-

411

(545)

7,869

Deferred expenses/liabilities

2,051

-

3,450

-

-

(49)

431

(1,781)

-

(12,112)

(865)

(2,008)

-

766

-

(10,005)

in EUR thousand

Fixed assets/depreciation
Other
Netting
Total

Tax loss carryforwards
Deferred expenses/liabilities
Fixed assets/depreciation
Other
Netting
Total

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax
liabilities

-

1,153

(657)

896

197

2,367

(99)

2,012

(4,877)

(9,152)

9,152

-

-

-

-

(8,419)

8,419

610

(3,617)

2,304

1,811

2,778

73

1,893

(8,244)

Change in
deferred taxes

12/31/2016

in EUR thousand

Effect of
movement
exchange
rates

1/1/2016

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax
liabilities

Recognised
in profit
or loss

Credited /
(charged)
to retained
earnings

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income

7,869

-

725

-

(1,164)

431

(1,781)

(1,323)

-

-

(181)

505

(351)

-

(10,005)

1,300

(515)

-

(2,092)

-

(8,698)

2,012

(4,877)

(3,489)

-

(16)

292

972

(624)

Effect of
movement
exchange
rates

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax
liabilities

1,599

6,709

-

(8,419)

8,419

-

-

-

-

(6,363)

6,363

1,893

(8,244)

(2,787)

(515)

(1,180)

(382)

1,823

(3,310)

Due to amendments to the Russian tax legislation,
starting from 1. January 2017 tax losses do not expire,
but may be set off only against 50% of taxable profits
for a given tax year. The tax loss carryforward as at
31 December 2017 in the amount of TEUR 38,560
(31 December 2016: TEUR 43,997) is not expected to be
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utilized in a future. Deferred tax assets in the amount of
TEUR 7,712 (2016: TEUR 8,799) have not been recognized
in respect of these losses because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.
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23. Pensions and other,
post-employment benefit plans
The Group provides post-employment benefits as
payments of non-government pension to the former
employees of OOO KATKoneft through the Fund “NPF
“LUKOIL-GARANT” JSC and lump-sum payments upon
retirement or disability, lump-sum payments due to the
relocation of an employee from the Far North regions
to a new place of residence after termination of em
ployment, payments in case of employee’s death and
payments to the former employees retired upon
disability and other long-term benefits (such as
payments to employees’ jubilees).
The level of some benefits is fixed and does not depend
on salary. Since the future payments will be indexed, the
plan is subject to inflation and risks of increase in the cost
of living. The plan is also exposed to the risk of changes
in the life expectancy of the former employees. Therefore, the Group determines the conservative assumption
on the expected growth rate of fixed payments and uses
mortality tables, which are adjusted to reflect expected
increase in life expectancy in the future.
Non-government pension benefits provided through
the fund NPF LUKOIL-GARANT
Provision of non-government pension to the employees
of OOO KATKoneft (further referred as “Participants”) is
performed through the fund “NPF “LUKOIL-GARANT” JSC
(“the Fund”) under the pension scheme №1 with a fixed
amount of pension provided on a life long basis.

payment equal to the present value of non-government
pension from the solidarity pension account to the
Participant’s individual pension account. The payments
of non-government pension to the Participant are made
from the individual pension account.
Non-government pensions are the whole-life pensions,
which are provided to the Participants on a monthly
basis. The amount of a non-government pension to be
provided to a particular Participant is determined by the
Depositor. The Depositor informs the Fund about the
amount of monthly non-government pension and the
Fund calculates the amount of the present value of the
non-government pension. The Fund uses the mortality
table of Russian Federation for the year 1998 and
applies the discount rate 6% to calculate the present
value of the non-government pension.
If the amount of accumulated liabilities on the solidarity
pension account is insufficient to cover the present value
of the Participant’s non-government pension, the Fund
does not award the pension but informs the Depositor
about the need to transfer the deficient amount of
pension contributions to the Fund.
In case of a Participant’s death during the period of
pension payments, the Fund provides the benefit at the
amount of twelve monthly non-government pensions
determined at the time of the Participant‘s death based
on the written request of the applicant.

OOO KATKoneft (“The Depositor”) makes pension
contributions to the Fund on behalf of the Participants.
The Fund accumulates these pension contributions at
the solidarity pension account. Upon retirement of a
Participant, the pension liability of the Company will be
settled by the Fund through transferring lump sum
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Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table presents roll from the opening

in EUR thousand

Defined Benefit Obligation
as at 1 January

balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit
liability and its components:

2017
Postemployment
benefits

2017
Other
longterm
employee
benefits

927

126

2017
Total

2016
Postemployment
benefits

2016
Other
longterm
employee
benefits

2016
Total

1,053

742

100

842

Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost

73

20

93

71

19

90

Interest cost

72

9

81

75

10

85

Past service cost

(9)

-

(9)

(21)

(2)

(23)

Actuarial (gains)/losses, including:
Financial assumptions

2

2

-

(4)

(4)

Demographic assumptions

2

2

-

1

1

Experience adjustments
Benefits paid

(54)

(12)

(12)

-

(11)

(11)

(16)

(70)

(47)

(12)

(59)

Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gains)/losses, including:
Financial assumptions

8

-

8

(23)

-

(23)

Demographic assumptions

2

-

2

(6)

-

(6)

Experience adjustments
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31 December

(69)

-

(69)

(49)

-

(49)

(69)

(9)

(78)

185

25

210

881

122

1,003

927

126

1,053
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Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

Assumptions

2017

2016

Discount rate

7.8%

8.5%

The growth rate of fixed payments

4.5%

5%

The growth rate of benefits as a result of a career growth
Tax rate

Employee turnover rates

Mortality

1%

1%

Varies from 16% to 30%
depending on
the Company

Varies from 21% to 23%
depending on
the Company

Declines from 45% to 0%
per year depending
on year of service
and gender

Declines from 42% to 0%
per year depending
on year of service
and gender

Mortality table of the
Russian Federation for
the year 2015,
adjusted by 77%

Mortality table of the
Russian Federation for
the year 2014,
adjusted by 77%

The next table represents the duration of the liability of the defined benefit plan:

Duration, years

Post-employment
benefits

Other long-term
employee benefits

Total

9.98

11.86

10.28

The next table represents the defined benefit plan payments expected in the next reporting period (2017):

in EUR thousand

Defined benefit plan payments expected in the next reporting period

104

Post-employment
benefits

Other long-term
employee benefits

Total

378

19

397
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Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to
one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other

assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation as shown below.

Post-employment
benefits

Other long-term
employee benefits

Total

(4.6%)

(6.2%)

(4.8%)

Decrease in discount rate by 1%

5.3%

7.1%

5.5%

Increase in growth rate of fixed benefits by 1%

5.4%

7.3%

5.7%

(4.8%)

(6.5%)

(5.0%)

Assumption

Increase in discount rate by 1%

Decrease in growth rate of fixed benefits by 1%

3.4%

0.0%

3.0%

Decrease in salary growth rate by 1%

Increase in salary growth rate by 1%

(3.1%)

0.0%

(2.7%)

Increase in rate of employee’s turnover by 1%

(0.3%)

(0.7%)

(0.4%)

0.3%

0.7%

0.4%

(4.6%)

(7.0%)

(4.9%)

2.0%

4.2%

2.3%

Decrease in rate of employee’s turnover by 1%
Increase in mortality by 10%
Decrease in mortality by 10%

24. Earnings per share

shareholders and a weighted-average number of ordinary
shares.

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December
2017 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary

in EUR thousand

2017

2016

thousand

48,850

48,850

in EUR thousand

31,015

25,499

EUR

0.63

0.52

Common stock
Profit
Earnings by share

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

A NN U AL REP O RT 2 017 / PE TRO W E LT TE C HN O LO G IE S A G

105

C O N SO LI DA T E D FIN A N CIA L S T A T E M E N T S

25. Operating segments
For management purposes the Group is organized into
business units based on their services, and has the
following reportable operating segments:
— well services – services for hydraulic fracturing
(operated by OOO KATKoneft);
— drilling, sidetracking, integrated project management
(IPM) – services for conventional drilling, sidetrack
drilling (operated by OOO KAT-oil Drilling and
OOO KATOBNEFT).
— production of proppant (operated by OOO Wellprop).
Management monitors operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions and

performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on financial information prepared in
accordance to IFRS.
Transactions between the business segments are
conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions.
Reconciliation include amounts related to corporate
activities which are not allocated to operating segments
and the reconciliation of the total reportable segments
amounts to the financial statements.
Segment information as at and for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is presented
below.

Reporting segments results for 2017
in EUR thousand

Well
Services

Drilling, Sidetracking IPM

Proppant
production

Total
segments

Reconciliation

Group

External sales

184,562

165,197

3,264

353,023

-

353,023

Group sales

1,671

499

663

2,833

(2,833)

-

Total sales

186,233

165,696

3,927

355,856

(2,833)

353,023

Cost of sales

(145,807)

(144,992)

(2,240)

(293,039)

3,059

(289,980)

(6,732)

(10,121)

(704)

(17,557)

(7,119)

(24,676)

(510)

(510)

-

(510)

Other operating income and expenses

(5,629)

(2,551)

69

(8,111)

7,007

(1,104)

Operating result

28,065

8,032

542

36,639

114

36,753

Administrative expenses
Selling expenses

8,716

Finance income
Finance costs

(5,781)

Profit before tax

39,688

Income tax

(8,663)

Profit after tax
Segment depreciation and impairment losses
Segment assets

31,025
15,851

30,522

223

46,596

(296)

46,300

158,873

187,887

25,076

371,836

66,108

437,944

Segment liabilities

33,701

72,616

6,943

113,260

82,728

195,988

Capital expenditure

22,551

12,444

-

34,995

548

35,543

106
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Reporting segments results for 2016
in EUR thousand

Well
Services

Drilling, Sidetracking IPM

Total
segments

External sales

Reconciliation

Group

304,379

166,220

138,153

304,373

6

Group sales

1,228

738

1,966

(1,966)

-

Total sales

167,448

138,891

306,339

(1,960)

304,379

Cost of sales

(132,860)

(118,144)

(251,004)

3,360

(247,644)

(5,012)

(7,851)

(12,863)

(6,740)

(19,603)

Other operating income and expenses

(1,062)

(4,133)

(5,195)

7,780

2,585

Operating result

28,514

8,763

37,277

2,440

39,717

Administrative expenses

Finance income

5,645

Finance costs

(4,554)

Profit before tax

40,808

Income tax

(15,784)

Profit after tax
Segment depreciation and impairment losses
Segment assets

25,024
15,432

26,629

42,061

(304)

41,757

141,802

219,726

361,528

59,247

420,775

Segment liabilities

37,404

124,855

162,259

25,183

187,442

Capital expenditure

11,031

8,912

19,943

210

20,153

Reconciliation of segment assets mainly include cash
balances of other companies (corporate activities),
reconciliation of segment liabilities include loan from
Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) and intercompany
elimination between segments.

in EUR thousand

Inter-segment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Major part of non-current assets of the Group is located
in the Russian Federation. Revenue is earned by the
Group exclusively in Russia and Kazakhstan. The
breakdown of revenue by geographic area and major
customers is presented below:

2017

%

2016

%

Rosneft

187,940

53.23

179,535

58.98

LUKOIL

75,188

21.3

45,966

15.1

Slavneft

15,146

4.29

19,466

6.4

Gazprom

18,735

5.31

27,499

9.03

Tomskneft

21,684

6.14

16,014

5.26

Russneft

14,584

4.14

-

-

6,960

1.97

11,614

3.82

340,237

96.38

300,094

99

Kazmunaygaz

8,319

2.36

4,285

1.41

Other customers

4,467

1.26

-

12,786

3.62

4,285

1

353,023

100

304,379

100

Russia

Other customers
Total revenue within Russia
Kazakhstan

Total revenue within Kazakhstan
Total
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26. Contingencies
(a) Litigation
On 10 April 2015 the Company filed a statement of
facts at the Central Public Prosecutor’s Office for the
Prosecution of Economic Crimes and Corruption in
Vienna. The statement of facts refers to circumstances,
which set out reasons substantiating reasonable sus
picion of breach of trust that came to the attention of the
new Management Board. With filing dated 9 September
2015 the Company extended its private claim to
TEUR 27,500. Since the investigations are still at an
early stage, further developments and outcome, in
cluding the actual loss of the Company in this regard,
are not yet possible to determine reliably.
The criminal complaint relates to transactions in con
nection with a procurement system, which was established at the Group in recent years. In purchasing fixed
assets for business operations of subsidiaries of the
Company, companies not belonging to the Group were
used as intermediaries. Since the investigations are still
at an early stage, further developments and outcome,
including the actual loss of the Company in this regard,
are not yet possible to determine reliably.
The Company filed against former members of Management Board claim amounting to TEUR 1,540 due to the
unlawful and premature payment of compensation. The
Company is currently assessing potential claims regarding the activities of its subsidiary Petro Welt GEODATA
GmbH, which generated significant operational losses in
the past. For that reason, the Company filed a criminal
complaint to the Public Prosecutor's Office in Vienna on
17 November 2015 within the pending criminal proceedings. It is uncertain at this stage if at all and in which
amount these losses are in connection with potential
criminal activities. These questions will be subject to the
investigations of the Public Prosecutor.
(b) Taxation contingencies
The taxation system in the Russian Federation continues
to evolve and is characterized by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions,
which are sometimes contradictory and subject to
varying interpretation by different tax authorities.
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Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a
number of authorities, which have the authority to
impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. A
tax year generally remains open for review by the tax
authorities during the three subsequent calendar years.
Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest
that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive and
substance-based position in their interpretation and
enforcement of tax legislation.
Transfer pricing legislation enacted in the Russian
Federation starting from 1 January 2012 provides for
major modifications making local transfer pricing rules
closer to OECD guidelines, but creating additional
uncertainty in practical application of tax legislation
in certain circumstances.
These transfer pricing rules provide for an obligation for
the taxpayers to prepare transfer pricing documentation
with respect to controlled transactions and prescribe the
basis and mechanisms for accruing additional taxes and
interest in case prices in the controlled transactions
differ from the market level.
The transfer pricing rules apply to cross-border trans
actions between related parties, as well as to certain crossborder transactions between independent parties, as
determined under the Russian Tax Code (no threshold is
set for the purposes of prices control in such transactions).
In addition, the rules apply to in-country transactions
between related parties if the accumulated annual
volume of the transactions between the same parties
exceeds a particular threshold (RUB 1 billion in 2014
and thereon).
The compliance of prices with the arm’s length level
could be as well subject to scrutiny on the basis of
unjustified tax benefit concept.
In addition, a number of new laws introducing changes
to the Russian tax legislation have been recently adopted.
In particular, starting from 1 January 2015 changes aimed
at regulating tax consequences of transactions with
foreign companies and their activities were introduced,
such as concept of beneficial ownership of income,
taxation of controlled foreign companies, tax residency
rules, etc. These changes may potentially impact the

P E T R O WE L T T E CH N OL OG IE S A G / A N N U A L R E P ORT 2 0 1 7

C O N SO LI DA T E D FIN A N CIA L S T A T E M E N T S

Group’s tax position and create additional tax risks going
forward. This legislation and practice of its application is
still evolving and the impact of legislative changes should
be considered based on the actual circumstances.
All these circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian
Federation that are substantially more significant than in
other countries. Management believes that it has provided
adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations
of applicable Russian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the interpretations
of the tax authorities and courts, especially due to
reform of the supreme courts that are resolving tax
disputes, could differ and the effect on these consolidated financial statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.
Taxation contingencies in Kazakhstan
The taxation system in Kazakhstan is relatively new
and is characterised by frequent changes in legislation,
official pronouncements and court decisions, which are
often unclear, contradictory and subject to varying
interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are
subject to review and investigation by various levels of

authorities, which have the authority to impose severe
fines and interest charges. A tax year generally remains
open for review by the tax authorities for five subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open longer.
These circumstances may create tax risks in Kazakhstan
that are more significant than in other countries.
Management believes that it has provided adequately
for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable tax legislation, official pronouncements and court
decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant
authorities could differ and the effect on these con
solidated financial statements, if the authorities were
successful in enforcing their interpretations, could
be significant.

27. Details and information
on financial instruments
Presentation of financial instruments
The table below contains an overview of carrying
amounts and fair values of the individual financial
instruments and reconciliations of the corresponding
statement of financial position items:

Financial assets measured at amortised costs
in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Cash and cash equivalents

68,887

102,964

Bank deposits

65,489

10,695

Trade receivables

97,035

83,707

362

362

Receivables from related parties
Other receivables

3,427

2,046

235,200

199,774

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Long term debts

-

100,000

Short term debts

112,526

8,709

43,427

37,764

Total

Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs

Trade payables
Other liabilities
Total

A NN U AL REP O RT 2 017 / PE TRO W E LT TE C HN O LO G IE S A G

3,815

3,142

159,768

149,615
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The carrying amount of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented above approximates its fair values.
As at the reporting date there were no financial instruments categories “assets and liabilities valued at fair
value through profit and loss”, “financial investments
held-to-maturity” and “available for sale”. Also there were
no such categories in the previous year. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables, current and non-current
assets correspond to their fair values. For trade payables,
current and non-current liabilities as well as other
current liabilities the carrying amounts correspond
to the fair values. Financial instruments were not
assigned as security both in the reporting year and in
the previous year.

in EUR thousand

28. Financial risk management
objectives and policies
The Group’s risk management policies are established
to identify, analyse and monitor the risks faced by the
Group, including market risk, currency risk, risk of
interest rate change, credit risk, liquidity risk and the
risk associated with capital management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if the
customer or the counterparty to the financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises mainly
from cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
financial receivables:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Cash and cash equivalents

68,887

102,964

Bank deposit

65,489

10,695

Trade receivables

97,035

83,707

Other receivables

1,485

1,995

Other long-term assets
Total

The risks of non-repayment of receivables management
assesses as the lowest in Russia and middle in Kazakhstan.
The revenue generated in Kazakhstan is within 2% of the
total revenue of the Group. Russian clients of the Group
are holding companies, including state-controlled.
Customers are public companies, some of which have
credit ratings from international and Russian rating
agencies. However, in accordance with the internal
regulations on liquidity management, the company
weekly analyzes the register of past due but not doubtful
(and never impaired) receivables subject to a late
payment, and take all measures to comply with contractual terms by clients.
Credit risk management activities in the Group are
as follows:
(a) Credit policy under which the creditworthiness of
each new customer is analyzed individually before it will
be offered standard Company terms and conditions of

110

1,942

51

234,838

199,412

payment. The company review includes external ratings
(if any) and, in some cases, recommendations of banks.
In monitoring customer’s credit risk, clients are grouped
according to their credit characteristics, including their
belonging to private individual or legal entity, their
territorial location, loan structure by number of days of
payment delays, contractual maturities of debt and fiscal
difficulty in the past.
(b) Regular monitoring of credit risk indicators. Credit
risk indicators allow early detection of credit risk growth
of an individual counterparty (group of counterparties).
As a result, the Group may take the necessary steps to
prevent financial losses in the event of default by the
counterparty. When developing indicators, the company
uses methods of quantitative and statistical analysis,
predictive models, as well as expert indicators.
(c) Regular reporting on credit risk. Regular reporting is
an essential component to enable stakeholders to

P E T R O WE L T T E CH N OL OG IE S A G / A N N U A L R E P ORT 2 0 1 7

C O N SO LI DA T E D FIN A N CIA L S T A T E M E N T S

monitor the effectiveness of risk reduction interventions
and the dynamics of risk assessment. Reporting is
provided to the management of the Group, interested
structural units as well as the Management Board.
Trade and other receivables
A significant portion of the Company's revenues relates
to the following largest customers – LUKOIL, Gazprom

in EUR thousand

Russia
Kazakhstan
Total

The Group does not possess collateral and other credit
enhancements in respect to trade and other receivables.
The ageing of financial assets that are past due as at the

in EUR thousand

Neft, Rosneft, Tomskneft (see note 25). The company
diversifies its customer base by attracting new reliable
customers.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and
other receivables at the reporting date by geographic
region was as follows:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

94,704

81,243

5,758

4,510

100,462

85,753

end of the reporting period but not impaired at the
reporting date was as follows:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

220,264

197,008

Past due 0–30 days

9,485

2,268

Past due 31–180 days

1,224

136

Neither past nor overdue

Past due over 180 days
Total

The management believes that the unimpaired amounts
that are past due by more than 30 days are still collec
tible in full, based on historic payment behavior and
extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including

3,865

-

234,838

199,412

underlying customers’ credit ratings if they are available.
The movement in the allowance for impairment in
respect of trade and other receivables during the year
was as follows:
Individual impairments

in EUR thousand

Balance at beginning of the year

2017

2016

426

333

Additions (through business combination)

516

-

Additions (through profit or loss)

479

135

Reversal/use of value adjustment

(720)

(100)

(50)

58

651

426

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Balance at end of the year
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Management believes that the credit quality of trade and
other receivables is at a sufficient level as the majority of
contractors have a long trading relationship with the
Group.
The Group held cash and cash equivalents of TEUR 68,887
at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: TUER 102,964),
which represents its maximum credit exposure on cash
and cash equivalents assets.
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are held
with financial institutions having a credit rating from
international rating agencies from "AAA" to "AA" on a
national scale. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents are held with
different banks to prevent concentration of credit
risk for the Group.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation. The Group uses activity-based
costing to cost its products and services, which assists it
in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing its
cash return on investments. The Group aims to maintain
the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly
liquid instruments at an amount in excess of expected
cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next
60 days.
The company also monitors the level of expected cash
flow from the repayment trade and other receivables
and the expected outflows in connection with the
redemption of trade and other payables.
The Group has borrowings from Petro Welt Holding
Limited (Cyprus) amounting to TEUR 100,000. For further
information see note 15 Financial liabilities.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated
interest payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements.

2017
in EUR thousand

Contractual cash flows
Carrying
amount

Total
cash flow

< 6 months

6 to 12
months

1 to 2 years

2 to 5 years

112,526

116,341

14,434

101,907

-

-

43,427

43,427

-

-

-

-

3,815

3,815

-

-

-

-

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Liabilities against Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus)
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
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2016
in EUR thousand

Contractual cash flows
Carrying
amount

Total
cash flow

< 6 months

6 to 12
months

1 to 2 years

108,709

116,375

10,611

1,931

103,833

-

37,764

37,764

37,764

-

-

-

3,142

3,142

3,142

-

-

-

2 to 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Liabilities against Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus)
Trade payables
Other current liabilities

It is not expected that the cash flows taken into consideration in the maturity analysis may occur significantly
earlier or their fair value will differ considerably.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices,
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that
there is a mismatch between currencies in which sales

in EUR thousand

and purchases are denominated and the respective
functional currencies of Group entities. The functional
currencies of Group companies are primarily the Russian
Ruble (RUB). No currency hedging transactions are
carried out.
The group is exposed to foreign currency risk in respect
of revenue and purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than Russian ruble.
Basically, currency risk arises from transactions in euros
and us dollars. The group performs regular analysis of
trends in currency exchange rates.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as
follows:

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Trade receivables

7,100

115

Trade payables and other liabilities

(953)

(668)

61

105

(1,023)

(1,873)

(565)

(552)

-

-

(221)

(334)

Euro

US dollar
Trade receivables
Trade payables and other liabilities
Kazakhstan Tenge
Trade receivables
Trade payables and other liabilities

249

Russian ruble
Trade receivables
Trade payables and other liabilities
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The following sensitivity analysis shows the effects of
currency differences affecting income and the effect of
the internal Group loan, which was reclassified as net

investment in foreign operations (see note 4), in the
event of an assumed change of the foreign currency of
10% against the respective functional currency:

Effect on profit before tax
in EUR thousand

Effect on pre-tax equity

2017

2016

2017

2016

Euro denominated

615

55

4,675

7,726

US Dollar denominated

(96)

177

-

-

Kazakhstan Tenge denominated

(56)

30

-

-

Russian ruble denominated

(22)

33

-

-

The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any
impact of forecast sales and purchases.

in EUR thousand

Interest risk
Interest rate changes have an impact mainly on borrowed
loan with a variable interest rate (see note 15), changing
the future cash flows on it. A reasonably possible change
of 10 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date
would have increased (+) / decreased (-) equity and profit
or loss before taxes by the amounts shown below.

2017

2016

Long-term payables

-

+/- 376

Short-term payables

+/- 450

+/- 33

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in par
ticular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
No interest hedging transactions have been carried out
during reporting period.
Management does not have a formal policy of determining how much of the Group’s exposure should be to
fixed or variable rates. However, at the time of raising
new loans or borrowings management uses its judgment
to decide whether it believes that a fixed or variable rate
would be more favorable to the Group over the expected
period until maturity.
Master netting or similar agreements
The Group may enter into sales and purchase agreements
with the same counterparty in the normal course of
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business. The related amount receivable and payable do
not always meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because the Group may
not have any currently legally enforceable right to offset
recognised amounts, because the right to offset may be
enforceable only on the occurrence of future events. In
particular, in accordance with the Russian civil law an
obligation can be settled by offsetting against a similar
claim if it is due, has no maturity or is payable on demand. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
there were no any significant recognised financial
instruments that are subject to the above agreements.
Other market risks
Russia and Kazakhstan
Business activities of the Group and focus of these
activities on Russia and Kazakhstan imply significant
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financial risks, in particular during the crisis associated
with the financial markets. These risks are primarily
interest and liquidity risks, foreign currency risks and the
risk of changes to the rating of the Group. There is a
particular risk induced by changes in the political
situation in Russia and Kazakhstan. The Group-wide risk
management system is designed to identify, assess and
analyze the risks and their respective probabilities for
the Group, also in the area of financial risk, as well as to
put into place measures that guarantee limitation of
damages and safeguarding of profits in the event of the
occurrence of such risk situations. The focus of business
activities in Russia and Kazakhstan means that the Group
is particularly dependent on specific situations and
developments within these countries and the risks
accompanying them. In particular the monetary and
economic policies introduced by the Russian Government may have a significant effect on the risks to the
assets, finances and earnings situation of the Group.
Measures for stabilization and strengthening of the
economic power of the commodities industry have
indirect consequences for the service companies within
this field. Possible trends to depreciation of the Russian
Ruble against the euro, the reporting currency of the Group,
could also have direct consequences for the Group.
Industry profitability remains under pressure from the
strict financial and investment behavior of oil companies
and the volatility of oil rates, both of which continue
unabated. The increased costs resulting from oil majors
having to move to more challenging and politically riskier
parts of the world is another challenge. Higher employment costs, the increasing complexity of projects, and
expanding regulatory requirements are contributing
significantly to the rise in overall costs. This could have a
significant effect on the development of the Group’s
earnings.
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Capital management
The Group has no formal policy for capital management
but management seeks to maintain a sufficient capital
base for meeting the Group’s operational and strategic
needs, and to maintain confidence of market participants. This is achieved with efficient cash management,
constant monitoring of Group’s revenues and profit,
and long-term investment plans mainly financed by the
Group’s operating cash flows. With these measures the
Group aims for steady profits growth.
The primary objective of Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholder’s value.
The group manages its capital in order to enable it to
operate in the foreseeable future while maximizing the
return of its shareholders by optimizing the debt-toequity ratio of the Group.
Capital management is carried out in comparison with
competitors from the oilfield services sector on the basis
of net debt to EBITDA indicator.
Net debt is calculated as the difference between the
total amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents and
short-term financial investments. Total debt includes
short-term and long-term (including current portion)
loans and borrowings, and obligation under the defined
benefit pension plan. Total equity is the amount of
capital owned by the shareholders of the Group. As at
31 December 2017 the net debt to equity ratio was
10,5% (31 December 2016: 15.4%).
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in EUR thousand

Liabilities against Petro Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus)
Trade payables
Other liabilities with the exception of accrued liabilities
Less: cash and cash equivalents
bank deposit
Net debt
Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio at 31 December

The Group’s rating by Moody’s is Ba3 with a stable rating
outlook (31 December 2016: Ba3).
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during 2017 and 2016.

29. Related party transactions
Parent and ultimate controlling party
The Company’s immediate parent companies are Petro
Welt Holding Limited (Cyprus) and Joma Industrial
Source Corp. The ultimate beneficiary owner of the

in EUR thousand

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

112,526

108,709

43,427

37,764

3,815

3,142

(68,887)

(102,964)

(65,489)

(10,695)

25,392

35,956

241,956

233,333

10.5%

15.4%

Group is Mr. Maurice Dijols. For further information
about transactions with Petro Welt Holding Limited
(Cyprus) refer to note 15 “Financial liabilities”, note 11
“Other current assets”.
Key management remuneration
Key management received the following remuneration
during the year, which is included in personnel costs
(refer to note 18).
Summary of the remuneration of management
members in key positions:

2017

2016

1,606

1,371

562

324

Maurice Gregoire Dijols, Supervisory Board

35

35

Ralf Wojtek, Supervisory Board

35

35

Remi Paul, Supervisory Board

35

35

Yury Semenov, Management Board
Valeriy Inyushin, Management Board

Members of Management and Supervisory Board have
not received any loans or advance payment in 2017
(2016: nil).
The amount of bonus of Management Board members
for 2016, paid in 2017, amounted to TEUR 821 (2016:
TEUR 593).
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The Management board consists of the following
members:
—Y
 ury Semenov – Chairman of the Management Board;
—V
 aleriy Inyushin, Ph.D. – Deputy Chairman of the
Management Board.
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The Supervisory board consists of the following members:
— Maurice Gregoire Dijols – Chairman of the
Supervisor Board;
— Remi Paul – Member of the Supervisor Board;
— Ralf Wojtek – Member of the Supervisor Board.

The remuneration to the members of the second level of
management was as follows:

in EUR thousand

Second level management salaries

2017

2016

937

706

Other related party transactions
Business transactions with related parties are detailed in the following table:

Transaction value
in EUR thousand

Outstanding balance
2016

12/31/2017

12/31/2016

Transaction
description

937

977

117

177

Consulting

440

356

38

41

Rental fee

2017

Subsidiaries:
C.A.T. GmbH Consulting Agency
Trade (Cyprus) Ltd., Nikosia
Fairtune East Ltd., Moscow

30. Events after the reporting date
Petro Welt Technologies AG and Petro Welt Holding
Limited (Cyprus) entered into a negotiation of amendment of currently valid loan agreement. The termination
date for liability amounting to EUR 100 million and

interest payment date according to amendment is
31.12.2022. The interest rate will be changed at arm's
length. The addendum is currently in the process of
negotiation.

Vienna, 23 April 2018
Board of Management
Yury Semenov
Chief Executive Officer
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Valeriy Inyushin
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of all representatives

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the group as required by the applicable
accounting standards and that the group management
report gives a true and fair view of the development
and performance of the business and the position of
the Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties the group faces.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the
separate financial statements give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the parent company as required by the
applicable accounting standards and that the management report gives a true and fair view of the develop
ment and performance of the business and the position
of the company, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties the company faces.

Vienna, 23 April 2018
Yury Semenov
Chief Executive Officer
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Valeriy Inyushin
Chief Financial Officer
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Legal notice

Media owner and publisher
Petro Welt Technologies AG
Kärntner Ring 11–13
1010 Vienna
Phone: +43 1 535 23 20-0
Fax: +43 1 535 23 20-20
E-Mail: ir@pewete.com
Internet: www.pewete.com
Consulting
Grayling Austria GmbH
Dirk Moser-Delarami, Ute Greutter
Concept and design
Brainds, Marken und Design GmbH
Photos
Andreas Scheiblecker
(Management Board/ Supervisory Board)
PR team of PeWeTe Group
Production
Lindenau Production
Disclaimer

This document contains certain statements that constitute neither
reported results nor other historical information. These forward-looking
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the forwardlooking statements. Many of these risks and uncertainties relate to
factors that are beyond Petro Welt Technologies AG ability to control
or precisely estimate factors such as future market and economic
conditions, the behavior of other market participants, the ability to
successfully integrate acquired businesses and achieve anticipated
synergies, and the actions of government authorities. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forwardlooking
statements, which apply only as of the date of this document.
Petro Welt Technologies AG does not undertake any obligation to
publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements
to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.
This document does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of
an offer to subscribe to or to buy any security, nor shall there be any
sale, issuance, or transfer of the securities referred to in this document
in any jurisdiction in which such act would breach applicable law. Copies
of this document are not being, and must not be, directly or indirectly,
mailed or otherwise forwarded, distributed, or sent in or into or from
Australia, Canada, or Japan or any other jurisdiction where it would be
unlawful to do so. This document represents the Company’s judgement
as of date of this document.
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